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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Hon Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. MAN Kong Yui
Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony
Mr. KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman)
Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick

Mr. MAN Kong Yui

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman)
Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. MAN Kong Yui

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick

Mr. MAN Kong Yui

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG
Ground Floor to 3rd Floor

Cosco Tower

Grand Millennium Plaza
183 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

EET

BOTES

RS (AT
B e (A )
R e

BAFHTES
il £ e
SC Il 5 e A
# R ek

BRENX
S e
RS

DNEWE
H& R oA

3
o IR (T i) I S T R 7
S

BEREEY
TR L ek ()
- I e
S S

REZEg
RISk (T
BB e
SCRISE e

TMZzES
R G ()
At BB e
SIS ek

EETREXRMH

e K 1835
400 1 B
N

MR 348



NEEHR

CORPORATE INFORMATION

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN

ISLANDS

Second Floor, Century Yard
Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Bank of Communications Co. Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited

Second Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

STOCK CODE
0064

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

www.getnice.com.hk
(Information on the website does not form part of this
annual report)
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IR EEREEBFRRETNT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Get Nice
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$502.6 million, representing a
decrease of 4.2% as compared with approximately HK$524.5
million reported in the last corresponding financial year. The
decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in the
interest income from margin financing business, money lending
business and debt securities held by the Group during the year.
On the other hand, the brokerage commission recorded an

increment as compared with the last financial year.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$189.6 million (2020: HK$118.3 million).
The increase in profit was mainly attributable to (i) decrease
in loss on changes in fair value of investment properties; (ii)
decrease in impairment loss on account receivable from margin
clients; and (iii) decrease in finance cost resulted from the
absence of imputed interest of convertible bonds issued by a
listed subsidiary. The Group recorded net impairment loss
on accounts receivable from margin clients and provision of
net impairment loss on loans and advances of approximately
HK$55.7 million (2020: HK110.9 million) and HK$11.1
million (2020: reversal of net impairment loss HK$2.9 million),

respectively in current financial year.

Basic earnings per share for the year were HK1.96 cents (2020:

HK1.22 cents) as a result of increase in profit during the year.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Market Review

At the beginning of 2020, the market expected the US-China
trade war to be relieved, the U.S. economy continues to grow
and economic activities in the mainland regain momentum. An
optimistic atmosphere dominates the market, Hang Seng Index
once again rose to an eight-month high of 29,174 points on 20
January 2020. Immediately afterwards, the number of confirmed
COVID-19 cases surged and the stock market began to collapse.
During the first quarter of 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak
spreads globally, caused disruptions in various business segments
across the world and investors retreated from risky assets to hold
cash. The plunge of asset prices and oil prices triggered panic
sale and liquidity crunches globally. In March 2020, Hang Seng
Index dropped to a 3-year low of 21,139 points.
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ITEHREEREEBERETH
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

After experiencing a crash, the stock market has start to rebound
in the second quarter as many countries have successively
introduced fiscal and monetary policy measures to try to support
employment, stabilise growth, and support enterprises to tide
over difficulties. Also, some countries over the world have started
to resume work after the peak of the epidemic. At the same time,
China and the United States have caused disputes due to the
COVID-19 epidemic and Hong Kong’s national security law.
In the third quarter, the second wave of the epidemic broke out
and US-China relations fell into a trough, stock markets have

undergone some correction.

In early November, the results of the US presidential election
became clear. People are looking forward to the launch of
the vaccine and the new round of bailout plan of the US
government, caused the global stock market to rise. Some stocks

have regained its lost ground and even reached record highs.

During the second half of 2020 to the first quarter of 2021,
despite various uncertainties, the Hong Kong IPO market was
still making history as investors were enthusiastic about IPO
subscriptions and investment of new economy stocks. Supported
by the large-scale listing of new economic stocks and secondary
listing of US-listed Chinese companies in Hong Kong, the
amount of IPO funds raised in Hong Kong has reached its peak

in recent years.

With the prospect of the continued recovery of the global
economy, launch of vaccines and the gradual relaxation of
cross-border restrictions, the Hang Seng Index closed at 28,378
points at the end of March 2021 compared with 23,603 points
at the end of March 2020. The average daily turnover on the
Main Board and GEM during the year ended 31 March 2021
was approximately HK$155.1 billion, an increase of 68.2% as
compared with approximately HK$92.2 billion for the prior

financial year.

In respect of the local money lending market, as Hong Kong
economy has deteriorated during the year, the risk tolerance of
banks has declined and the banks were shrinking the loan book.
It would then offer more business opportunities to non-bank
money lenders as they could provide more flexible lending
services to both retail and corporate clients. However, the
unemployment rate started to climb, late repayment and overdue
rates began to climb, caused financial institutions to tighten their
loan approval standard. As a result, Hong Kong’s money lending

market has become quieter.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Regarding the local property market, in the first half of 2020, as
affected by the US-China conflicts, decline of stock market and
the increasing unemployment rate, the property market in Hong
Kong shrank and the overall residential property prices and rent
dropped. In the second half of 2020, the US Federal Reserve
announced that it will maintain the near-zero interest rate policy
and the Hong Kong SAR Government announced that the it will
halt the legislation for a first-hand property vacancy tax, these
policies provided a support on the property market in Hong
Kong. In the first quarter of 2021, with the prospect of the end
of coronavirus outbreak and the fallen unemployment rate, the
property market has started to rebound. Meanwhile, in the first
quarter of 2021, another outbreak of coronavirus occurred in the
UK. The UK property market was affected by the challenging
local economic environment and the continuing spread of
COVID-19. Property prices in the UK were slightly declined.

Business review
Broking and securities margin financing

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the broking business
posted a profit of approximately HK$19.5 million (2020:
HKS$1.4 million). The operating result of the broking business
increased by 1,292.9% as a result of the increase in our broking
turnover and number of sizeable corporate finance transactions
during current year. The increase in broking turnover was
affected by the volatile local stock market and positive global
investment atmosphere. Revenue from broking for the year
increased by 72.2% to approximately HK$71.3 million (2020:
HK$41.4 million) as compared with last financial year, of which
approximately HK$17 million (2020: HK$6.8 million) was
contributed by the underwriting, placing and proof of funds
business. The increase in these fee incomes was due to the
increase in number of deals as a result of the more active capital

market during the current year.

Securities margin financing remained to be the Group’s
major revenue contributor for the year. During the year, total
interest income from securities margin financing dropped by
5.7% to approximately HK$306.6 million (2020: HK$325.2
million) with the decrease in average level of securities margin
lending during the year. Total gross accounts receivable from
margin clients at 31 March 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$3,811.3 million (as at 31 March 2020: HK$3,692.3
million). Net impairment loss on margin clients receivable of
approximately HK$55.7 million was charged during the current
year (2020: HK$110.9 million). The Group will continue to
maintain a balance on yield relative to risk and cautious approach

to the credit control of its margin financing business.
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ITEHREEREEBERETH
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money lending

The money lending vehicle is engaged in provision of consumer
and mortgage loans. The money lending business continued
to show stable performance during the year. The aggregated
loan amount decreased to approximately HK$507.3 million
at 31 March 2021 from approximately HK$689.2 million at
31 March 2020, with interest income for the year decreased
to approximately HK$75.2 million (2020: HK$105.7
million). Money lending business recorded profit before tax of
approximately HK$62.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: HK$107.6 million). Net impairment loss on
loans and advances of approximately HK$11.1 million was
provided during the year (2020: reversal of net impairment
loss approximately HK$2.9 million). Building on the Group’s
expertise and relationships with high net worth customers, the
Group remains positive about the money lending business and
will continue to target high net worth customers with short-term

financial needs.

Investments

The investments division held properties and financial
instruments for the Group. Assets allocations are based on
expected return rates and available funding capital. For the year
under review, this division reported a profit of approximately
HK$13.0 million (2020: loss HK$62.6 million), mainly
attributable to fair value losses on investment properties of
approximately HK$30.1 million (2020: HK$86.6 million);
interest income from three unlisted debt securities of
approximately HK$13.0 million (2020: HK$18.7 million);
interest income from listed debt securities of approximately
HK$20.3 million (2020: HK$19.6 million); rental income of
approximately HK$15.4 million (2020: HK$13.7 million); and
the unrealised losses on financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$7.2 million (2020:
HK$19.2 million) due to the drop of share prices of certain
equity securities listed in Hong Kong among the portfolio held
of approximately HK$117.2 million at 31 March 2021 (31
March 2020: HK$107.5 million) and the drop of fair value of
convertible notes issued by a Hong Kong listed company with
fair value amounted to approximately HK$13.8 million at 31
March 2021 (31 March 2020: HK$19.8 million).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In June 2020, the Group newly acquired 19 car parking spaces
in Hong Kong at a total consideration of HK$75 million. At 1
November 2020, one of the properties with carrying value of
approximately HK$101 million were transferred from investment
properties to property and equipment upon change of its use as
the Group’s own office. Other than above changes, the Group’s
portfolio of investment properties did not have significant
changes during the year ended 31 March 2021. At 31 March
2021, the Group held a portfolio of investment properties with
total fair values of approximately HK$851.8 million (31 March
2020: HK$874.1 million), comprised mainly the commercial
buildings in Hung Hom and London.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held an investment
portfolio mainly consisted of equity securities, debt securities,
convertible notes and investment funds with total fair values of
approximately HK$553.5 million (31 March 2020: HK$508.2
million). The increase in total fair values of the investment
portfolio was mainly attributable to the net effect of the
acquisition of an unlisted redeemable note with principal amount
of HK$100 million (2020: HK$85.8 million) and the partial
redemption of an unlisted redeemable note of HK$70.8 million
(2020: HK$300 million) during the year while the Group
held larger portfolio of listed debt securities of approximately
HK$257.6 million at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020:
HK$248.8 million). The portfolio of equity securities mainly
comprised listed companies in Hong Kong while the portfolio of
debt securities mainly comprises listed and unlisted bonds, and
redeemable notes issued by certain listed and unlisted companies

in Hong Kong and overseas.

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance business focused on the provision
of financial advisory services to listed companies in Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2021, it completed 4
financial advisory transactions (2020: 2). The operation reported
a segment profit of approximately HK$0.6 million for the year
(2020: HK$0.2 million).
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ITEHREEREEBERETH
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook

Governments all over the world were promoting the COVID-19
vaccination programme and more and more people around the
world are vaccinated against COVID-19, it is expected that the
outbreak will be brought under control soon. Global economic
activity began to recover. Since people continued to be affected
by COVID-19, their living habits and consumption patterns
have been changed. Such as, the mode of events has been shifted
from physical to virtual and the consumer behaviour has been
shifted from in-store shopping to online shopping. This change

accelerated the digital transformation of the entire society.

To keep pace with the times, the Group has upgraded the
securities services mobile application and added several new
features to the application such as remote account opening

aiming to improve user experience of our clients.

In May 2021, the Group has moved the headquarter to a new
premises. The new headquarter are located in a prime financial
district with three-storey commercial units and an office unit
with total gross floor areas of 27,808 square feet. The low rise
commercial units with large outdoor LED display screen, which
would significantly enhance the Group’s corporate brand and
image which are important to increase customers’ perception in
the securities industry. In order to enhance our corporate image
and attract financial talents to join our Group, the Group has
invested in marketing and advertising, such as production of TV
advertising, which have been broadcast on TV and on the LED

display screen on the exterior wall of our headquarters.

In respect of the investment activities of the Group, management
will keep secking quality and upscale investment properties in
both Asia and Europe, and also investment in securities with
good potential, to enhance its investment portfolio and continue
to provide a source of steady rental income and investment
gains in the future. Meanwhile, management will adopt cautious

measures to manage the Group’s investment portfolio.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dealing with the future challenges, the management of the
Group would review and adjust business strategies on regular
basis with a prudent and balanced risk management approach.
The management of the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the business development and overall performance of
the Group in the future. The Group is endeavoring to render
comprehensive services to our affluent and high-net-worth clients
in order to maintain our clients’ confidence and loyalty. The
Group will also continue to recruit and train financial talents
to provide high quality financial services to our clients. Given
our lean and efficient organization structure, stable clients base,
strong track record and solid business fundamentals, the Group
is poised to expand its horizons and scale new heights in the
years to come in order to continue maximizing returns and value

for all shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

Equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$5,609.1 million as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
HKS$5,467.1 million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$142 million or 2.6% over that of last financial year end.
The non-controlling interests increased from approximately
HK$1,081.7 million at 31 March 2020 to approximately
HK$1,106.7 million at 31 March 2021. These movements were
mainly attributable to the profit for the year netting off dividend
distributed during the year.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately HK$4,927.0 million (2020: HK$5,244.3
million), and its liquidity as represented by current ratio (current
assets/current liabilities) was 6.6 times (2020: 9 times). The
decrease in net current assets and current ratio were mainly
attributable to the increase of the accounts payable. Also,
the Group’s bank balances and cash on hand decreased to
approximately HK$658.9 million (2020: HK$905.2 million).
The decrease in bank balances and cash on hand was mainly due
to the acquisition of an unlisted redeemable note with principal
amount of HK$100 million, and the acquisition of a property at

total consideration of approximately HK$488.5 million.
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ITEHREEREEBERETH
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 March 2021 and
2020 and its unutilised banking facilities as at the end of the
year were approximately HK$918 million (2020: HK$1,083
million), which were mainly secured by charges over the Group’s
clients’” pledged securities, a property owned by a subsidiary of
the Group and corporate guarantees issued by Get Nice Financial
Group Limited (“GNFG”) and the Company. The Group’s
gearing ratio (total borrowing over equity attributable to owners
of the Company) as at 31 March 2021 was 0.01 (2020: 0.01).

The number of issued shares of Company amounted to
9,662,705,938 shares as at 31 March 2021 (2020: 9,662,705,938

shares).

An investment property located in United Kingdom and its
related rental income which were denominated in British
Pound, the business activities of the Group were not exposed
to material fluctuations in exchange rates as the majority of
the transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The
Directors considered that a reasonably possible annual change of
5% in the exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and British
Pound would not have material impact on the Group’s results
and therefore hedging through the use of derivative instruments

was considered unnecessary.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the end of

the year.

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2021, leasehold land and building of the Group
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$100.7 million
(2020: HK$102.8 million) were pledged for a banking facility
granted to the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,

Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

On 19 May 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third-party to acquire the entire
equity interest in Tao Yun Company Limited (“Tao Yun”)
at a cash consideration of approximately HK$500,000,000
(subject to adjustment). The principal assets of Tao Yun are the
three-storey commercial units and an office unit with total gross
floor area of 27,808 sq.ft together with 19 car parking spaces.
The acquisition of Tao Yun was completed on 24 June 2020
at a final consideration of approximately HK$488,525,000.
Details of the acquisition have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 19 May 2020 and circular dated 5 June
2020.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and jointly

controlled entities during the reporting period.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 94 (2020: 78) full time
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the year was approximately HK$27.3 million (2020:
HK$24.5 million). The Group provides employee benefits
including mandatory provident fund, discretionary share options

and performance bonus to its staff.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HKO0.5 cent per
share, together with the interim dividend paid during the year,
amounting to total dividends of HK1 cent per share for this

financial year.
The final dividend will be payable on or about 10 September

2021 to sharcholders of the Company whose names appear on

the register of members of the Company on 1 September 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed on the
following time periods during which no transfer of shares of the

Company will be registered:

For attendance to 2021
Annual General Meeting

19 August 2021 — 24 August
2021, both dates inclusive

For entitlement to final
dividend

31 August 2021 — 1 September
2021, both dates inclusive (Record
date being 1 September 2021)

In order to qualify for attendance to the Company’s 2021
Annual General Meeting which is scheduled to be held on 24
August 2021, Tuesday and/or entitlement to the final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the

following dates:

Last date of lodgement of

Events transfer documents

For attendance to 2021 Annual : 18 August 2021, Wednesday

General Meeting

For entitlement to final dividend : 30 August 2021, Monday

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to our
customers and shareholders for their continued support. I would
also like to thank your all our directors, the management team

and staff members for their hard work and dedicated service.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HUNG Hon Man, aged 67, is the chairman and the chief

executive officer of the Company and founder of the Group.
He is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy and
the future direction of the Group. Mr. Hung is also responsible
for overseeing the money lending and credit operation, property
development and investment of the Group. Mr. Hung possesses
over 26 years of experience in the securities and real estate
industries in Hong Kong and Taiwan. He is also the chairman of
GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
was spun off for separate listing on the main board of the Stock
Exchange on 8 April 2016.

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony, aged 75, is the deputy chairman
of the Company. He is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy and future direction of the Group. Mr. Cham
is also responsible for overseeing the money lending business,
property development and investment the Group. Mr. Cham
possesses over 52 years of experience in the banking, financial,
securities and real estate industries. Before joining the Group in
September 1991, he held senior executive positions in various

international banks.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - continued
Mr. KAM Eddie Shing Cheuk (with former name Kam Leung

Ming), aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director on
28 April 2017. He holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy
and a master’s degree in corporate governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is currently a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom. He has over 24
years of experience in auditing, professional accounting and
worked for several Hong Kong listed companies of various
industries and served senior roles in financial management
and secretarial functions. Mr. Kam is currently an executive
Director, Company Secretary and Authorised Representative
of the Company. He is a non-executive director of Pangaca
Connectivity Technology Limited (Stock Code: 1473). He is
also an independent non-executive director of Ever Harvest
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1549), Genes Tech
Group Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 8257),
Xiezhong International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3663)
and CityChamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (Stock
Code: 256). All of the above companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange in Hong Kong. Mr. Kam was appointed as the
committee member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Shanghai Committee (Baoshan District) in
December 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. MAN Kong Yui, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 3 October 2005. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Man has been involved
in the investment and financial industries for over 42 years and
has extensive experience in bullion, foreign exchange, securities,
futures and asset management business. He has held various
senior positions with prominent banks, international financial
institutions and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Man is
an independent non-executive director of TradeGo FinTech
Limited (stock code: 8017), a company whose shares are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS - continued

Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 January 2014.
Mr. Sun holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from Monash
University in Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Sun possesses over 25 years of experience in
international finance, corporate finance, corporate planning,
financial management and accounting and held executive
positions at several international banks, accounting firms, the
Hong Kong Airport Authority and an information technology
company. Mr. Sun was an independent non-executive director
of Zhongda International Holdings Limited (former stock code:
909) from 9 November 2006 to 4 April 2019, a company whose
shares were listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange in
Hong Kong but was delisted on 8 March 2019. He is currently a

director of Saigon Commercial Bank of Vietnam.

Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick, aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1
September 2014. Mr. Siu has worked in the finance and
banking field for over 27 years. He is the managing director of
Fortune Take International Limited, a company engaging in
providing financial consultancy services. Mr. Siu was the senior
vice president of AIG Finance (Hong Kong) Limited and the
vice president of Bank of America and responsible for business
development and credit risk management. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Hull in
the United Kingdom. Mr. Siu was an independent non-executive
director of New Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 2326) for the period from 5 June 2009 to 31 January
2020 and is currently an independent non-executive director
of Sun Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 8082). The

companies are listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPOR

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2021.

This Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. This is with
the view of being a transparent and responsible organization
which is open and accountable to the Company’s shareholders.
The Directors believe that good corporate governance practices
are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting the

CODﬁanCC Of our investors.

An explanation of how the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code were put into practice during the year under

review is set out below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange), titled “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” (the “Code”), save for the deviation from

Code Provision A.4.1 which is explained as follow:

Code A.4.1

Code A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
Company has deviated from the Code provision A.4.1. The
independent non-executive Directors were not appointed
for a specific term. Instead they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years. This is
in accordance with the provision of the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles”). As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose of this

Code provision.

The Directors believe that, despite the absence of specified
term of independent non-executive Directors, the Directors
remain committed to representing the long-term interests of the

Company and the Sharcholders as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE - continued
Code A.2.1

Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and

set out in writing.

The roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer (“CEO”) are performed by the same individual, which
is a non-compliance to the Code provision A.2.1. However, the
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Company. The balance of power and authority is ensured
by the operations of the Board, which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals and meets regularly to discuss issues
relating to the operations of the Company. The Board has full
confidence in Mr. Hung Hon Man and believes that having
Mr. Hung performing the roles of the chairman of the Board and
the CEO is beneficial to the Company as a whole.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management of the Group, to evaluate the performance of the
Group and to assess the achievement of targets periodically
set by the Board. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company are delegated to the CEO
and the senior management. In addition, the Board has also
established three Board Committees and has delegated various
responsibilities to them as set out in their terms of reference. The
Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities. Details of the delegation by the Board will be

discussed in the paragraphs below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six Directors, more than
one-third of these Directors are non-executive and independent
of the management. The Board is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Group’s affair. The Board has a balance of skill
and experience appropriate and diversity of perspective for the

requirements of the Group’s businesses.

As at the date of this annual report, three of them are executives,
namely, Mr. Hung Hon Man, Chairman and CEO, Mr. Cham
Wai Ho, Anthony, Deputy Chairman and Mr. Kam Eddie Shing
Cheuk and three of the Directors are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick (Member of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee), Mr. Man Kong Yui (Member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)and
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee).

Each of the Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in
the “Biographical details of Directors” of this annual report. As
at the date of this report, the Board members have no financial,

business, family or other relationships with each other.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board has at all times
adopted the board diversity policy. It sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
its effectiveness. The Company endeavors to ensure that the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives. The appointments of board
members will continue to be made on merit basis, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board. Pursuant to the board
diversity policy, the Company seeks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, culture and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Board will set up and review the measurable objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the

progress made towards achieving those objectives.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY - continued
The Board has revised and adopted the board diversity policy

on 26 April 2019 and will review from time to time the
implementation of the policy, as appropriate, to ensure its

continued effectiveness.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors and officers against liabilities arising
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis ensuring that the Directors and officers are

adequately protected against potential legal liabilities.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and the conduct, business activities and development

of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment.
This is to ensure the new employee possesses an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
has full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations

under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are expected to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, relevant reading
materials including regulatory updates and seminar handouts,
etc. were provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT - continued

A summary of their records of training during the financial year

is as follows:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Hung Hon Man LV S e A

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony S e

Mr. Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk HoRAs B L
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry Hw et

Mr. Man Kong Yui SCI B S A

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick R

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings
adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is
addressed to the Board and all Directors have the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for Board meetings. All Directors
have access to Board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board to
make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed and
considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required and the Directors can obtain

independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
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BOARD PRACTICES - continued
All Directors were provided with monthly updates by the

Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge

their duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, 19 Board meetings and
2 general meetings were held. Directors may participate either in
person or through electronic means of communications. Details

of the attendance of the Directors in the meetings are as follows:

Audit
Board  Committee

gz¢  ENZAE

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Hung Hon Man W UE 1919 N/AREH
Mr. Cham Wai Ho Anthony HAZEE 19/19  N/AA#H
Mr. Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk ki 19/19  N/ARNEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors & UEHTES

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick [l 19/19 202
Mr. Man Kong Yui SRS 19/19 212
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry g Ve 19/19 22

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Articles also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a material

interest.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Cham
Wai Ho, Anthony have entered into service contracts with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2002 and will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’

prior notice in writing to the other.

Other Directors did not enter into any service contract with the
Company and there are no fixed or proposed length of service
with the Company. All Directors are subject to retirement by the

rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third) should retire from office by rotation. Further,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and should then be

eligible for re-election at the meeting.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Hung Hon Man and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry, will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2021.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside

information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the written guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Company’s Chairman and CEO are
complementary, but importantly, they are distinct and separate

with a clear division of responsibilities.

Mr. Hung Hon Man, the chairman of the Company provides
leadership to the Board; ensures effectiveness of the Board and

helps foster better relationships between Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr. Hung Hon Man
also took the post of the CEO of the Company who was
responsible for developing strategies for the Board’s approval,
executing the strategies agreed by the Board and led the

management of the Group’s operation.

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the CEO are
performed by the same individual, which is a non-compliance
to the Code provision A.2.1. Details were discussed under the
heading “Corporate Governance Code Compliance” of this

report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account and the

interests of the Company and its Shareholders can be protected.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board at all times
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, and complied with the requirement that these
should include one such Director with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry has the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters

required.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that the three independent non-executive Directors are
independent in character and judgement and they also meet the

independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy that, in

recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for future growth.
The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, among other things, the Group’s general financial
position, capital and debt level, future cash requirements and
availability of business operations, business strategies and future
development needs, any restrictions on payment of dividends
and any other factors the Board may consider relevant. Any
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Articles and all applicable laws and

regulations.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested in
the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors have to make decisions objectively

in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the CEO and senior management
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Pursuant to the levels of authority
approved by the Board, the senior management executes
day-to-day operations unless the subject matter exceeds the
authority granted by the Board or relates to any matters
specifically reserved to the Board, they would seek approval from
the Board.

The Board has established (i) Nomination Committee (ii)
Remuneration Committee and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i) to
review the structure, size and diversity of the Board on a regular
basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable candidates for
directorship after consideration of the nominees’ independence
(if applicable) and quality in order to ensure the fairness
and transparency of all nominations; and (iii) to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. In
identifying suitable director candidates and making such
recommendations to the Board, the Nomination Committee
would also take into account various aspects of a candidate,
including but not limited to, his/her education background,
professional experience, experience with the relevant industry
and past directorships. The Nomination Committee currently
comprises three members, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick,
Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of

Nomination Committee).
The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. There

were two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out below:

(1) assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
(ii) recommended the re-election of retiring Directors at the

Company’s annual general meeting; and
(iii)  reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board.

Nomination Policy

On 26 April 2019, the Board has adopted the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the nomination
criteria and procedures for the Company to appoint additional
directors or re-elect directors. The Nomination Policy can assist
the Company in achieving board diversity and enhancing the

effectiveness Of thC Board and its corporate governance standard.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued
Nomination Committee — continued

Nomination Policy — continued

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such as
the reputation, integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention
to the Group’s business will be taken into consideration as a
whole. In addition, a range of diverse perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skill and knowledge would be
considered. In the case of independent non-executive Directors,
the candidates must further satisfy the independence criteria set

out in the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi
Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee). The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year. There were two meetings
held during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2021 is reviewing the remuneration of

Directors and senior management of the Group.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee,
on named basis, at committee meetings during the year is set out
in the section “Board and Board Committee Meetings” of this

report above.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee — continued

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
for them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No Director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration

standard in the market.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditors and has authority to raise questions
regarding the resignation or dismissal of the auditors; overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process and internal control
and risk management systems and to review the Group’s
interim and annual consolidated financial statements. The
Audit Committee has access to and maintains an independent

communication with the external auditor and management.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee — continued

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka
Ziang, Henry, all of whom are not involved in the day-to-day
management of the Company. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry,
who has appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The principal work performed by the Audit

Committee during the year is as follows:

(i) reviewed interim and annual consolidated financial

statements and announcements of the Company;

(ii) reviewed the continuing connected transactions and

connected transactions of the Group;

(iii)  reviewed and discussed with management regarding risk

management and effectiveness of internal control;
(iv)  reviewed the re-appointment of external auditors;

v) reviewed and monitored of the continuous professional

development of Directors; and

(vi)  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and

relevant disclosures.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. There were
two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2021. The
attendance of each member of the Audit Committee, on named
basis, at committee meetings during the year is set out in the
section “Board and Board Committee Meetings” of this report
above. There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the

external auditor.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
comprehensive information to the shareholders on assessment of

the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company are to give a true and
fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements
and accounting standards. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern as at 31 March 2021. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2021 on a going concern basis.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s financial position, its financial performance and
cash flows for the year. Management provides the Board with
management accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with a
view to giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position, and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021, the Board:

(a) adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(b)  sclected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently;

(c) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;
and

(d)  ensured that the financial statements were prepared on a

going concern basis.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

Directors’ responsibility — continued

In financial year ended 31 March 2021, the annual and
interim results were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods to provide

stakeholders with transparent and timely financial information.

Independent auditor’s responsibility

The responsibilities of Mazars CPA Limited, Certified
Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on

pages 55 to G1.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s corporate

interests.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage prudently but
not completely eliminate the risk of system failure. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the

risks of different businesses and activities.

The internal control system is to maintain proper accounting
records and to comply with relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has its independent audit function, assisting the Board
and management to conduct regular and independent review to
ensure a sound internal control system is being implemented,
maintained, and relevant regulatory requirements are complied
with. On a yearly basis, the internal audit personnel will present
a report to the Audit Committee relating to operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will alert the management
on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any, advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance

the internal controls of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee,
as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the report provided
by the Group’s internal audit personnel and is satisfied the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. It has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting functions and their training programs and

budgets.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL - continued
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board has set up

its risk management policy and risk appetite statement which
clearly defines the types of risk that the Group is prepared to
pursue, retain or tolerate. The risk management process includes
identifying ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that
could affect the achievement of objectives; (ii) analyzing the
likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio
accordingly; and (iii) considering the risk responses and ensure
effective communication to the Board/senior management
and ongoing monitor the residual risks (if any). A risk register
was maintained as a tool for documenting risks and actions to

manage each risk on an ongoing basis.

During the year, the senior management is responsible for
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
control. The risk control is implemented to minimize the risks to
which the Group is exposed to during the day-to-day operation
of business. The senior management designs, implements and
maintains the risk control to safeguard the assets of the Group.
It also involves making decisions regarding which risks are

acceptable and how to address those that are not.
The Board has confirmed that a review of the effectiveness of the

risk management and internal control systems was conducted and

considers them effective and adequate.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDER INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Group has an inside information policy with the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of insider

information as follows:

. the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Insider Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

. the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure
by pursuing board, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through public announcements

and the Company’s website;

. the access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis such that
employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve

confidentiality; and

. the Group has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs and only designated persons are authorised to
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or

investors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk is the company secretary of the
Company and a full time employee of the Company. He has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company and is responsible
for advising the Board on corporate governance matters.
Mr. Kam confirmed that he has complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure that the
investors and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information about the Group
through the publication of annual reports, announcements and

circulars.

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondences on
the Company’s website www.getnice.com.hk. Shareholders and
investors may also email their queries to the Company’s email
address: investor@getnice.com.hk, which will be handled by
the Company’s Investor Relations team. The Board maintains
regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and
plans. The Directors and the members of the various board
committees attend and answer questions raised at the general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolutions are proposed at

the general meetings on each substantially separate issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company explains
the procedures for conducting a poll before putting a resolution
to vote. The results of the voting by poll are then published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

respectively.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

ERRRREERE

o S 1 B R R AR
M~ e 5 T A e W 5 T - [
54 B S P B AR~ A OB
e BB I (R A 78 B
A Y A T % ) A 4 L
E o

A% A IR AE B8 dliwww.getnice.com.hk T 6 fir A
O A o TR B AR TR A e A T R
AN 2 R AL investor@getnice.com.hk »
A B A A R 2 PR BRI EOE
o HR IR E A Kb B EES
ot AR BRI S ~ B  EE RET R o
FREERLZEGNELFE AL FREKR
RPN o A R FIE > e A
R R it 2 Wik R o

A A e HROR T TR S Rl 5 A TR A R
RRTEFF o £ 5% 55 R M AL B 2 A
GEE R R E



SR U RRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more sharcholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company by mail at the Company’s principal
office address in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at G/F-3/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium
Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company
Secretary forwards communications relating to matters within
the Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries
to the CEO.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at shareholders” meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

gy
meeting” above.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no significant

change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are (i) money lending, (ii)
property development and holding and investment in financial
instruments; (iii) real estate agency and (iv) the provision of
financial services, including securities dealing and broking,
futures and options broking, securities margin financing
and corporate finance services. Particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 62 to 63.

An interim dividend of HK$0.005 per share amounting to
approximately HK$48,313,530 in aggregate was paid during
the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.005 per share to the sharcholders on the
register of members on 1 September 2021.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2021
is set out on page 204 of this annual report. This summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements in
this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property and
equipment, and investment properties of the Group are set out
in notes 18 and 19, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. There
is no movement in the share capital of the Company during the
year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company with details
are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares during the year or

subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
66 to 68.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s

ShafCS.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2021, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders were approximately HK$3,144,485,000
(2020: HK$3,131,662,000) which comprised the share

premium, special reserve and retained earnings.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. Man Kong Yui
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of the audit committee,

nomination committee and remuneration committee)

Mr. Hung Hon Man and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
provision 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association. Being

eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set out
in this report, there is no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange:

With effect from 1 September 2020, Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing
Cheuk (with his former name of Kam Leung Ming), has changed
his name from Kam Leung Ming to Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk.

Mr. Kam was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (stock
code: 256) on 6 November 2020 and Xiezhong International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3663) on 16 December 2020.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to

16 on the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Certain executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man and
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony have entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The term of office of each independent non-executive Director
is for the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance

with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 13 January 2020, King Joy Asia Limited (“King Joy”, as

the purchaser), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. Hung Hon Shing (“Mr. Hung HS”, as the
seller) entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
(“Agreement”) pursuant to which King Joy agreed to acquire,
and Mr. Hung HS agreed to sell the entire equity interest in Red
Eagle Securities Limited (“Red Eagle”) at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$62.8 million (subject to adjustment).
Red Eagle is licensed corporation under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance with regulated activity under
Type 1 Dealing in Securities and is a participant of the Stock
Exchange. The principal activity of Red Eagle is provision of
securities brokerage services. Mr. Hung HS is the elder brother
of Mr. Hung Hon Man (“Mr. Hung”), an executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company. The transaction
contemplated under the Agreement is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but is exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
On 31 August 2020, all conditions precedent of the Agreement
have been fulfilled and the transaction was completed, Red
Eagle has became an indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 13 January 2020 and 31 August 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED BEBRERS
TRANSACTIONS
1. Tenancy agreement 1. HEWH=R
Transaction Name of counterparty Term of agreement Address of premises
x5 REHF2EB 1fh = F 59 Y% 2 i3t
Tenancy made on 1 June Legend Creative 1 June 2015 to 31 May ~ Workshop C9 and C10
2015, renewed on Enterprise Limited 2017, renewed on 11/F, Block C, Hong Kong
5 June 2017 and 16 May as the tenant 5 June 2017 for two Industrial Centre, Nos.
2019 (monthly rental 4 Bl = A PR years and further 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
increased from HK$42,000 (EAfF) renewed on 16 May Kowloon, Hong Kong
to HK$65,000 since 2019 for two years to HFHBIFEFILE
1 September 2019 and 31 May 2021 489-4911%%
reduced to HK$50,000 “E-HHEAH—H it T3EH DO
since 1 March 2020) (Note) FoR—LF 11HEC9 L C10 %137
N_F—TNEANA—H hH=+—H>
(R4 A E—BEANH
WoFE—LHEANHAA T H B WA
K ZF—=NERLATAH W —F — U4
EEMAE=Z—h HH+FNH#E
LA — B H42,0000 E— LR E
JCHE I 265,000 JC G T —IFHA
TETEF A B =+—H

WE 50,0008 7C) (M)

Note: The tenant is an associate of Mr. Hung Hon Man, an

executive Director and Chairman of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED EERERS &

TRANSACTIONS - continued

During the year, the Group received license fee from Mr.
Hung Hon Man’s associate amounting to HK$140,000 for

office areas sharing.

Save as disclosed in (4) below, the Directors, including
the independent non-executive Directors, were of the
opinion that the transactions listed above were on normal
commercial terms where all of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) on an annual basis
calculated under the Listing Rules were less than 5% and
the annual consideration was less than HK$3,000,000. The
transactions were thus exempted from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the
Listing Rules.

2. Brokerage services and margin loan financing 2. REBBRAIBFEERME
Brokerage
commission Margin loan Maximum
income paid interest paid amount of
to the Group to the Group margin loan
Name of connected person BEATHS for the year for the year for the year
ERe FRE
FFEEHE FFEEE £
2R ZREE RELEN
AEBA EXFR ZBELHE
HK$ HK$ HKS$
i T W T
Executive Directors: BiTESE:
Hung Hon Man and his associates WECRRBEAL 2,213,353 17,420,099 323,276,774
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and his associate HAZE B A+ 36,158 - -
Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk and his associates RV ER 1 N 6,085 773 442,108
Directors of certain subsidiaries of AEBETHEARZES:
the Group:
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and his associate ES e} YN 29,019 3 10,908
Hung Sui Kwan and his associate ESTE @} YN 41,550 4,598 734,289
Cheng Wai Ho and his associate LRy E:N ] YN 38,254 - -
Ng Hon Sau, Larry and his associate S R HEE AL 300 3,928 633,801
License fee BHERE

RN AR A ) R Al T N T A L
SCHE A 2 BN L U F1140,000% 76 2
FEEEEE 2 o

BRR SC(4) 2 B g4 > HE R (B IF
BMATE ) B 5 L5258 5 4% 1% v 3
A6 FRRT S > T AR B b T R R A R O
WSt 2T AR A R (A
RN 2 KA 5% B 4 BE A AE 7 KR
3,000,000 7 K I > A B 28 5 5%
a3 ST b TR I B 14A.76 (1) (o) I 5 B
FR - A R A - At B S B R
HEZBUE »
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

4.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided

to Mr. Hung Hon Man and/or any controlled companies

On 1 November 2019, Get Nice Securities Limited
(“GNS”), a subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Hung (an
executive Director and chief executive officer), entered into
(i) the financing services agreement (“Financing Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which GNS may (but not obliged
to), upon request from Mr. Hung and/or any controlled
companies, provide or procure any other company amongst
the Group to provide the margin financing facilities to Mr.
Hung and/or, as the case may be, the relevant controlled
company from time to time during the period from
15 December 2019 to 14 December 2022; and (ii) the
broking services agreement (“Broking Services Agreement”)
pursuant to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon
request from Mr. Hung and/or any controlled companies,
provide broking services and services incidental thereto by
GNS or any company amongst the Group to Mr. Hung
and/or any controlled companies during the period from
15 December 2019 to 14 December 2022. Details of the
terms and conditions of the Financing Services Agreement
and Broking Services Agreement can be referred to the
announcement dated 1 November 2019 and circular dated
22 November 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, (i) the interest
income earned from Mr. Hung and his controlled
companies by GNS amounted to approximately
HK$17,304,000 (with annual cap set at HK$25,000,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021); (ii) the maximum
amount of margin loan granted to Mr. Hung and his
controlled companies amounted to approximately
HK$320,196,000 (with annual cap set at HK$330,000,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021); and (iii) the
brokerage commission earned from Mr. Hung and his
controlled companies by GNS amounted to approximately
HK$1,960,000 (with annual cap set at HK$8,000,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2021).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the above transactions
have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better
(as the case may be); and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them during the validity of the agreement
periods on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests

of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions pursuant to rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules and advised the Board in writing (with a copy
provided to the Stock Exchange) that the above transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that: (i) have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provisions of goods or
services by the Group; (iii) were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the their respective

annual caps.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules which
are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 41 to 45, have
compiled with Chapter 14A.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As of 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company

EERBETBRABZROERE

AR A= H o REER R
B G0 265 3 5 245 A > W) ZE T M A 1) T
Jor T #k BAR 45 i R T SR A < B 2R
G AN T W52 B 2 et IR > A
R = AT BN BT AR 8 ] O
R B O 28 B8 0 B B B SR XV
90y ~ AR BR e 03 A o M 2 R R

1. XRAASREEIETZEBR ZE
B

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

Name of Director Capacity shares held of the Company

e ®iT HEAQASHT

EEns BEME EBREE RAE 2B

Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 5,925,303,872 61.32%
WEIOEA A (i)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
5,925,303,872 ordinary shares of the Company which
are held by Honeylink Agents Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is

beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

2.

Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HKS$1.0 each of GNS, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEMS BmiE

Mr. Hung Hon Man
W S

Beneficial owner

Ha A A

W
-fl;.k\tlll |

EEEWmE
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EERRSITRAEZKROESR -

o

2. RADAZIZENMBRAAEFRES
ZEBREELGET ZERERIELER

ZHR

Percentage

Number of of the issued
non-voting non-voting
deferred deferred

shares* held shares** of GNS
hEHERS

FisERERE CEBRTERERE
EER#E EZR+2ZBIH
36,000,000 90%

*ok

The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

The other 10% of the issued non-voting deferred shares of
GNS, being 4,000,000 shares are held by Mr. Shum Kin
Wai, Frankie, the managing director of GNS.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

3. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01

EERBRETRARZRDER -
&
3. RAARAKZENBAALFLEME

each of GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the REEIBTZEBRZER
Company

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of director Capacity shares held of GNFG
HEFEE
FRiFE #&1T ERITRA
B EEiE EBEKREE ZEDHK
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 1,875,000,000 75.00

WA 2 A (7E)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in (i)
50,309,829 ordinary shares of GNFG which are held by
Honeylink Agents Limited (“Honeylink”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Island with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man; and (ii)
1,824,690,171 ordinary shares of GNFG which are held by
the Company. Honeylink is interested in 5,925,303,872
ordinary shares of the Company, representing 61.32% of

issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTIONS

A new share option scheme was adopted by the Company
in August 2012. Particulars of the share option schemes are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
On 16 January 2019, the Company granted share options to
three grantees, which are non-employee eligible participants,
to subscribe for a total of 289,800,000 ordinary shares of the
Company under the share option scheme. The exercise price
is HK$0.26 per share. Details of the grant of share options,
including the validity of the share options can be referred to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 January 2019. On 21
August 2019, the refreshment of scheme mandate limit under
the share option scheme was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting by way of an ordinary
resolution. The Company is thus entitled to issue a maximum
of 966,270,593 shares upon exercise of the share options to be
granted under the refreshed scheme mandate limit, representing
10% of the issued shares as at the date of the annual general
meeting held on 21 August 2019. The share options were
cancelled on 20 November 2020.

As at 31 March 2021, the number of share options to subscribe
for a total of 966,270,593 shares in the Company, representing
approximately 10% of the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company, may still be granted under the share option

scheme.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2021, so far as is known to any Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the persons or corporations
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company

were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

FERRE

RoB = E=H =4 H o AL A
(AT 38 24 S8 S5 85 17 O BB A 5 BA R A b 5
(525 ) 9 o 0 T A R A
AR T B 15 AR B 44 o AT i
e B AT AL 7 5 B 00 B 14336
ez 5 AN TR B 2 B M (T HER %
S D) S AR 2 M A S

wr
A2 ] B T (0. 17 70 2 % 8 i’

Number of issued Percentage of the

ordinary shares issued share capital

Name Capacity held of the Company
e &1 NN T £y

=8 EatE EEREE REZBEDL

Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 5,925,303,872 61.32%

Tk SC W By A (M 7E)

Honeylink Beneficial owner (Note) 5,925,303,872 61.32%

Hai A N (K )

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in 5,925,303,872
ordinary shares of the Company which are held by Honeylink, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors were
not aware of any person or corporation (other than the Director
and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in DI Register or

otherwise notified to the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

listed shares of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$20,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 17 to 37 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, as
authorised by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
duties, responsibilities and performance, and the prevailing
market conditions. No individual should determine his/her own

remuneration.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 March
2021 and an analysis of the likely future development of the
Group’s business are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 4 to 13 of this

annual report. The discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Group’s major stakeholders, Group’s environmental policy
and performance as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have significant impact on the Group
are set out in the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2021 (“ESG Report”). The ESG Report
will be published separately on the websites of the Company
(hetp://www.getnice.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange news
website (https://www.hkexnews.hk).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include

strategic, commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial
budget at the end of each financial year based on then knowledge
to the external environments and a number of forecast and
estimates. The Group would invest in capital expenditures or
require additional working capital by way of equities or debts
fund raising based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and competition. Given the rapid change
of unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry
and properties investment sector, the Group is facing significant
strategic risks on its capital expenditures and working capital
requirements when changing the strategic plans to adopt the

unexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing the keen competition by other securities
brokers or financial institutions. To maintain the Group’s
competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership strategy
as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other

competitors.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of financial or reputational losses, or
inability to deliver services to customers, resulting from fraud,
errors, omissions, failed internal processes, IT systems and
compliance matters, are adequately managed. The Group has
also established its own business continuity plan, including but
not limited to implementation of cyber security control and
comprehensive cyber testing programme, to protect the Group

from risk of interruption to its business continuity.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —

“Financial risk management objectives and policies”.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent of the management of the Company and are free
from any relationship that would materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2021.

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”) was first appointed as auditor
of the Company on 23 March 2018 upon resignation of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021 were audited by Mazars whose term of
office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the reappointment of Mazars as the auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Hon Man
CHAIRMAN

30 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

mazars

To the members of Get Nice Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Get Nice
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 203, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Mazars CPA LimiTED
IR (B et R RAT

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
FUS AT U I3 18 BEP IR 42
Tel EHf: (852) 2909 5555

Fax f#12L: (852) 2810 0032

Email %#: info@mazars.hk

Website #4ik: www.mazars.hk
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Key Audit Matters — continued

HRERER-H

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on loans and advances

EFRBHZAMEEER ([BHEEER]) ZBRERE

Related disclosures are included in notes 4, 6 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEHBHEENTL 6 R24TE Z B 1%

Key Audit Matter
BREELER

At 31 March 2021, loans and advances amounting to
approximately HK$507,349,000, net of loss allowance
for ECL of approximately HK$21,944,000, represent 7%
of the total assets of the Group.

AZE A ST —H BRI G D
507,349,000% 7t (411 FR 76 15 Bl 18 2 e 88 M 4
21,944,000% 70) - 1 BEAEMEEBEZ7% -

Management assessed the provision for ECL of loan
and advances based on the estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of these receivables and considered
whether there were or will be any events or changes
in circumstances that indicated or may indicate a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
these balances.

L R % S R SRR I TR AU A D O £ g R
wE L% e T B KA S & A AT ] 1 s LR )
1117 2 B 78 2T fE BRI 3 5% 55 &5 B A0 A R 2 BE 8 U
B AN A B A R BRI AE R 1R
4 -

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the significant amounts involved and the significant
judgement in evaluating the recoverability of the balances
and in turn, among other factors, credit worthiness of the
borrowers.

7 S 51 L L 2 B R A R OE > BTG R
W B 22 SRR R S Al &5 % 22w e SR DA (BR
FAt TR 3R A0 A5 BN 2 A5 B IR 7 K oK B o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AEHMNBETFNAEEERERSE

Our procedures, among others, included:

AR 2R (BRI AR 740 4

* understanding, through challenge and enquiry
with the management, the established policies and
procedures on credit risk management of receivables
from money lending business;

R 3 ) L T L ) T TR A S 2
W AR T A B L B i P 2 B E BUR AR PP

e assessing and evaluating the credit risk management
process including the process for identification of
impaired loans and advances and the measurement
of the loss allowance;

R Al R R AR AR B R A B AR R o AL A A e (E
BRI Kwt B IR R

D assessing, on a sample basis, the data used in
assessment and the fair value of the secured
properties for the loans and advances by making
reference to the recent open market value of similar
properties at nearby locations; and
A8 22 75 A0 b [ ] ST 00 3 2 doe 20 2 B i (EL B AT
it vb B B0 B B R S BGR A RA SE Z
2 FASIEAT AR AL 5

e assessing management’s judgement over the ECL

and creditworthiness of the borrowers by assessing,
on a sample basis, the available information, such
as background information of the borrowers,
recoverable amount of pledged properties and
securities collateral, past due information, past
collection history of borrowers, concentration risk
of borrowers, the Group’s actual loss experience
and subsequent settlement of the loan and interest
receivables.
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Key Audit Matters — continued

HRERER-#

Loss allowance for ECL on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the business of dealing in

securities margin financing

BEREEHERBELZRUNRECEFRBANCEERZERER

Related disclosures are included in notes 4, 6 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEHMBIREN TS 6R25FT B Z 1% %

Key Audit Matter
HREREE

At 31 March 2021, the accounts receivable from
margin clients arising from the business of dealing in
securities margin financing amounted to approximately
HK$3,607,283,000, net of loss allowance for ECL of
approximately HK$204,021,000. These represent 47% of
the total assets of the Group.
MEZZAE=H = o R S T
PR 2 IR WO ER R e S AR IE /5 493,607,283,000% TC
(1 P00 £ 5 48 2 s 1R 48 447 % 204,021,000 7T)
fh IR E AR 2 47% ©

Management assessed the provision for ECL of accounts
receivable from margin clients based on various inputs
such as loan-to-value percentage, default rate provided
by credit rating agency or other relevant information
together with forward-looking analysis.

T AR PR R B A T 20 L~ 5 B R AR AR B 3
P 28 A4 =R s A AR B 0B LA BT I 1 43 A <6 4% iy
N BECHER T i B WS AR W 4 2 5 MR JE I TR £ £ s 4R
14 -

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance and the significant
judgement in determining ECL on the accounts
receivable from margin clients.

7 S L 9 B S R A R BT R
A R 2 T BRI SOR R B RS IR TE 2 TR
Sy LY E PN

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AERHMNBETNAEEBRERSE

Our procedures, among others, included:

AR 2 R (B AR 740 4

o considering the relevance and reasonableness of
method adopted and key assumptions over the ECL
assessment, and the relevance and accuracy of the
source data used in the assessment;

% 8 TEH S B 15 AT AN b PR Ak 00 O 1% B AR
B2 M B ME AN A B > DL RGEREAS HP Y R
5 1% A B R0 B T

e evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
accounts receivable from margin clients and the
measurement of the loss allowance;

FEAR A5 8RR B AR T > AL O e R i R
a % F IR NG RSN BT

D checking, on a sample basis, the existence and
accuracy of the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral, to supporting documents and with
reference to closing market price;

HR A 34 ARSI 2 2% 5T Tl A Bl A R S S
FEAE BT DA R O] i [m] 45 80 2 MEHEME

* comparing, on a sample basis, the recoverable
amount of the securities collateral with the accounts
receivable from each individual margin clients to
determine whether there was any shortfall; and
A S HC A 2 AT i ] 45 A B A I R i AR R
B HREAE AR L > DA e 2 A A AT AT A
REH; &

*  assessing the sufficiency of the loss allowance
recognised with respect to the above shortfall, after
taking into account other factors such as credit
worthiness, past collection history and repayment
subsequent to reporting period.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s 2021 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

b
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obrtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken

to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation preclude public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 June 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is:

Fong Chin Lung
Practising Certificate Number: P07321
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mEEMEEINER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
—E-—F e e 23
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET AREP
Revenue from contracts with customers 75 i A 75 o YE I 55 1598
within HKFRS 15 P g SR Ol & 7 69,144 35,732
Revenue from other sources HoAb A IR 2 Wi 15 7 28,354 32,373
Interest revenue calculated using the A EEAERFREZ
effective interest method LPENTE 7 405,118 456,419
Revenue Uk % 502,616 524,524
Other operating income A 7 R A 9 11,262 6,203
Other gains and losses, net FHoAth e %5 & s 18 R A8 10 (28,119) (113,452)
Amortisation and depreciation By ST E 18 (18,658) (7,959)
Commission expenses 1 4 BA <2 (12,902) (7,020)
Net impairment loss on accounts JHE Wt i T 2 Y {1 M 1R v A
receivable 6 (55,703) (110,907)
(Provision) Reversal of net impairment 85K [ FAK 2 1 (B fis 18 1T 78 2
loss on loans and advances ($38 ) 35 [l 6 (11,100) 2,915
(Provision) Reversal of net impairment 58 il #% 23 72 {E 7 A o Ath 42 1]
loss on Mandatory FVOCI e RIEY TFi=REik e
(FEAH) 435 0 6 (6,300) 1,517
Staff costs B Tl 11 (27,320) (24,526)
Finance costs FRilE A 12 (4,953) (32,265)
Other expenses FoAth BH ¢ (42,281) (34,750)
Profit before taxation Bl AT = A 13 306,542 204,280
Income tax expense PREY N 15 (58,556) (47,552)
Profit for the year AEERR 247,986 156,728
Other comprehensive income (expense) H ft 2 H U 2% (B X2)
Items that are reclassified or may be HC% H ) B AT BE B R
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  E{H a2 HH
Exchange difference arising on o IR AN SEHS AL 2 T 2 A
translation of foreign operations 24,317 (12,237)
Fair value (loss) gain on Mandatory eR =S T = B ]|
FVOCI reclassified to profit or loss F2 5 S AR wH A H A 4 T U 4R
upon disposal 2N el (1) I 4 (1,177) 2,333
Fair value gain (loss) on Mandatory 50 N SRR A oAt 2 Tl
FVOCI i 2N A AR (s 1) 21,792 (21,440)
Deferred tax arising on revaluation of — H 58 A RAEER A A A2
Mandatory FVOCI T Wi 4 7E AR 2 A AE i IE 34 (3,401) 3,153
Items that will not be reclassified A H R E R a2 HH
to profit or loss
Fair value gain on Designated FVOCI 16 E 0N Ao v A HoAt 2
I /Ny WI=R & - 1,929
Deferred tax arising on revaluation of i #§ & % /A fe{H 51 A HoAth
Designated FVOCI 2T 4 2E A 2 4 JE B JE 34 - (318)
(Deficit) Surplus on revaluation of EERLNY R
properties (2,263) 1,114
Deferred tax arising on revaluation of 4 3£ 5 & A= 2 #E % Fi JH
properties 34 373 (184)
Total other comprehensive income AEEFHME2EKE
(expense) for the year (FAX) % 39,641 (25,650)
Total comprehensive income AEEEHNZHAEE
for the year 287,627 131,078

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A



eREkEMEEINER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-_ZT-_—F=fF=+—HIt&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
—e="%| —z-%Zg
Notes HK$’000 HK$’OO£)
B 5k FERT T#C
Profit for the year attributable to: UITMALTEBERFERR :
Owners of the Company ANEVHER N 189,640 118,295
Non-controlling interests I 4 e HE 2 58,346 38,433
247,986 156,728
Total comprehensive income UTATEAZEKSEHE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIE XN 228,913 93,781
Non-controlling interests I 2 I HE 2 58,714 37,297
287,627 131,078
HK cents HK cents
7l AL
Earnings per share BERER
Basic HEAR 17 1.96 1.22
Diluted i i 17 1.96 1.22
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A BRI R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZBE-—F=A=+—H
At 31 March 2021

2021 2020
—g--F| “x-Zk
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 FExT RPN
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property and equipment ENE L) 18 617,182 106,387
Investment properties G E 19 851,849 874,074
Intangible assets T 20 8,963 8,413
Goodwill R 2 21 17,441 15,441
Other assets HoAth & 23 7,046 4,392
Deposit paid for acquisition of W B — 5] f g N /) 22
a subsidiary BT 4 43 - 6,200
Deposits paid for acquisition W e ) 3 e R M 2
of property and equipment B/ 27 25,136 -
Deferred tax assets A SiE B T 34 1,692 4,450
Loans and advances S OE T 24 90,443 32,568
Investments wE 26 177,521 260,505
1,797,273 1,312,430
Current assets RBEE
Accounts receivable JEE A i TE 25 3,655,082 3,564,867
Loans and advances R R 24 416,906 656,645
Prepayments, deposits and AT ~ fies I
other receivables HAth E i 3K TE 27 48,330 56,942
Tax recoverable AT i e B I 2,318 23,312
Investments & 26 375,986 247,740
Bank balances — client accounts RATHESR - FIRP 28 656,240 445,239
Bank balances — general accounts SRATHEG — — IR
and cash I B4 29 658,914 905,175
5,813,776 5,899,920
Current liabilities REaE
Accounts payable R At H T 30 695,799 478,475
Accrued charges and other payables JRE T2 B Ath JRE A5 3B 32 8,787 7,734
Amounts due to non-controlling R 2 JB e 3R R A
shareholders 31 30,257 30,257
Tax payable R A A JH 150,722 139,203
Lease liabilities THE & RE 33 1,163 -
886,728 655,669
Net current assets REEEFE 4,927,048 5,244,251
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARG 6,724,321 6,556,681
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities THE A fE 33 377 —
Deferred tax liabilities A% S Bl IH B 15 34 8,185 7,820
8,562 7,820
NET ASSETS EEFH 6,715,759 6,548,861

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZZE=Z—F=A=+—H
At 31 March 2021

2021 2020
=& | —Z %
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
b 2 FHR Tt
Capital and reserves BEXR®EE

Share capital JBeA 35 966,270 966,270
Reserves ik AR 4,642,795 4,500,849

Equity attributable to owners AARBEEAELESR
of the Company 5,609,065 5,467,119
Non-controlling interests FEIERER 45 1,106,694 1,081,742
TOTAL EQUITY B 6,715,759 6,548,861

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 203 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
30 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hung Hon Man
HE XX
Director

HH

FR2H EH203H 2B AR E S
o TR T AR A = H L AR T
w0l MY ERAKESE

Cham Wai Ho, Anthony
BEEE
Director

#H
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AaEmEHER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

Atmbulable to equity holders of the Company

Non-comrollini interests

DARESEARL BhRE
Tnvestments
Tnvestments ~ revaluation
Property revaluation  reserve Share
Share Share Special  revaluation teserve (non- option  Translation  Retained
apil  premium  reserve teserve  (recycling)  recycling) reserve feserve profits Toul  Existing  Potential Total
WE AL AAEE MR
BE  ROEE GHEE EGEE BR(TER) BE(ER) B EXGE RERY 3 RE 43 3
Notes HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Wit Tt Tt T T TRt T TR T T Tt T fEx TEx
(note i) (notedi) — (note ii) (note i) (note)  (note 36) (note vi)
(k) sk Rk Ok MRy (e (M
Acl Aprl 2019 REF-ERA-H W60 2993199 INMT 16576 TG0 8T (1536)  LIA23  S465059  LO6LSH 106309 6630882
Profi for the year FEEER - - - - - - - 118,293 118,295 38433 - 156,728
Other comprehensive income (expense) £ 2 N3 (%)
Items that ae reclsifed or may be reclsified AFEFAGATEES
subsequently o profi or s Ve E2:lvd T
- Exchange difference arising on -HERINEREE
trandltion of foreign operations EiEH - - - - - - - (1,037) - (12237) - - (12237)
- Fair value gain on Mandarory FVOCI -~ EREHMEHR
reclassfied to profit or loss upon B7EHEAE
dispost AR ARG
Al - - - - - - - - B - - B
- Fair vlue loss on Mandatory FVOCI ~RER A AR
feamlEz M
i - - - - () - - - - (1) - - (1)
- Defered taxarsing on revauation of B EHLAR M
Mandatory FVOCI A2 TG E
74151 I - - - R ) - - - - - -
tems that will not be recosfid FEEH R ER.
1o profit or los BH
~Fair value gain on Designated FVOCI~— ~BZHAREFF AL
[e2miEz A
it - - - - - 3189 - - - 38 (1.260) - 1929
- Deferred tax arsing on revalvation of ~ ~ B[R L[5
Designated FVOCI ARA TG E
EURERR M - - - - - (191) - - - o - (318)
- Sutplus on revaluation of propertics -WEEHRR - - - 813 - - - - - §13 301 - 1,114
- Defered taxarsing on revauaion o ~4jEE (54 7 R
properties )] 34 - - - (134) - - - - - (134) 50) - (184
Total other comprehensive income Ef2ENE (RR)
(expense) 2] - - - 79 (1594 19% - - (451 (1,136) - (B6%0)
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ REE2ANE (H3%)
for the year 2] - - - 679 (15954) 19% - (237 11829 93,781 3797 - 131,078
Transactions with equity holders EREFEALRS
Contributions and disributions HERE
- Dividends paid t owners -[EEAREZRE 16 - - - - - - - - (169097 (169,097) - - (169,097)
- Dividends paid to non-contrlling -WERENBAR
interests of a non-wholly owned Fadiv divd
subsidiary i3 - - - - - - - - - - W - W)
_ - - - - - - - (169,007)  (169,097) (47.073) - (u63n)
Changes in ounership inteest BEEET
- Redemprion of convertble bonds -BRThRER 5 5 S 5 S S - - 77,50 7150 877 (106309) -
- Acquisiion of non-controlling inerests — ~ M 72
ina subsidiary FRRES - - - - 3 - - L (216) (216) 46 - (170)
- - - - - - - - 71376 71376 28763 (106,309) (170)
Disposal of subsidiares HEREAR - - - ' - 2081 - - (2,081) E 1,441 - 1441
At31 March 2000 ot 22
ZR=t-R 96670 293199 159,147 1759 (8,682) - 8776 (7600 1398756 S4TI9 108174 - 6548861

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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 BeRHEHR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_T-_—F=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

-t

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KRARRREARE
Investments
Property  revaluation Share Non-
Share Share Special  revaluation feserve option  Translation  Retained controlling
apital  premium feserve teserve  (recycling) feserve feserve profits Total interests Total
REEl
ES fE ERE

Bx  RBEE HHRE  EMEE  (1ER) B EXEE RELN 48 FeRER g
Now  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSOm0  HKSO00  HKSom0  HKSOO0  HKSom0  HKSO0  HKSoo0  HKSO0  HKS000

it Tér T T T fEx T fEx T fEx TEx

(note i) (note i) (note iii) (note iv) (note 36) (note vi)
= N N YN |
A1 April 2020 REZRENA-H 966,70 2,953,199 199,147 17,25 (8,682) 8776 (27,600 1398756 5467119 108742 6,548,861
Profc for the year REEE - - - - - - S I 189640 58346 247,986
Other comprehensive income (expense) ~ EH2 EWE (B%)
Items that are recasified or may be redusfid - KEEH A GATEEH
subsequently to proft or o Vo B3
- Exchange difference arising on -
translation of foreign operarions Eiz% - - - - - - U317 - U317 - U317
- Fair value loss on Mandatory FVOCI -hEREFMEERE
teclassified to profic or loss upon ZEHEAMEA
disposal 2 HlRE AR
R - - - - (1177) - - - (1177) - (1177)
- Fair value gain on Mandatory FVOCL— ~ WA AL ASL M
Al A B - - - - M - - -oum .M
- Deferred tax arising on revaluation of -EFEHEAAEHA
Mandatory FVOCI HibAmaEEZ
Eina 3 - - - - B - - - By - Gy
Items thatwill ot be ecasifed o profit o FETH A EER L FH
s
- Deficit on revaluation of properdis -WERfEL - - - (2,704) - - - - (2,704) 41 (2263)
- Deferred tax arising on revaluation of -WEEfEECER
properties ik 34 - - - 446 - - - - 446 (73) 373
Total other comprehensive income 2 ENE (B
(expense) L - - - (2058 17214 - W - ¥ 08 39641

Total comprehensive income (expense) for REERENE (BR)
a5

the year - - - (2,259) 17,014 1317 189,640 18,913 58,714 287,627

Transactions with equity holders HREREALRS
HEEAT

Contributions and distributions

- Dividends paid to owners -MEEAREZRE 16 - - - - - - - (3696 (86,969 - (86964)
- Dividends paid to non-controlling —WERENBATNE

interests of a non-wholly owned RiEakE 2 RE

subsidiary - - - - - - - - - (BT (33769)

- - - - - - - - (86,964 (86964) (33765 (120729)

Changes in ownership nierest Ll il
- Cancellaion of share option —HE R 36 - - - - - (8,776) - 8,776 - - -
- Acquisicion of non-controlling inerests ~ — i il rNiva
in a subsidiary FERER # - - - - - - - () ) 3 -
- - - - - (8,776) - 8773 () 3 -
At31 March 2021 RZBz-§=A=1-A 966270 2953199 159,147 14,997 8,53 - (3285) 1500205 569065 LI0G6% 6715759

AR AL

T T
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SETmBER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_T-_—F=A=1+—BHILFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

Notes:

(i)  Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

GET

consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over their par
value.

Under the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for distribution
or paying dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of
its: Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution of dividends, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The special reserve of the Group represents the following:

As set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 May 2002,
a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) was completed on
16 May 2002, which principally involved the exchange of shares
of the Company with all the issued share capital of Get Nice
Incorporated (“GN Incorporated”). An amount of approximately
HK$123,337,000 represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries together with the net book
value of a subordinated loan capitalised at the date on which they
were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, as
well as the difference between the consolidated sharcholders’ funds
of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the GN
Incorporated’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares.

As set out in the prospectus of Get Nice Financial Group Limited
(“GNFG”), a subsidiary of the Company, dated 24 March 2016
(the “Prospectus”), shareholders of the Company would be entitled
to one share of GNFG for every 40 shares of the Company held
on the Record Date (as defined in the Prospectus). An amount of
approximately HK$35,810,000 represents the difference between
the proportionate share of the interest in GNFG and the net assets
value on Record Date in relation to the distribution in specie
arising from the listing of the shares of GNFG on 8 April 2016.

Property revaluation reserve deals with revaluation adjustments of
property and equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve (recycling) represents the cumulative
net changes in the fair value of Mandatory FVOCI, if any, at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted.

Investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
accumulated net change in the fair value of Designated FVOCI that
have been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of the
amounts transferred to retained earnings when those investments are

disposed of.

Translation reserve of the Group comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from translation of the financial statements of the
Group’s subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #5 #1225 R A &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
= g —— ﬂi — ? — EF‘
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
R 5 FExT T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
Profit before taxation i AT ¥4 A 306,542 204,280
Adjustments for: AR
Amortisation and depreciation 61 K b 18 18,658 7,959
Write-off of accounts receivable i I A R TE 193 300
Write-off of loans and advances i R A K A - 205
Net impairment loss on accounts JRE WA T 2 Y (L M 1R v A
receivable 6 55,703 110,907
Provision (Reversal) of net impairment 83K [ ¥4 3K 2 I8k (H i 18
loss on loans and advances AR (B 1) 6 11,100 (2,915)
Provision (Reversal) of net impairment 5 il % 28 70 {H 7t A HoAth 4 i
loss on Mandatory FVOCI Wi i 2 ok s 4 R 8 AR
(% ) 6 6,300 (1,517)
Fair value changes on investment BEWEZ N REEH
properties 19 30,093 86,558
Fair value changes on financial assets A REFFA R Z
at FVPL BB E s RE ) 7,196 19,203
(Gain) Loss on disposal of Mandatory % 5@ il 3% 2 /2 (HEF A
FVOCI oAt A TH U A 2 (U )
5 18 (30) 732
(Gain) Loss on disposal / redemption of HEE A At AR
financial assets at FVPL ZaERERE 2 () kiR (7,067) 5,388
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries t B BT 2 A 2 i A - (2,181)
Gain on disposal of property and B W 2 R
equipment Wi 25 - (40)
Finance costs & A 12 4,953 32,265
Interest income FLE A (111,361) (152,537)
Dividend income BBl A (1,233) (2,038)
Operating cash flows before movements /2 % ¥ 4 5 8 jij 2
in working capital KA 4R 321,047 306,569
Changes in working capital g g/\ S
Other assets HoAb & (2,474) (875)
Accounts receivable JHE Wi B B (103,513) 31,347
Loans and advances Bk K R 170,764 399,697
Prepayments, deposits and other T A E ?’i
receivables e At 1 i 3 IE 11,424 (35,448)
Bank balances - client accounts SRATH B — B FIRF (199,599) 697,881
Accounts payable JREAH B TH 202,239 (717,728)
Accrued charges and other payables JRE T e ) At JE At I 436 (2,833)
Due to non-controlling shareholders IR e e B R 3 TA - (2,411)
Cash generated from operations K8 TR B 400,324 676,199
Interest income received EAL&IPEN PN 109,955 160,902
Interest paid on clients” accounts EFIRF ZEfH B (1,827) -
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid O A 7 v A 15 i (38,299) (66,525)
Opverseas tax paid e A ifg P B IE (881) (2,055)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REEBHMBERS
ACTIVITIES 469,272 768,521
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HERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_Z-_—4F=-A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi — ? — EF‘
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
i FET T#T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXE
Deposits paid for acquisition of Wi ) 3 T Rkl 2
property and equipment BT % 4 27 (25,136) —
Deposit paid for acquisition of a WAz M — ] B Jag 2 ) 2
subsidiary EENE A 43 - (6,200)
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL W E %A REFFABEZ
& B (141,957) (85,800)
Purchase of Mandatory FVOCI = R R G/ W | I AN = R
2 TH] AL i (63,323) (139,390)
Proceeds from disposal of Mandatory — H} % 5t fﬁ]?’%/\ﬁfﬁﬂ']\ﬁﬁﬂ
FVOCI imﬁzﬁnzlﬁﬁ%fk 75,826 116,488
Proceeds from redemption of financial [ IE] N U A AR
asset at FVPL & E E 2 g f‘k 71,838 300,000
Proceeds from disposal of financial asset %i’ﬁ/z}ﬁ,fﬁ FhAH
at FVPL & &R E 2 T f‘k 29,272 -
Refund from Designated FVOCI FEE S SEREA
Al i 2 2 8 2 - 4,484
Purchase of property and equipment i B ) S Pt 18 (3,117) (825)
Purchase of investment properties EE G ¥ 19 9,573) (20,752)
Net cash flows arising from acquisition i Ji Il J& 2 w) &£ 4= 2
of subsidiaries T4 Ui B VR R 43 (525,442) (69,692)
Net cash flows arising from disposal of 8 I} J& /A 7] & 4= 2
subsidiaries B4 U = VR A - 61,428
Proceeds from disposal of property and &4 %& A Z
equipment T 45 2K I - 40
Dividend received [ Llﬁ(ﬂx 1,233 2,038
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REXK (FFR) A&
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ZERRE (590,379) 161,819
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AR
Interest paid on convertible bonds E A — ) L vl B g 2 ] B AT 2
issued by a listed subsidiary REY S e P, - (2,639)
Interest paid 2 At (3,098) (1,087)
Dividends paid SERYids 16 (86,964) (169,097)
Dividends paid to non-controlling E A — [ JE 2 g 2 W
interests of a non-wholly owned I PR e A 2 IR
subsidiary (33,765) (47,273)
Redemption of convertible bonds JE [ — (] b T A s w88 A 1 2
issued by a listed subsidiary EELYIEE - (262,500)
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRAT A BT 159 3 8,086,789 320,000
Repayment of bank borrowings B BITE & (8,086,789) (370,000)
Lease payment & A K (752) -
Net cash flows arising from acquisition Y¥ iy — ] Bf o s W) 22
of non-controlling interests in FPERE AR A 2
a subsidiary T 45 Ui = VR - (170)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING R EXBFIAZ
ACTIVITIES FRE (124,579) (532,766)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
—F-— ﬂE — ? — E'S
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FERT Tt
Net (decrease) increase in cash and HeERBRESEEER
cash equivalents = O D) 8 (245,686) 397,574
Effect of foreign exchange rate A e e SR By 2 B B g A
changes, net (575) 1,730
Cash and cash equivalents at the HEHYREREAELEE
beginning of the reporting period HH 905,175 505,871
Cash and cash equivalents at the end HEHLRERRE
of the reporting period, represented HEHIER A :
by bank balances - general accounts R 1T &5 &} —
and cash —-REFRAE 658,914 905,175




72

o & B T SR SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Get Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was

incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Honeylink
Agents Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability of which the entire
share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man,
who is also a director of the Company. The Company’s
registered office is located at Second Floor, Century Yard,
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is
changed from 10th Floor, Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium
Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong to Ground
Floor to 3rd Floor, Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong with effect from 3
May 2021.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HKS$”), which is also the

functional currency of the Company.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,

unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2020 consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the following new / revised HKFRSs that are

relevant to the Group and effective from the current year.

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs
Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8: Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and align
the definition used across HKFRSs.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition of a
business and include new guidance to evaluate whether an

acquired process is substantive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for buildings, investment properties and investments, which
are measured at revalued amounts or fair value, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using

consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full upon consolidation. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obrtains control and continue to be consolidated until

the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of
liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an

acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of rotal comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests on the basis of existing
ownership interests and the possible exercise of conversion
of potential voting rights is not considered. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the existing non-controlling interests even if
this results in the existing non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary
and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or

others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured
at the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the

acquired business.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Goodwill — continued

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating

units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition
date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed of the acquired business over the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as an income
from bargain purchase. Any resulting gain or loss arising
from remeasuring the previously held equity interests in
the acquiree at the acquisition-date fair value is recognised
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as

appropriate.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that

there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which
is presented in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount
of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Property and equipment

Property and equipment, other than buildings, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to

profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Fair value is determined
by independent valuations which are performed annually.
Increases in valuation are credited to the property
revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of the
same asset and are thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are credited to profit or loss up to
the amount previously charged and thereafter to property

revaluation reserve.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property and equipment
over their estimated useful lives from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:
Leaschold land Shorter of the term of the
lease, or 26 years
Buildings Shorter of the term of the
lease, or 26 years
Leaschold improvements  Shorter of the term of the
lease, or 5 to 10 years
Motor vehicles and yacht 4 to 10 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in

the year in which the item is derecognised.
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held by owner
to earn rental income and / or for capital appreciation.
These include properties held for a currently undetermined
future use and properties that are held under operating
lease, which satisfy the definition of investment property

and carry at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a change

in fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is

derecognised.

Intangible assets

Trading rights

Trading rights confer eligibility on the Group to trade
on the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group
can use to generate cash flows. As a result, the trading
rights are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives because they are expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
trading rights will not be amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite. They will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may

be impaired.

The useful life of the trading rights is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is account for on a

prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Intangible assets — continued

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated at
costs less any impairment losses. Impairments are reviewed
annually or when there are any indications that the club

memberships have suffered impairment loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain

control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and an

associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
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Year ended 31 March 2021

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for accounts receivable without
a significant financing component within HKFRS 15)
are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the
case of financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Such accounts receivable are initially measured at their

transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“Mandatory FVOCI”); (iii) equity investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Designated FVOCI”) or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the

change in the business model.

1)  Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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o A T R R M A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

1)

2)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost — continued

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
accounts receivable, loans and advances, deposits and
other receivables, bank balances — client accounts and

bank balances — general accounts and cash.

Mandarory FVOCI
A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if

both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method, impairment gains or losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the financial asset is
derecognised. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or

loss as a reclassification adjustment.

The Group’s financial assets at Mandatory FVOCI

include quoted and unlisted debt securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE_Z2-_—FZA=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

C/ﬂ:sifimtz’on and measurement — continued

3)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that
are not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI,
including financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are
otherwise required to be measured at FVPL. They are
carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which does not include
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
Dividend or interest income is presented separately
from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(ii) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging

instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at
FVPL include listed equity securities, payment for life
insurance policy, unlisted convertible notes, unlisted

debt securities and unlisted investment funds.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of

the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
other payables and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders. All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on
financial assets that are measured at amortised cost,
Mandatory FVOCI, lease receivables, contract assets, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued to
which the impairment requirements apply in accordance
with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as
detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures
a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month
JECIL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.c.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life

of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the

entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or

more shared credit risk characteristics:
(i) past due information

(ii) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors
(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair

value reserve (recycling).
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o A T R R M A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following
criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(ii) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information is taken
into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating

(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 2. FESHBE-&

continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk — continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the

reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

if:
(a) it has a low risk of default;

(b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its

contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(c) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash

flow obligations.

As detailed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements,
the financial instruments determined to have low credit risk

includes bank balances — general accounts and debt securities.

Simplified approach of ECL

For accounts reccivable other than margin clients without
a significant financing component, the Group applies
a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data

about the following events:
(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a

deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B

EFT-_—FZA=ZT-HIEFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For classification
in the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
equivalents represent assets similar in nature to cash and

which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised when
the assets are let out and on the straight-line basis over the
lease term. Variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate are initially measured using the index or rate at
the commencement date and subsequently adjusted when
such index or rate changes. Such payments are recognised as
income on the straight-line basis over the lease term. Other
variable lease payments are recognised as income in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers those

payments occurs.

Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income from
investments is recognised when the shareholders™ rights to

receive payment have been established.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group

is as follows:
(a) Broking services

(b) Corporate finance services

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

TESHBR-&

ReEEEEEB
MEABHERERNT » HESHEE
H 6 n] BE R 5 OB Bla > B
68 (L 5 ) JL B A K 2 e 30 s O BBl M 4
%f AR A B IR LR 2 2

B 5 (H I H 95 BB v B AR H T
@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂZ%ﬁ% °

W 25 R
HE KA
KB EIE T 2Bl AR EE A
IR B s AHL 3 0 DA B B T AR o TR R
B — 4 Wl P AR 22 AT R A B AT SO B
i B A2 a4 o b AR
ﬁﬁ%%%%%i%i“ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
o WSS O ALY A DL L AR T R
ﬁWA At wT A A B AT RO A R %
S5 A K 2 SR IR DL B S ] e R 2
WA e

BE WA

A AR TSGR S T R A i ST AR
A& H 4 RilE E I R A T Bl R RR
R A S5 A B £ 97 1 2 AR A5 W] BE U ) AR
Ml BB SFEE TR &
2 R S WA A A T SR A B K T 2 A
Tl ST IRF AR o

BEBUBHREER EI1SHEERNEH
ZEF &R W

By 25 19 1 B
ACSE P SR A B IR A PR AT

(b) 3%l & R B



2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to

transfer to the customer either:

(a) agood or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that

is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern

of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct

if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or

service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the

contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.
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Year ended 31 March 2021

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition — continued

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria

is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obrtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

asset, and customer acceptance.
Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

e Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income at a point in time on a trade date basis;

e Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing commission
are recognised as income at a point in time in
accordance with the terms of the underlying agreement
or deal mandate when relevant significant act has been

completed;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition — continued

Revenue is recognised on the following bases: — continued

*  Proof of funds commission and clearing and handling
fee income are recognised at a point in time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered; and

e Advisory fee income is recognised over time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the

performance obligation.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss

allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in the currency of HK$, which is

also the Company’s functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B

ECE-—F=ZA=t+—HLHFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Foreign currency translation — continued

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are recognised in
profit or loss except for those arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or

losses are also recognised directly in equity.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the end of the reporting period;

* Income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate; and

e All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising from
a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.
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o A T R R M A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property and
equipment, intangible assets and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition of the impairment
loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting policy for

goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified

components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease

liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

comprises:

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

(¢) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are

incurred to produce inventories.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Leases — continued
As lessee — continued

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless
the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the
right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided
over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as

follows:
Office premises 2 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the

commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset, if any, during the lease term

that are not paid at the commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),

less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a

rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value

guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Leases — continued
As lessee — continued

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,

the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a

purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using

a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining

amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within
a lease contract as a lease separately from non-lease
components of the contract. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on a

relative stand-alone price basis.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Leases — continued
As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment

requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit costs

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.

LOﬂg service payment;

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method and discounted to its present value and after
deducting the fair value of any related assets, including

those retirement scheme benefits.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in

exchange for shares or rights over shares.

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Share-based payment transactions — continued
Equity-settled share-based transactions — continued

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits / accumulated losses.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods

or the counterparty renders the services.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.
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o A T R R M A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the years necessary to match the
grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended
to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income account / recognised
as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant
asset and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful

life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

The benefit of a government loan received at a below-market
rate of interest is treated as a government grant. The benefit
of the below-market rate of interest shall be measured as the
difference between the initial fair value of the loan and the

proceeds received.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Related parties — continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of cither the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

holding company of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Related parties — continued

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker, who is
the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, for
the purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and

geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new /
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and are not
yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not
early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2!"

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June
202112

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Usel!

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract”

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework?

BERUMBRELANRREE
ARG B R B B
s ELAFLA DL B A 4 A B B
TR AR A I 9 ¢ 1 (7 B T o A7 2 4R
) 2T A A T U B A
il -

T at e Q39 A SRR HE i — 5
e wWEMAHH BB
Q45T - 5
798 SHOE KA

16982 B3]
FRBHmE LN —FE A=A
16552 BT 18 2 201955 R I 7
FIBAR 4 B %2
U EEHEN S 16 HEE R 2 g
WZABFT e

i aatEEE37 BT A Z AR
Bz
F B A A AR 2 R AL

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

2021

2018-2020 Cycle®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-currentl

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies'”!

Definition of Accounting
Estimates!?!

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

21 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April

2021

2022

2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

B The effective date to be determined

The Board does not anticipate that the adoption of these

new / revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any

material impact on the result of the Group.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision

also affects future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
financial assets at amortised cost including accounts receivable,
loans and advances, other receivables and Mandatory FVOCI
by using various inputs and assumptions including risk of
a default and expected loss rate. The estimation involves
high degree of uncertainty which is based on the Group’s
historical information, recoverable amount of pledged
properties and securities collateral, past collection history
of borrowers, concentration risk of borrowers, the Group’s
actual loss experience, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of
the financial assets at amortised cost and Mandatory FVOCI.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used in estimating
ECL are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Loss allowance for ECL — continued
Fair value of investment properties / buildings at revaluation

The fair value of building in revaluation model and
investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom was determined by independent firms
of professional valuers and / or by the directors of the
Company. The valuation performed was arrived at with
reference to recent market transaction prices at the end
of reporting period and / or market rental value for
similar properties at similar locations with total fair value
of investment properties and buildings approximately
HK$851,849,000 (2020: HK$874,074,000) and
HK$91,305,000 (2020: HK$37,754,000) at 31 March
2021 respectively. Favourable or unfavourable changes
to recent market prices would result in (i) changes in
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in profit or loss; and (ii) change in the revaluation
amount of the buildings of the Group and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in other

comprehensive income.

Tax provision and tax losses

In year 2014, the hotel complex and certain assets related
to the hotel and entertainment operations (the “Assets”)
were disposed of, resulting in a gain on the disposal, and
realisation of fair value gains previously recognised in
respect of investment properties. The management has
made a tax provision in respect of these gains with the
assumptions that the proceeds from disposal and cost base
of the Assets has been approximately determined for the
purpose of calculating the gain on disposal for tax purposes.
In case where the local tax authority does not agree with
either the calculation of the cost base of the Assets or the
proceeds from disposal of the properties, recognition of
significant change in amounts of tax in the profit or loss

account may be required in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Tax provision and tax losses — continued

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
approximately HK$143,096,000 (2020: HK$105,746,000)
due to the majority of the balances are subject to further
approval by the local tax authority. In addition, the
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are more than expected, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such recognition takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt when applicable,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital as disclosed in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements and reserves as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall

strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and are
required to comply with the financial resources requirements
according to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The Group’s
regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up share
capital requirements and liquid capital requirements under
the SE(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a daily basis,
the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure compliance
with the minimum liquid capital requirements under the
SE(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have complied with
the capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R throughout
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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Year ended 31 March 2021

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. TEIA
Categories of financial instruments EEEL@MTHE
2021 2020
—®o-F | —oEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET TH T
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVPL 2y e fast AR 2
4 Rl E 295,934 253,215
Amortised cost i 6 LA (a) 5,549,563 5,666,447
Mandatory FVOCI 98 % A FUAEEEA
Ho At 2 1 i 25 257,573 255,030
Financial liabilities EMmERE
Amortised cost A8 4 B A (b) (734,694) (516,466)
Notes: it 53

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost include accounts receivable,
loans and advances, deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments), bank balances — client accounts and bank

balances — general accounts and cash.

(b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost include accounts
payable, accrued charges and other payables (excluding
receipt in advance) and amounts due to non-controlling

shareholders.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments, accounts receivable, loans and advances,
deposits and other receivables, bank balances and cash,
accounts payable, other payables and amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.
y y

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate cash and cash equivalents, life
insurance policy and variable-rate loans to independent
third parties. The management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk on variable-rate bank balances,
life insurance policy and variable-rate loans as a result of
the change of market interest rate is insignificant due to low
interest rates on bank balances and insignificant balance of
variable-rate loans at the end of the reporting period, thus
no sensitivity analysis is prepared for cash flow interest rate

risk.

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its

investments in listed equity securities and quoted debt
securities. The directors of the Company manage the
exposure by closely monitoring the portfolio of these
financial instruments. The fair value of these financial
instruments will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in the closing market prices

of the relevant listed equity and debt securities.
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Year ended 31 March 2021

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk — continued
Other price risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity and debt price risks at the end of the
reporting period. If the prices of the respective listed equity
instruments had been 10% (2020: 10%) higher / lower, and
held other variables constant, the Group’s profit after taxation
for the year would increase / decrease by approximately
HK$9,785,000 (2020: HK$8,974,000), as a result of changes
in the fair value of listed equity securities. If the prices of the
respective quoted debt instruments had been 10% (2020:
10%) higher / lower, and held other variables constant, the
Group’s other comprehensive income for the year would
increase / decrease by approximately HK$21,507,000 (2020:
HK$20,777,000), as a result of changes in the fair value of

quoted debt securities.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of the
transactions and financial assets and liabilities of the group
entities are denominated in the functional currencies of
the respective entities and, in the case of Macau Pataca
(“MOP”) and United States dollars (“USD”), the exposures
are limited as MOP are pegged to HK$ and HKS is pegged
to USD. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has been

presented on the currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of

impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to credit

risk.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

The Group exposes to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Impairment allowances are made for losses that are
expected at the end of the reporting period. Significant
changes in the economy or environment of a particular
industry segment could result in losses that are different
from those provided for at the end of the reporting
period. Management therefore carefully manages its
exposure to credit risk. The Group’s internal credit risk
grading assessment for financial assets, except for accounts
receivable under HKFRS 15, compiled as the following

categories:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk — continued

Internal credit Description ECL

rating treatment

Performing The balances that ~ 12-month
have not had a (Normal

significant increase  Credit
in credit risk and ~ Quality)
12-month ECL

will be recognised

Underperforming  The balances Lifetime
that have had (Significant
a significant increase in
increase in credit Credit Risk)

risk but not
credit-impaired
and for which the
lifetime ECL will

be recognised

Not performing The balances that  Lifetime
have objective (Credit-
evidence of impaired)

impairment and
for which the
lifetime ECL will

be recognised

Write-off The balances that  Amount is
have evidence written off
indicating that
the debtor is in
severe financial
difficulty and the
Group has no
realistic prospect of

recovery
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients

The Group provides financing services only to recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all these margin clients are subject to credit verification
procedures. The margin loans are secured by pledged
marketable securities and margin facilities are set to
ensure that certain proportion of the fair value of pledged
marketable securities of the individual margin clients is

higher than the corresponding outstanding loans.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 68% (2020:
58%) of the total accounts receivable from margin clients

was due from the Group’s ten largest margin clients.

No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of business of

securities margin financing.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of
clients and the accounts receivable from margin clients
are categorised by common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts

due in accordance with the contractual terms.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
whether the financial asset is credit-impaired and the
amount of loss given default, the Group has taken into
account the credit quality of margin clients, the collateral
to accounts receivable balances ratio, amount of margin
shortfall of margin clients and pledged marketable securities
and adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry, in estimating the probability of default of these
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in each
case. There was no change in the estimation techniques or

methodology made during the year.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HERAREEEEREE &
continued
Credit risk — continued FERE-&
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued EURRELEF A&
The Group has established a margin client credit risk AEMOETRBSFF GRS
classification system and performs credit risk management ARG > WARBARBEEF 8 (5FE
based on margin client classification in one of three SRNEAE B R o — )
categories of internal credit rating. The information about 15 B Jml B i L o A s R 2 E R
the ECL for the accounts receivable from margin clients PR S 8 % P AR TE /Y TH 15 B0 18 &R
at the end of the reporting period is summarised below. BEA AN R o & E 8 EA R RE - FIN
After considering the above factors, net impairment loss of L fe 5 98 (L s 18 1 #R 4955,703,0007 7T
approximately HK$55,703,000 (2020: HK$110,907,000) (% EAF 1 110,907,000 78) ©

was recognised during the year.

At 31 March 2021 R=-ZEB=-—-F=A=+-—H
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance amount
A BEEFTR EHEEEEREE BEREE EEBE FIREE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F F 5 5
Performing J& #J 12-month 121 J 3,476,320 16,313 3,460,007
Underperforming & #115 DL RAE  Lifetime 4 70,578 10,953 59,625
Not performing N ES) Lifetime 2= 1 264,406 176,755 87,651
3,811,304 204,021 3,607,283

At 31 March 2020 N R OBE=ZA=+—H
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance amount
RN TE B B0 s 15 2 e AR T {E i 18 3 445 T AR T
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
Tt Tt F il
Performing J& #J H1 12-month 121 H 3,400,141 16,408 3,383,733
Underperforming J& )1 LK Lifetime 2 104,030 7,822 96,208
Not performing N ] Lifetime % 188,123 124,088 64,035
3,692,294 148,318 3,543,976
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BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIT A&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — MEEMREEREERBKX &
continued
Credit risk — continued FERK-&
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued EURELEFRE &
At 31 March 2021, the Group recognised loss allowance of NEBE D —FEZH=1—H o AEH
approximately HK$204,021,000 (2020: HK$148,318,000) MENMAE S EPFIEEBRERR
on its accounts receivable from margin clients. The i #1204,021,000% 76 (—F —FA4E ¢
movement in the loss allowance for accounts receivable 148,318,0004 7T) ° 4F A MEU IR TS 4 &
from margin clients during the year is summarised below. JF IR TH B e R A SR B R AN o
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-E-_—F=ZHA=1+—RHLEE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
ERRS
BEFSE 2HENEESR
Performing Underperforming  Not performing Total
EHs  BABRXE TEH @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER ThER TEx TER
At the beginning of the reporting period A H % H1¥) 16,408 7,822 124,088 148,318
(Decrease) Increase in allowance, net BAl (8% g (95) 3,131 52,667 55,703
At the end of the reporting period PR K 16,313 10,953 176,755 204,021
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE EZEE=H=+—HIL4FEE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
124 7 7
FHEER 2HENERER
Performing  Underperforming ~ Not performing Total
B BB TEH wt
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
T T T T
At the beginning of the reporting period IR A 17,702 3,795 15,914 37,411
(Decrease) Increase in allowance, net M (D) B8 58 (1,294) 4,027 108,174 110,907
At the end of the reporting period Jig: & FR 16,408 7,822 124,088 148,318
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B

ECE-—F=ZA=t+—HLHFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of the balances contributed to the increase in the

loss allowance during the year:

(i) Increase in shortfall portion of margin loans which
are not fully secured amounted to approximately
HK$218,945,000 (2020: HK$186,762,000); and

(i) Additional loss allowance for not performing category of
approximately HK$31,960,000 (2020: HK$89,556,000)
as a result of difficulties on repayment by accounts

receivable from margin clients.

The Group has pledged securities as collateral amounted to
approximately HK$80,018,000 (2020: HK$48,634,000)
in respect of the credit-impaired accounts receivable from

margin clients.

Loans and advances

Management has money lending policies in place and the
exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. The Group grants loans only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
these borrowers are subject to credit verification procedures.
Also, the Group has other monitoring procedures to ensure

that follow-up action is promptly taken to recover overdue

debts.

At 31 March 2021, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 60% (2020: 50%) of total loans and advances was
due from the Group’s five largest borrowers, within the

money lending segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Loans and advances — continued

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit
loss experience of the borrowers and the financial position
of the counterparties by reference to, among others, the
background search for individual clients, amount of pledged
assets, their management or audited accounts or available
press information, adjusted for forward-looking factors that
are specific to the debtors and general economic conditions
of the industry in which the counterparties operate, in
estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in each case. There
was no change in the estimation techniques or methodology

made during the year.

The Group has established a loan credit risk classification
system and performs credit risk management based on
loan classification in one of three categories of internal
credit rating. The information about the ECL for the loan
receivables at the end of the reporting period is summarised
below. After considering the above factors, provision of
net impairment loss of approximately HK$11,100,000
(2020: reversal of net impairment loss of approximately
HK$2,915,000) was recognised during the year.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIT A&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HERAREEEEREE &
continued
Credit risk — continued FERKR-&
Loans and advances — continued BHRBHE—F
At 31 March 2021 R-EBE-_—F=HA=+-—H
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance amount
ARG EHEEEREE HWERHEE BEEE FEREE
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Performing J& %1 1 12-month 121# A 350,143 2,957 347,186
Underperforming J& #J1% DL K A£ Lifetime 4 ] 175,650 15,487 160,163
Not performing NGRS Lifetime & ] 3,500 3,500 -
529,293 21,944 507,349
At 31 March 2020 N EEZA=+—H
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance amount
A A B RT SR TE W5 B 15 AL AR T E Jhe PR 4 A T AR T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T#IT T#T T#IT

Performing J& %) 12-month 121 A 535,692 5,667 530,025
Underperforming Ji& #7115 ¥t X % Lifetime 4= ] 160,865 1,677 159,188
Not performing A~ J& %] Lifetime 4 3,500 3,500 -

700,057 10,844 689,213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk — continued

Loans and advances — continued

Ageing analysis

HE-_T-_—F=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2021
6. ETWMIAE &
BRRAKREREERBK-&
FEERK-&

BEMRBHN—E
RRiie 2 AT

Ageing analysis of loan receivables (net of loss allowance)

prepared based on loan commencement date set out in the

JE B R (KR R B R 1 1R RIE A
B & A0 BT 2 BB U B AR R 2 R

relevant contracts is as follows: Y I
2021 2020
—EB=-—F R
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET T T
Less than 1 month K EDE! 9,953 49,402
1 to 3 months 12318 1 12,229 57,200
4 to 6 months 47 61 H - 80,967
7 to 12 months 72 12M8 A 165,438 203,426
Over 12 months 121 A 2Lk 319,729 298,218
At the end of the reporting period A i B R 507,349 689,213

Ageing analysis of loan receivables (net of loss allowance)

prepared based on contractual due date is as follows:

JE WS R (K AT BR s 1R B AR AR
KB H R R BRE AT IR

2021 2020

S

HK$’000 HK$°000

FERT Tt

Not yet past due M7 o 41 17 503,620 685,895
Less than 1 month past due i@ B 0 i 148 A 750 500
1 to 3 months past due w1 E 318 A - 2,818
Over 3 months past due w3 4E H DLk 2,979 -
At the end of the reporting period A i AR 507,349 689,213
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIT A&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HERAREEEEREE &
continued
Credit risk — continued FERR-&
Loans and advances — continued BFRBH—EF
At 31 March 2021, the Group recognised loss allowance of N E T —FE=ZH=+—H K&
approximately HK$21,944,000 (2020: HK$10,844,000) on Bl B R B R ORE GRS 4E B A
its loans and advances. The movement in the loss allowance 21,944,000% 6 ( & LA L &)
for loans and advances during the year is summarised below. 10,844,000%% JC) ° 4 (A B8 3k J B 31Y

s 1R % A S B LA AN S

Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-E-_—G=ZA=1+—HLEE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
1EAEHS
GEER 2HEHEESR
Performing Underperforming  Not performing Total
BHR  EOBRRE TEH @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Thn TEn TEn TER
At the beginning of the reporting period R A 5,667 1,677 3,500 10,844
(Decrease) Increase in allowance, net B (D) EnEE (2,710) 13,810 - 11,100
At the end of the reporting period R A 2,957 15,487 3,500 21,944
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_EF _FE=H=+T—HIL4EE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
128 A
fFEER 2GR
Performing  Underperforming  Not performing Total
B B RE REH) st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
T T T T
At the beginning of the reporting period ~ FAH 5 ¥ 2,127 13,421 13,588 29,136
Increase (Decrease) in allowance, net B G >) 8 3,550 (11,580) 5,115 (2,915)
Amount written off GE (10) (164) (15,203) (15,377)
At the end of the reporting period R A 5,667 1,677 3,500 10,844
At 31 March 2021, the significant increase in credit risk MoE - —F£=H=+—H &
refers to increase in rate for exposure at default due to the P 20 28 118 0 2 eh R S BN Y B S 3R B
deterioration of financial performance of the borrower. i 2 T A SR A R B R BT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Loans and advances — continued

At 31 March 2021, no loss allowance was recognised for
loans and advances with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$135,765,000 (2020: HK$99,535,000) due to the
relevant pledged assets with fair value of approximately
HK$369,240,000 (2020: HK$619,752,000).

The management closely monitor the credit quality of the
loans and there are no indications that the loan receivables

neither past due nor impaired will be uncollectible.

Debt securities

The Group invests only on quoted and liquid debt securities
with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least B3
from Moody’s. Most of the debt securities are considered
having low credit risk based on the borrowers’ strong

capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience over the past years
and the financial position of the counterparties by reference
to, among others, their management or audited accounts
and available press information, adjusted for general
economic conditions and future prospects of the industry
in which the counterparties operate and various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information such
as information published by economic expert reports,
financial analysts and government bodies in estimating
the probability of default of these financial assets, as well
as the loss upon default in each case. The management of
the Group considers the ECL of these financial assets to be
insignificant after taking into account the financial position

and credit quality of the counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or
methodology made during the year. After considering
the above factors, provision of net impairment loss of
approximately HK$6,300,000 (2020: reversal of net
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,517,000) was

recognised during the year.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. TRITH-&

MEERBREEEERBE-&

EERK-&

BHRBH—F
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B

EFT-_—FZA=ZT-HIEFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIA-#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HERAREEEEREE &
continued
Credit risk — continued EERK-&
Debt securities — continued EEEHF—E
The gross carrying amounts of the financial assets, by credit T A= B AL B BT A [ B 1 4 K E

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

risk rating grades, are as follows:

At 31 March 2021

M AR (E A

Gross carrying

Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount
A EB 1S B AR EHEEBERESE HEREE
HK$°000

FET

Performing J& #J 12-month 121 H 250,138
Underperforming J& #7115 DL K AE Lifetime 4= ] -
Not performing N ] Lifetime 4= 7,435
257,573

At 31 March 2020

Internal credit rating

AT B AT )

Performing J& %)
Underperforming J& #J 1% ¥t X f#
Not performing NIE#)

AR CEF A Z+—H

Gross carrying

Basis of ECL amount
TG Bl 1 A A AR T A
HK$’000

T

12-month 121 H 255,030

Lifetime 4 -

Lifetime 2 -

255,030

Note:

(i)  The Group monitors whether there has been a significant () A< ) 0 B A A A A SR AR ST

increase in credit risk at the reporting date by reviewing

the latest published ratings and assessing whether there is

i 5 7 2~ A B4 T 8 BTG AT T Al FIAR
PO 75 A A 7 A A DA B s B L B A

any downgrade on the latest published ratings compared to TR - R E 4= H

previous assessment date. External credit ratings over the
Group’s debt securities amounted to HK$7,435,000 was

RS

=+ —HIEEE > 7,435,000 JC 2 4
%@%%%%z%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁa%ﬁ

withdrawn during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil). [\ (T2 A AE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIA—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — SRR EEEERE —
continued
Credit risk — continued EERKE-&
Debt securities — continued EH5EF—
At 31 March 2021, the Group recognised loss allowance of N - —FE=ZH=+—H  KXEH
approximately HK$14,793,000 (2020: HK$8,467,000) on AL OE 4% 2 Fo B R AR 4R 2 S O
its debt securities in Mandatory FVOCI. The movement in TfE 58 e 18 B 445 414,793,000 70 (%
the loss allowance for these debt securities during the year is TRAE 1 8,467,000% 70) o AF A I A
summarised below. B s e R B T -
The movement of the loss allowance, by measurement basis RIE WG S R AR . iR
of ECL, is as follows: R s
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-Z-_—F=ZA=+t—HLEFE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
128 A B4
FEER rHEAEERR
Performing Underperforming  Not performing Total
BAw  ERBERXHE TEH @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TR THER TER
At the beginning of the reporting period At 5 ) 8,467 - - 8,467
(Decrease) Increase in allowance, net T CRD) B (1,135) - 7,435 6,300
Exchange realignment B 3, o8 2 26 - - 26
At the end of the reporting period AR K 7,358 - 7,435 14,793
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_EF_FHE=H=+—HILFEE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
121 A #
fri S 8 MG R
Performing  Underperforming ~ Not performing Total
Bah  BABRKE Nt 5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
T Tt Tl T
At the beginning of the reporting period IR 14 7,694 2,341 - 10,035
Increase (Decrease) in allowance, net BB (D) B 824 (2,341) - (1,517)
Exchange realignment W 51, 7 (51) i i (1)
At the end of the reporting period i TR ES 8,467 - = 8,467
The Group has no collateral in respect of these debt ZIK% 1] Slf7 48 A5 G 45 5 5 o8 05 R A K
securities. T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B

ECE-—F=ZA=t+—HLHFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Other receivables

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit
loss experience, financial information and adjusted for
forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the counterparties operate, in estimating the probability
of default of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon
default in each case. There was no change in the estimation

techniques or methodology made during the year.

After considering the above factors, the management assess
that the other receivables have not had a significant increase
in credit risk and 12-month ECL will be recognised. The
management of the Group considers the 12-month ECL of
other receivables to be insignificant, so no loss allowance

was recognised during the year.
The Group does not hold any collateral over the balances.

Deposits with financial institutions

The credit risk on bank balances — general accounts and
cash is limited because majority of the counterparties are
financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and state-owned banks
with good reputation. No loss allowance was recognised for

both years.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the
liquidity gap. The Group manages its liquidity risk through
maintaining sufficient cash. As part of the measures to
safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained substantial
stand-by banking facilities, diversifying the funding sources

and spreading out the maturity dates.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

tRMITHEH-&
MREMEERERRE &

FERR-&

At W HE

il TS 45 5 18 M 7BERE B A0 o ke
DA A5 B g A7 77 853 00 T DA % <
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A R s 1R AC R S B
b S AR S AR AE AN R
7 8 T AEAT 3 00— M K G A A
IR o DU R % 5 4 I R A
o NELWUTEANBEL - FR
JIr VR A 4 379 5007 8 Sl 4 5 B o

KEE gL, B R > B AL AL R
W K TE 2 AR B B Sl 4 B 3 > Sl
A HERR 124 A UG Bk 1R o A E
7 LT R 2 A B WA TH 2 124 H TH
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7 B 180 37 488 00 4 B F<p A AT SIS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — MEEMREEREERBKX &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued REBESREK &
Liquidity and interest risk tables it B B R F 5 g Y %
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining N R A A I R A R
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and lease R 5 o 4 SR R 2 B B B A AR ©
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The tables AR A AR S FH A R G B
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows Bl Ui i (P A 42 [ ] g R R AR
of financial liabilities and lease liabilities according to the Z B MmE - TREFEFE LA
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. Hemm - [ RWBEHR SR 4] —
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. ) B[ i 45 A R Z IR T (B ] — 31 2 [
The difference between the “Total undiscounted cash flows” M RERAHLEBEERKEL
column and the “Carrying amount at the end of reporting Bl o A B B4 R I A
period” column represents the future contractual cash B R E AR AR S AR
flows attributable to the instrument which are not included TR -
in the carrying amount of the financial liabilities and
lease liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
Carrying
amount at
Repayable More than Total  the end of the
Repayable in less than Within 1 year but less undiscounted reporting
on demand 1 month lyear than5years  cash flows period
AEREX  AMEA 15% ABRRE REEHK
& RiEE 1£R BsEm  RERE 2KRAE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
At 31 March 2021 R-B=-F
ZA=t-H
Accounts payable TEfRE 303,348 392,458 - - 695,806 695,799
Accrued charges and T il
other payables FA R 508 - 8,638 - - 8,638 8,638
Amounts due to non-controlling X F¥E I it R FR
shareholders 30,257 - - - 30,257 30,257
Lease Liabilities HEAR - 108 1,075 378 1,561 1,540
333,605 401,204 1,075 378 736,262 736,234
Annual Report 2021 £k 123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

6. TRTH-&

MERBREEEERBIEK-&

RBESER-&
LB B 2 R g 7Y 7 — A

Carrying
amount at
Repayable Total  theend of
Repayable in less than Within  undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month lyear  cash flows period
ATk AR AREBE  REEHA
g% i R REAE ZRAE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tin Tix Tin T Tix

At 31 March 2020 REZ-ZEZJ=1—H
Accounts payable TEfH iR 358,726 119,769 - 478,495 478,475
Accrued charges and other payables Rt 8 SR 5O - 7,734 - 7,734 7,734
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders /3 72 1t f 2 30,257 - - 30,257 30,257
388,983 127,503 - 516,486 516,466

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity
for certain financial assets. The tables below have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities
of the financial assets, including interests that will be
earned on those assets, except for those financial assets
which are not repayable on demand. The analysis is based
on when the Group anticipates that the cash flows will
occur. The difference between the “Total undiscounted
cash flows” column and the “Carrying amount at the end
of reporting period” column represents the possible future
cash flows attributable to the instrument which are not
included in the carrying amount of the financial asset on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The inclusion
of information on financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group’s liquidity risk management as the

liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

AR EE A SR B T E 2 T
P H o N RARPEE M E RGBS
RPN UL (35 7% 55 7 S B 2 A
) o M AL SRR 2
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B 45 Ui B A P AT IR L BT A o TR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

W
-fl;.k\tlll |

x & BT 8 3R B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. $RITH-&
BREEMEERERKE &

RBESER-&

LB B 2 T 5 B 9 7 — A

Carrying
Repayable amount at
Repayable ~ Repayable between  Repayable  Repayable Total  the end of
Repayable in less than between 3 months between between  More than undiscounted  the reporting
on demand Imonth Ito3months  tolyear Ito2years 2to5years 5 years Undated ~ cash flows period
AR R AR AR AR RER
AE  1ERR 1EEAR 3EAE  12FR 1E5ER ReRE RESER
EXEE fE B8 1EnfEE #E g BEsE 3] BE  2BEE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HEK$000 HKS$'000
T THR THR T TR THR THR TEn THR Thr
At 31 March 2021 RZB=-%
ZA=t+-H
Accounts receivable, net FEgRA T 5 3,608,375 47,853 - - - - - - 3656228 3,655,082
Bank balances - general RIT4R-——k
accounts and cash EFREE 587,172 71,746 - - - - - - 658,918 658,914
Bank balances - client accounts 75 Bk —
EFEF 14433 541,807 - - - - - - 636240 656,240
Loans and advances, net LeVE R 5,453 5519 150,640 304234 91,629 18,248 - - TR 507349
Deposits and other receivables 54 R LM
W 71978 - - - - - - - 71,978 71,978
Financial assets at FVPL BAREFARE
LEMAE - 18462 101911 54,832 - - - 16240 301445 295934
Mandatory FVOCI BEA AR A
HRERE - 14707 23,953 7169 120528 40,349 7,763 15500 294498 257,573
4,387,411 700,094 276,513 430,762 212,157 58,597 7,763 141,742 6,215,039 6,103,070
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. TMITH-H&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — BERAREEEEREE &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued REBEELER &
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued i B B K B 91 7 — A
Carrying
Repayable amount at
Repayable ~ Repayable between  Repayable  Repayable Towl  theend of
Repayable in less than | between 3 months to between between ~ More than undiscounted  the reporting
on demand month 1 103 months lyear  Ttolyears 2t years 5 years Undated  cash flows period
T T T i
A EAR EEAR SEAE IEER ESER RENE  REEHE
TREE g fE  EREE fi fE  EhsE L A% ko
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T Tt Titx T T Tt T T T Titx
At 31 March 2020 S
=A=t-H
Accounts receivable, net BlRA T 3,544,786 20,892 - - - - - - 3565678 3,564,867
Bank balances - Rirkith-
general accounts and cash —BRF R
R SBYT 367796 14,063 - - - - - 905706 905175
Bank balances - client accounts ~ $R{THEBR—
EFEKR 50869 19453 - - - - - - s 4503
Loans and advances, net FH R B 4838 103,369 249,066 304413 81,728 3,054 - - 746,668 089,213
Deposits and other receivables 4
AEREE 61953 - - - - - - -6 61,953
Financial assets at FVPL TAREAR
iz s HEE - 195 19,695 - - - S G B o< 31 IS Wib)
Mandatory FVOCI Wi R B
M2
i - 1,541 20,301 31,565 128,718 102,473 8,341 21,005 313,944 255,030
4,386,293 088,325 303,125 335,978 210,446 105,727 8,341 B34435 6202670 6,174,692
Fair value measurements IL\\ J‘l: E E—I- E

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these
financial statements on a recurring basis across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of

inputs are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

Group can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

PATE 7 DL S B M 2 0 e (e R R SR
WA REEE AR T E
o T B i E N BB 1398 40 2 [ AT A P
FEZ = MEHREI > A R EF
BRI E 2 RBEREEEER L
i B T A5 AR 0 0) o A BOE

A EWT

o BB (REER) - ARERE R
H 39 AT B A 2 A R O E el A RO

i BT 2 kB CREEER

%)

o B HIEAEZWREUS - E
FE B A fE T B e H A
2 A g R

o H3E (REES) - EERAEZ
0 05 B 25 g A\ SR



i ﬁ

S BT R R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T-_—F=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIT A&
Fair value measurements AREFTE-E
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) LA FEZ 2[5 E
Significant Correlation between
Fairvalue  Valuation techniquesand ~ unobservable significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March ~ hierarchy ~ key inputs inputs inputs and fair value
BEMRLEEL
RZA=t-A EZMALEE BABEHOAEZ
SREE ZARE MAEER HERNRIZBAEE Z818E REBE
2021 2020
go-f | 3o%k
HK$°000 HK$000
THEr T
Mandatory FVOCI
BHEBRDAETA
Ath2ENE
- Quoted debt securities 257,573 248,827 Level 2 Quoted prices from brokers ~ N/A N/A
- biEHE R L) B HiE REH AR
— Unlisted debt securities - 6,203 Level 2 Quoted prices from broker N/A N/A
- LR R ElE B R AR AR
Financial assets at FVPL
BAREGABEZ
SREE
- Unlisted investments 2,061 — Level 3 Surrender cash value N/A N/A
~ Payment for life insurance (including guaranteed
policy interest), reported by the
financial institution on a
regular basis
LR E 30 BRESEME (QFERE  TER AR
- \FEREZ 3 fE) » h—HEREE
& MIER
- Listed equity securities 117,184 107,465 Level 1 Quoted prices in an active N/A N/A
market
- RS 1 RS2 e R AR
— Unlisted convertible notes - 19,785 Level 3 Discounted cash flow method ~ N/A (2020: N/A (2020: Discount rate
and binomial tree model, discount rate of  increases/decreases by
based on spot price, 12.96%) 5%, fair value would
volatility and discount rate decrease/increase
by approximately
HK$105,000/
HK$12,000)
ANV F3JE HRALHEER A RER (2FS FEBCEZF
HRBER T LB T ERRE  BERLR/ FHs%
e ~ e B 12.96%) ARERED /B
#1105,000 ./
12,0001 10)
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HE_Z-_—F=ZA=1+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Fair value measurements — continued

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value — continued

Financial assets

TREE

— Unlisted convertible notes

AN LTS

~ Unlisted debt securities
(subject to carly redemption)

- L ERES
([ {EFIE M)

- Unlisted investment funds

R ANE§ ¢ %

Fair value
Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy
R=A=+-H
ZARE MEER
2021 2020
:2: - $ — :' R @
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER T
13,815 - Level 2
£l
116,558 85,740 Level 3
F3JE
46,316 40,225 Level 2

05

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

6. $RITH-&
/L\\ L,{E—l-; fﬁﬁ
() ARG EEZ S S E—

Valuation techniques and
key inputs

fHERTRTEBALE

Determined by the

management by reference
to available market
information adjusted to
reflect liquidity of the
investments.

IS a8 i A

REE  ErC e
TSI STAE i

Discounted cash flow method

and binomial tree model
based on spot price,
volatility and discount rate

WAB B B o T

T o
i BB S

Net asset value

HEFE

Significant

unobservable

inputs

ERMBERR

PA N ¢ ]

N/A

AR

Discount rate
from 11.51

% to

11.52% (2020:

12.54%)

BB RS

1%

B11.52% (=%

ZFAE

N/A
AR

12.54%)

Correlation between
significant unobservable
inputs and fair value
EEMALERY
BARBHEMNEZ
HEB&

N/A

A

Discount rate increases/
decreases by 5% (2020:
5%), fair value would
decrease/increase
by approximately
HK$1,279,000/
HK$823,000 (2020:
approximately
HK$3,009,000/
HK$2,211,000)

BEBE LT /T B
(ZEZFAE 5%)
NERED /%
f#1,279,000i ¢
/823000870 (%=
A+ 413,009,000 16
/2,011,000 )

N/A
AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. TMI A&
Fair value measurements — continued NRAEFE-B
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value — continued (i) AR MEFEZ &[5 E 4

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
fair value measurement during years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020. There were transfers between Level 2
and Level 3 fair value measurements during the year
ended 31 March 2021 (2020: No transfers between

Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements).

The details of the movements of the fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

MEEF D FE R R FE
A=t —HIEEE > BiE R
28 2 e E wh R 2 ]Sl RS
PEE-E - FE=ZA=1—H
14 BE - 5208 K 5R30E o fefd
BZWMAEE (CF FF  H2
J& I 5538 Ox S e w2 ] Slf i

) o

MEE T D ER R TE
A=t HIFESBEAR
B #R b 25308 2 A e R R A
kg

HK$’000
T
At 1 April 2019 A UFENHA —H 324,899
Purchases B 85,800
Redeemed I (1] (300,000)
Realised loss in profit or loss REEZ CEEER (5,388)
Fair value gains in profit or loss, net IR~ BT/ VG TRE X ] 214
At 31 March 2020 A FCFE=HA=1—H 105,525
Purchases i 100,000
Redeemed g 1] (71,838)
Addition — acquisition of subsidiaries S L — WSO B A ) (B RE43)

(note 43) 2,001
Fair value gains in profit or loss, net AR i 2 2 SO AE AR T AR 2,716
Transfer to Level 2 (note a, b) W E 2k (fita - b) (19,785)
At 31 March 2021 R-ZEB-—-F=A=+-—H 118,619
Notes: B 5

(a) The transfer from Level 3 to Level 2 fair value
measurements for the year ended 31 March 2021
was due to significant decrease in unobservable

inputs.

(b) The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into
and out of Level 3 as at the beginning of the

reporting period in which the transfer occurs.

@ BE_F_—HF=H=1+—
HIE4F B 5E3 g R 2 5652
J& >V E w2 R 45 B
B2 N B B D T B

(b) AEEE 2 BUR 2 iR 3L MR
Z 3R ) R A B
F30E o
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

(i)

(1)

Financial assets measured at fair value — continued

The unrealised gains of approximately HK$2,716,000
(2020: approximately HK$214,000) for Level 3
investments held at the reporting date are reported
in “other gains and losses, net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Valuation process

The management of the Group is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
will establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. Information about the valuation
techniques and inputs used in determining the fair

value of various assets are disclosed above.

Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at

fair value

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their fair

values.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are

either:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position; or

*  not offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and a broker, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and a broker on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a

net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the accounts receivable and payable with its
retail customers in the Group’s brokerage business (the
“brokerage clients”) that are due to be settled on the same
date with reference to the settlement method set by the
HKSCC and the Group intends to settle these balances on a

net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from / to
HKSCC, a broker and the brokerage clients that are not to
be settled on the same date, financial collateral including
cash and securities received by the Group and deposits
placed with HKSCC and a broker do not meet the criteria
for offsetting in the consolidated statement of financial
position since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts

is only enforceable following an event of default.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

tRMITHEH-&
LHEERSREE S EY

R ITH PR AR R R A R
AT 2 50— 15 BHAG L Toh ok o 25 081
oL 4z Al T HL 22 B0 22 P 2 4 il 7
AR

o AAREEER S IBIR DRI
6%

o DRUAR 2 BRI A 1 T S 0 A A AR
P &R BB AR DL R AR S

AR AR S ] S o P S & TR AT R
([ WA 0 1) R A A0 03T O 35 T 3R
A5 0 ok o AN SR BB ik T o o L
A7 HE R 1K 9 7 A A5 0 DL A8 A R A () A
B H A R i B B A AT BT > i LA
S H A S LA T A -

B Ak > 2 %5 5 s 5 AT S0 I &5 5 7
o AR F A A AT AT HE AR B
AEHBRLEH 2 THEES ((REK
J5 1) T TR] O A6 A HE i R A R
TE T HAS SR E AT DA T AR
L 45 & B o

BRI 8 2 AH TR O 2130 &5 08 00 & B
Bb > H S B R R S AR B R A T A
B R B ARR T A AT > O AR A
7] H 0 48 5 ) E Wi, B A s A
REACRACAL K P AOH - M RY (&
AL W B & M5 -~ FHURE
BEA KRR RS AT ENRE
B BB AR DL R AR B 2 oA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

6. $RITH-&
SREERSHABEIIKE &

offsetting — continued

Net
Gross amounts amounts of
of recognised financial
financial assets
liabilities set presented
offin the in the Related amount not set off
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated in the consolifiated sltaittement
of recognised statement statement of financial posicion
financial assets of financial of financial Financial Collateral
after impairment position position instruments pledged Net amount
RER  REAUE o
BB HRREMZ  REAEE TRRERABHRZ S
SHEE  BEELR  MREEA BH2RneR
an SEAE SHEETE $RIE CERERD 28
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TAn Tin TAn Tén Tin Tin
At 31 March 2021 RZB=-%
=B=t-H
Accounts receivable arising from the % R EEH AN
business of dealing in securities ERhEEZ
and furure contracts FEURE 3,797,451 (142,369) 3,655,082 (1033) (3,582,649 71,400
Net
Gross amounts amounts of
of recognised financial
financial assets
liabilities set presented
offin the in the Related amount not set off
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated in the CO“SOIiéated Statement
of recognised statement statement of financial posicon
financial assets of financial of financial Financial Collateral
after impairment position position instruments pledged Net amount
WK  REAME e
oER MREEHZ  REANE LS AT
= B < & / o o B
SREE CRIGH  HRERIL _ BAZAREE i
am BEGE  AMERENE GRTR  CHAERY i
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 31 March 2020 REZF_%E
ZA=1-H
Accounts receivable arising from the BERMEREAY
business of dealing in securities EhHELL
and future contracts FEdiRTE 3,617,874 (53,007) 3,564,867 (905) (3,495,914) (8,048

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

6. TRITH-&

TREERSHEBECEE &

Net
Gross amounts amounts of
of recognised financial
financial liabilities
assets set presented Related amount not set off
off in the in the in the consolidated statement
Grossamounts  consolidated  consolidated of financial position
of recognised statement statement
financial of financial of financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
A
ARiEny  HBAHS BERELHBRRAS
BER  CRELR  HRaRi2 f82RRes
cRERER BEAE SRAERE SRIE CHEAERY 8
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TiEn T Tin Tin TiEn TéEn
At 31 March 2021 R=B=-%
ZAZt-H
Accounts payable arising from the HERNEEESY
business of dealing in securities ERdELY
and futures contracts TEfHHETA (838,168) 142,369 (695,799) 1,033 - (694,766)
Net
Gross amounts amounts of
of recognised financial
financial liabilities
assets set presented Related amount not set off
off in the in the in the consolidated statement
(Gross amounts consolidated consolidated of financial position
of recognised statement statement
financial of financial of financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
REAE
Ruieny  HEANE R MR
Bl CE2AE  BREDIZ M2 KBRS
SHARER BEAE  ARAETHE ERTH  BAEMERD A
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 31 March 2020 WoE-RE
ZH=Z+-H
Accounts payable arising from the BERMEEEAN
business of dealing in securities EhAELY
and futures contracts R (531,482) 53,007 (478475) 905 H (477,570)

The amounts which have been offset against the related

recognised financial assets and financial liabilities in the

Group’s consolidated statement of financial position are

measured on the same basis as the recognised financial assets

and financial liabilities, which is amortised cost.

B A A% 48 B 45 5 J 5 K D 3R B A B
il W < T M BRI B 2 R K
Sl e o < A I B AR R 2 e
(B 3% 4 8 B AS) Rt 22 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

7. REVENUE 7. W@
2021 2020
—EB-—F R RS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Revenue from contracts with customers BERMKHREERFISHKEE
within HKFRS 15 RZEFEHkE
Brokerage commission A 4 49,385 26,730
Underwriting and placing commission 5 B e A < 8,751 5,824
Proof of funds commission 4w W 4 8,208 1,000
Other commission HoAt A 4 88 102
Clearing and handling fee income LEE N TFE IR A 1,807 1,819
Advisory fee income L1 2 A 9205 257
69,144 35,732
Revenue from other sources H 4t R 2 Wi
Property rental income Yy B A 15,359 13,717
Interest income from financial assets 0 RAEFE AR 15 2 4 & E
at FVPL Z FB A
— Unlisted convertible notes —JF b7 ] R B g 1,761 2,277
— Unlisted debrt securities — Ik b R R 11,234 16,379
28,354 32,373
Interest revenue calculated using the FHREBIEETEZ
effective interest method F B2 U 2=
— Bank balances and time-deposits — $RAT &R KoE BALE R 1,942 5,877
— Other financial assets at amortised costs — R A E
HoAh 4 Rl
— Accounts receivable — M i B T 307,714 325,233
— Loans and advances — A K S EGR 75,178 105,744
— Mandatory FVOCI — 5 il 4% S A FEA A
2 T U 4 20,284 19,565
405,118 456,419
Total revenue U 5 502,616 524,524

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A



7. REVENUE - continued

In addition to the information shown in segment

disclosures, the revenue from contracts with customers

& & BT AR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

W 3 — &

B 73 F 48  T 8 ERL AL > A i S R
e QS 1 S SRR R A I R R S Al aR

within HKFRS 15 is disaggregated as follows: RPN
2021 2020
—E-—fF B e 0
HK$’000 HK$000
FExT Tt
Timing of revenue recognition.: W 7in FEERR 2 B JH 1 -
At a point in time AR R B
Brokerage commission KR4 49,385 26,730
Underwriting and placing commission £ 88 J e 6 4 < 8,751 5,824
Proof of funds commission & 4T A 4 8,208 1,000
Other commission oA AR 4 88 102
Clearing and handling fee income A T AR 1,807 1,819
68,239 35,475
Over time & B RS
Advisory fee income LT 2 A 905 257
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into five operating
divisions, namely broking, securities margin financing,
money lending, corporate finance and investments. These
divisions are the basis on which the Board, being the chief
operating decision maker, reviews the operating results

and financial information. The principal activities of these

7 ERE R

E LRI D R (N A IR
Ao B REEEE - MR M
& LIRAE - MR E e (B
SRR R ) o DY K SR AR
BB S o 525 2 BB
T

divisions are as follows:

Broking -

Securities margin financing -

6 75 PR i 4 A

Money lending -
AR

Corporate finance -

1 el

Investments -

&

Provision of stockbroking, futures and options broking and
underwriting and placements

fe BB ACAC - B S I HE RS A R 5 > LA R BB K i

Provision of securities margin financing
1 I A5 o O A Pl

Provision of mortgage and consumer loans

e A% 1 K 2 K

Provision of corporate advisory services

fi 3t A S i 3 A B

Holding of investment properties and financial instruments

FrAEBEY R M T A

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements. For the purposes of
monitoring segment performance and allocating resources

between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
certain property and equipment, club memberships,
certain trading rights in Stock Exchange, certain deposits
paid for acquisition of property and equipment, certain
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, certain bank

balances and certain deferred tax assets.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain accrued charges and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling sharcholders, certain

tax payable and certain deferred tax liabilities.

e all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments
other than certain amortisation and depreciation,
certain lease payments for short-term lease or lease
of low value assets / operating lease rentals, certain
management fees, certain staff costs and certain other

expenses incurred for strategic planning by the Group.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ZT_—F=A=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2021
DEMER-&
PEAE AR 2 3 AR E R R AT o

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8.

Segment information about these divisions is presented

below.

2B R EE
PATR J% 45 28 7 it 288 o AR 4 it 2 A
A T W 4 B SEA A 0 AT o

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-E-_—F=A=+—HILEE

Securities
margin Money Corporate

Broking financing lending finance Investments  Consolidated
#5

B RELRE HE rERE RE g4

HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$000
TRER TRR TRT TER TER TER

Al 71,292 306,603 75,178 905 48,638 502,616

Segment revenue

HES 19,478 250,900 62,557 606 13,004 346,545

Segment result

Unallocated other operating income 7ML AR E T A &

and corporate expenses, net TEERHE (40,003)
Profit before taxation AT Al 306,542

Year ended 31 March 2020 HE X EZF=A=Z+—HILFHE

Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
P
i
L REchE W ERE d a

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk

Segment revenue s 41,418 315,167 105,744 257 51,938 524,524
Segment result nHER 1,433 213,960 107,600 164 (62,566) 260,591

Unallocated other operating income A4}t H M4 & It A &

and corporate expenses, net REERHH (25,133)
Unallocated finance costs RO EEE A (31,178)
Profit before taxation i 204,280
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HE_Z-_—F=ZA=1+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable operating segments.

TEHER &
THEERAE

PATF 7 # 28 F i 888 o m R it 2 AR
S E S B AT

At 31 March 2021 R-E-_—-§=A=+—H
Securities
margin Money Corporate

Broking financing lending finance  Investments Consolidated
#H

fE RESHE & tERE k& ge

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FEL FET FEL TAT THET TEL

Segment assets B E 769,140 3,894,302 606,193 10419 1513273 6,793,327

Unallocated assets (note i) FAMERE (M) 817,722

Consolidated assets HHBE 7,611,049

Segment liabilities A 417,517 295,300 466 82 3,716 717,081

Unallocated liabilities (note ii)

F A (i)

178,209

Consolidated liabilities

GRAR

895,290

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A



Segment assets and liabilities — continued

At 31 March 2020

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

gk B R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

TEHER &

APAERAR- &
i oFFEZA =R

Securities
margin Money Corporate

Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated

[idis
BE  REcsHE & PERE g e
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Segment assets B ERE 415143 3,893,585 886,927 9,820 1454582 6,660,057
Unallocated assets (note ) FAEEE (k) 552,293
Consolidated assets HABE 7,212,350
Segment liabilities = 131,178 351,749 376 10 2,426 485,739
Unallocated liabilities (note ii) RO B AR (ki) 177,750
Consolidated liabilities AR 663,489

Notes: Fff &3

(i)  The balance comprises property and equipment, and
bank balances of approximately HK$610,733,000 and
HK$172,479,000 respectively (2020: HK$103,093,000 and

HK$440,596,000 respectively).

(i) The balance comprise amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders and tax payables of approximately HK$30,257,000
and HK$138,326,000 respectively (2020: HK$30,257,000 and

HK$138,321,000 respectively).

(i) FAHEGEEDELZHE LR
1T & % 2 Al %) 74610,733,000 JC &
172,479,00088 7T ( & 4 Al B
103,093,000 JT 5. 440,596,000%5 7C) °

(1) A [ A5 G 358 R AST I 442 e e AR R T I
JRE ASH i TE 43 1l 49 430,257,000 7T S
138,326,000 7T ( & 4 : Al B
30,257,000%5 G 52 138,321,000% 7C) °
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HE_Z-_—F=R=+—

BIEEE

Year ended 31 March 2021

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information

2021

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit or
loss or segment assets:

Additions of property and
equipment through
acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 43)

Additions of investment
properties through
acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 43)

Additions of intangible assets
through acquisition of
subsidiaries (note 43)

Additions of property and
equipment

Depreciation of property and
equipment

Net impairment loss on
accounts receivable

Provision of net impairment
loss on loans and advances

Provision of net impairment

loss on Mandatory FVOCI

Additions of investment
properties

Government subsidies

Fair value losses on investment
properties

Fair value gains (losses) on
financial assets at FVPL

Interest income (including
revenue and other operating
income)

Finance costs

Commission expenses

Write-off of accounts receivable

A S b BB R
B MERE 2 H

BRIENEA TR E
WE R (Wit43)

BRGEHEAARE
REME (W)

BRIENEA TR E
B (J:143)

WRERHZRE
WEREREZTE

REAURIE 2 Wi B R
i
FRRBHZBHER
PR

B AR A
Mz Bk R
PR
REWEZRE

BB
REMEZ A AMEER

BARMERARE L
SREEZARE
I (B54)

FLEMA (B R

LA ERA)

ME A
BB
s RE R

Broking

ag
HK$000
TR

335

550
3,484

(1,496)

3,045

95

3,123
(4,953)
(12,750)

Securities
margin
financing
&%
RESHE
HK$'000
TER

(55,703)

306,603

(193)

Money
lending

HE
HK$000
TER

18

(157)

(11,100)

108

D EBE R —
Hihp BER
—E-—5F
Corporate
finance  Investments
r¥pE RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER T#n
- 75,000
- (92)
- (6,300)
- 9,573
. 8
- (30,093)
- (7,291)
23 33,280
(152) -

Unallocated  Consolidated

AR
HK$000
TEx

425,000

1,879

(16,913)

779

AN

=]
HK$’000
TER

425,335

75,000

550
5,381
(18,658)
(55,703)

(11,100)

(6,300)

9,573
3,940

(30,093)

(7,196)

419,075
(4,953)
(12,902)
(193)
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HE-_T-_—F=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. DHMEHR-&
Other segment information — continued HthnEHER -&
2020 “ECEE
Securities
margin Money  Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
R
By Eiy ME  hERE #E AR A
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T
Amounts included in the REREEEY FE
measure of segment proficor 7 B 2 FUH -
loss or segment assets:
Additions of investment BRI E A TR E
properties through REE
acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 70,000 - 70,000
Additions of property and EYE VAN
equipment 120 - 607 - 68 30 825
Depreciation of property and 13 B3l 2 7%
equipment (1,055) - (64) - (39) (6,801) (7,939)
Net impairment loss on TEORIE 2 Bl B
accounts receivable e - (110,907) - - - - (110,907)
Reversal of net impairment loss [ 6 3 & #43h 2 ¥i i
on loans and advances EREE - - 2915 - - - 2915
Reversal of net impairment loss %5 21 %l /A 2L (3T A
on Mandatory FVOCI Hh2mldEz
HEERRE - - - - 1,517 - 1,517
Additions of investment REMEZRE
properties - - - - 20,752 - 20,752
Fair value losses on investment ¢ 9% 2 /A BB
properties - - - - (86,558) - (86,558)
Fair value losses on financial — #{/A R FT AR Z
assets at FVPL SREREZAREER (66) - - - (19,137) - (19,203)
Gain on disposal of property i EHIE Rt 2 s
and equipment 40 - - - - - 40
Gain on disposal of o 5 Y 2 7 2
subsidiaries - - - - 2,181 - 2,181
Interest income (including ~ FEMCA (B HFls &
revenue and other operating AL A)
income) 6,187 325,167 105,754 75 38,205 2,322 477,770
Finance costs A B Rk (943) L = = (149 GLI78) (32,269
Commission expenses {F 42 B (6,978) = L (42) — - (7,020)
Write-off of accounts il R IR
receivable = (300) = = = = (300)
Wirite-off of loans and i B S R B
advances = = (205) & = 1 (205)




142

o A BB R R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
the United Kingdom (2020: Hong Kong and the United
Kingdom).

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue from external customers by geographical market:

DEHER &

& & ¥

AHE ] 2 SRS AN A s T B (L
FTAE s )

N AR A G [ i I Tl 3 8 Ak B
ST Z W g 2 o A

Revenue by

geographical market

RiETHE D ZWE
2021 2020
—B=-—F e
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHET THs T
Hong Kong i 491,608 513,739
United Kingdom e (5 11,008 10,785
502,616 524,524

The following table is an analysis of the carrying amounts of

non-current assets by geographical area in which the assets

R e A A B 4y 2 JF i E
B 2 MR AE 2 AT

are located:
Carrying amounts of
non-current assets
FRBEEZRMEE
2021 2020
—ERE--F | SEFCEHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TR T#T
Hong Kong T 1,291,597 805,983
United Kingdom 2 236,020 202,724
1,527,617 1,008,707

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
Geographical information — continued

The non-current asset information above excludes financial

instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, there
were no customers individually contributing 10% or more

of the Group’s total revenue.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the
aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s

total revenue.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

o EER - &

HEER -

LA L 8y ¥ 2 RS oL 4 e LT
BRI AE B IR RE -

ERXEEFZEH

WEE X N FFRFEEN
= H IR A F T B M AE
HH AR A ] AR 25 10%88 DL 2 B R -

WEE X N FFRFEEN
= HIEEE WBNASLE R K
B Z A RS 1 AR 4 BRI 25 2 30%
PATF o

9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME Hih&gEWA

2021 2020
— g — E'E — ? — ﬁi
Note HK$’000 HK$000
R 5 FET Tt
Bank interest income SRATH B U A 962 2,695
Dividend income BB A 1,233 2,038
Sundry income HAtb e A 5,127 1,470
Government subsidies WU & B (a) 3,940 -
11,262 6,203

Note: B s

(a) During the year, the Group recognised subsidies of
approximately HK$3,782,000, HK$150,000 and HK$8,000
in respect of the Employment Support Scheme, the Subsidy
Scheme for the Securities Industry and the Property
Management Sector under Anti-epidemic Fund of the Hong
Kong SAR Government respectively due to the COVID-19

pandemic.

(@) A R 20195% IR AR R IRAT -
7 AT R RRAT TR A VA R AT B BB
B P e e N B AR R 2R E) -
ES VIR E T/ ES-SIER N ST
PEnt 8 2 & 84 Al £13,782,000%5 0T
150,000% 7t % 8,000%5 7T °
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. Htt W& R B B F 8
2021 2020
—eo-%| —zozg
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Fh 5 FET T T
Fair value changes on investment WEWHE 2z N RHES)
properties 19 (30,093) (86,558)
Net realised losses on error trades thRE T Gz BB
Jie 18 1 B (2) (30)
Fair value losses on financial assets at %7 O {H 5F A TR 75 2 4 il
FVPL B2 A R EE R (7,196) (19,203)
Realised gains (losses) on disposal / e JIER L NIEE Z
redemption of CE B (1R)
— Financial assets at FVPL — N SEFT A 45
ZEmERE (a) 7,067 (5,388)
— Mandatory FVOCI — LS R EENA
At 2 T K 5 30 (732)
Exchange difference, net ifE 53, 2 S5 75 A 2,075 (3,762)
Gain on disposal of property and B W 2 Kt 2 i s
equipment - 40
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o0 B RS s B 2 0 g - 2,181
(28,119) (113,452)
Note: B e
(a) The amount represented the proceeds from disposal of (a) EEBEAXHELAAENABRGZZ

financial assets at FVPL of HK$29,271,000 less relevant
costs and carrying value of the investments disposed of
approximately HK$22,204,000 (2020: proceeds from early
redemption of financial assets at FVPL of HK$300,000,000
less relevant costs and carrying value of the investments
redeemed of approximately HK$305,388,000).

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

&Rl 7E 2 B A5 3K IH29,271,00095 70
WA A KB E®RE 2 RIEL
22,204,00085 70 (% " FAE 4R BT
4% N SU(E AR 38 2 4 & 2 BT
3 # 300,000,000 5 I I8 AH BE AL AR K2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE-_ZT-_—F=A=1T—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

11.

12.

STAFF COSTS 11. ET A
2021 2020
—eo-%| “xoEf
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET ARCP
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: 5 T AUAS (G045 3 F B 4) -
Salaries and other benefits ¥4 M H A AR 26,321 23,627
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B R AR A ) AL 999 899
27,320 24,526
FINANCE COSTS 12. A& B A
2021 2020
S =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Interest on bank borrowings WATIE B ZFLE 3,098 923
Interest on bank overdraft AT L2 A B _ 16
Interest on clients” accounts BEFERF ZHE 1,827 148
Interest on lease liabilities LER=§ K= 1PN 28 _
Interest on convertible bonds issued by — [ T M E N F B AT
a listed subsidiary Z Al S 2 FLE - 31,178
4,953 32,265
Annual Report 2021 F#
e A 4—\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. B Al m A
This is stated after charging: W EFnER T 54538 -
2021
—_EBE-—F
HK$°000
FA5
Auditor’s remuneration A% S T < 2,720
Direct operating expenses relating to BLEAEHEWRAZ
investment properties that generated rental % A Y ZEM B 2
income R B 1,848
Direct operating expenses relating to L 3lf7 4 2 AR FH A 2
investment properties that did not BEYEMB 2
generate rental income H R B -
Write-off of accounts receivable A $19 18 Wi B TE 193
Write-off of loans and advances B B R S K -

2020
N
HK$°000
Tt

2,800

522

1,586
300
205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 4. BEERTHEBRREEM S
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’

REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

(a) EBRITHEZME
remuneration:

BTSN A (ZF R R
Z)ERSAZMEWT

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six

(2020: six) directors were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-_Z_—F=A=1+—HILLEE

Executive
Director
(Chief
Executive
Officer) Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
HfEs
(TREH) HrES BUkHES
Mr. Cham Mr. Kam,
Mr. Hung WaiHo,  EddieShing ~ Mr.SunKa M. SiuHi Mr. Man
Hon Man Anthony Cheuk ZiangHenry  Lam, Alick Kong Yui Total
HEXEE BEEARRE  HAERE KREiE BERALE XAMEE AR
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
THR TER TR TER TER TER TER
(note i)
(HEi)
Fees e - - - 120 120 120 360
Other emoluments: Himg
~ Salaries and other benefits —Ha R (i)
(note i) 245 392 425 - - - 1,062
~ Contributions to retirement 3R R4l 5t &t 50
benefit schemes 14 n 18 - - - 54
- Performance and discretionary  — B KM LT (W akiii)
bonus (note iii) 31 49 53 - - - 133
- Commission % - - - - - - -
Total emoluments E L EA 290 463 496 120 120 120 1,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(a)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration — continued

Year ended 31 March 2020

14. EERTHRAERKEEMN

— i

(@ EERITHARZNE -&

BE-Z FEZA=+BL

R
Executive
Director
(Chief
Executive
Officer) Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
Ak
(frEds) A BrkanEs
Mr. Kam,
Mr. Hung Mr. Cham Wai ~ Eddie Shing ~ Mr.SunKa M. Siu Hi Mr. Man
HonMan  Ho, Anthony Cheuk  Ziang, Henry Lam, Alick Kong Yui Total
HEEE  HRELE O WRERE  #BuEkE FEERE EsEE Bk
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
T Tibr T T T T Tl
(note i)
(Wki)
Fees ik - - - 116 116 116 348
Other emoluments: Hibas
~ Salaries and other benefits — & IR (ki)
(note ii) 241 386 419 - - - 1,046
~ Contributions to retirement —BIEAIGH B
benefit schemes 10 U 18 - - - 49
- Performance and discrecionary — — 5 B TEAL (Wiiit)
bonus (note iii) 25 40 43 - - - 108
- Commission -z - - - - - - -
Total emoluments ks 276 447 480 116 116 116 1,551
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_T-_—F=A=T—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(a)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration — continued

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

Mr. Kam changed his name from Kam Leung Ming
to Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk during the year ended 31
March 2021.

The balances shown above for executive directors,
namely Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Cham Wai Ho,
Anthony and Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk were
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

Performance and discretionary bonus is determined with
regard to the Group’s performance, the individual’s

performance and comparable market statistics.

There was no arrangement under which a director or

the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration in the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

In addition, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any

of the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining

the Group or as a compensation for loss of office for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Year ended 31 March 2021

14. EERTHRARKEEMN S

==

— %=

(@ EERITHARZNE-&

i ik

@)

(i)

(iii)

HWHE-F -~ =H=1—H
R4 H e i 2 5
2y H 7R A o

E B B AT I 4 (R 00k
A R S A T R e S )
A B B LA AL
F B A AR T 2 g i e 3 2 e
% o

R R WEAEAL T 2 AR E Y
I AN GL B LT LT 85 4
O T R E -

S 0 8 ST A 5
W F R E =
o AR A £ 72 % 0 - O

o - W
A=+—

CE R CFECOFES
H Lk 4F BE - A 4 1 317 4 1) £

ol 25 2 SO I o AR 2 3R i B A 4
2 AR AE o A T B

4 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZF=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’ — &
REMUNERATION - continued
(b) Employees’ remuneration b) EEMS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group do not

include directors of the Company for both years.

The emoluments of the five (2020: five) highest paid

individuals for the years are set out as follows:

14. EERTHRAERKEEMN

7R AR 7 TR 1R P2 R A B R
AR A LA EA LA #EE -

TUfL (2 AR ) Fem R
IPNS iR N v L Sy

2021 2020

—g-—%| —z- 24

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET Tt

Salaries and other emoluments 34 M H At P 4 5,931 4,596
Discretionary bonus fiy 155 A€ AL 226 184
Contribution to retirement benefits schemes  #E /R 48 Fll 51 #] {1 3¢ 72 90
6,229 4,870
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& & BT AR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 14 EERITRARKEEMNE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’ — &
REMUNERATION - continued
(b) Employees’ remuneration — continued b) EEME-&
The emoluments of the individuals are within the W55 2 P4 A DL i

following bands:

Number of individuals

EE®E

2021 2020

—®o—% | —EoEE

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 JC £1,000,0007 7T - 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000 45 7T 4 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 JC %£2,000,000% 7T 1 -
There was no arrangement under which the five B\ L R VA =1 - 7 DN = A |
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive EREE —F R F
any remuneration for the years ended 31 March 2021 FTAEZH =+ — H IR 4E AT
and 2020. In addition, no emoluments were paid by PR WA REEPNERE —F
the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an TN TR RE ] =4
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as A B NI AR pe) A e o A A
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31 ST > AR 1N A5 I A B ]
March 2021 and 2020. o BN B < o B B A 1

4o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

15. TAXATION 15. BiIE

The profit tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 assessable
profits arising from Hong Kong of qualifying entities will
be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong above HK$2,000,000 will continue be taxed at the
rate of 16.5% under two-tiered profits tax rates regime. As
only one of the subsidiaries in the Group is eligible to elect
the two-tiered profits tax rates, profits of the remaining
subsidiaries of the Group will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered

profits tax rates regime.

The tax provision in respect of operations in the United
Kingdom is calculated at the rate of 20% on the subsidiary’s
estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing

legislation, interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

HR 45 I 15 Bl Bl R/ Sk - & S R
e 6 2 2E 19 12,000,000 0 E 35 Bl
i FI 1% L 8.259% I Bl SR A4 R AR B > T
e 7 9 2 AE 592,000,0009 9C LA L Y HE
LR s P A A LA 16.5% O B R BB -
F A A S5 [ A 12— [ BfF g 2 4 A st
R A5 BBl 2R W A 2 G A > A AR
{3 B R 2 ) 2 Vi R A A L 16.5% 1
& — Bl BB o

WEF R E CFE
S HOR AR i 8 B4
LR BT R

A B S [ T Y L SELHEE A AR L
J& 2 F) B A A R RR B A1 LL209%
B LA BATIE D) - R A
PlsHE -

2021 2020
S =
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 51 THERT T T
Current tax B HA i 18
Hong Kong &t
Hong Kong Profits Tax s M A5 B 55,682 47,262
Under (Over) provision in A AR R N 2
prior years (A 55 1) 901 (1,522)
56,583 45,740
United Kingdom o o]
Overseas tax T8 AL IA 1,878 1,715
Under provision in prior years e A A AN - 2
1,878 1,717
58,461 47,457
Deferred tax EEHIE
Origination and reversal of temporary T IRF 22 BRI A
differences 5 1| 34 95 95
Income tax expense I 45 B BA 5 58,556 47,552
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

15. TAXATION - continued 15. Bi1H — &
Reconciliation of income tax expense SR ¥R
2021 2020
—ECo-f | ZFFF
HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT T# T
Profit before taxation . 5l %5 306,542 204,280
Income tax at applicable tax rate SR S AR i) 50,413 33,541
Tax effect of expenses not deductible R AT FA BH S 2 Bl S R
for tax purpose 20,131 24,359
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax YR RRBL A 2 BLHES 5 2
purpose (10,538) (11,381)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised oA it 0 T s 1R 2 B 5 B 1,658 3,959
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B F DATE oK 7 58 B 1H fes 1R
tax losses (3,706) (79)
Under (Over) provision in prior years DLFE 4E B B AN 2
(8 R 901 (1,520)
Effect of different tax rates of the subsidiary i HoAth 7] 75 [ 75 48 2 [l J&
operating in other jurisdictions UNEIPANCE TS A 315 307
Others ,Jﬂz (618) (1,634)
Income tax expense for the year AR A BT i 45 8 B 3 58,556 47,552
16. DIVIDENDS 16. R 2
2021 2020
= g —— EF‘ — ? — EF‘
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET T#s T
Final dividend for prior financial year, paid B\ 1 » b BABUAE & 2 K HH
— HKO0.4 cent (2020: HK1 cent) per share EIXL %\ iﬂxo 491l
SR AR 1A 38,650 96,627
Interim dividend for current financial year, B\ f » A< B BUAE & 2 fR 1
paid — HKO.5 cent (2020: HK0.75 cent) Hfi B — & 0.5 Al
per share TR EE 0754 48,314 72,470
86,964 169,097
A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March AN FERFERABE T - —F =

2021 of HKO.5 cent (2020: HKO0.4 cent) per share,
amounting to approximately HK$48,314,000 (2020:

0.5 il (—

F = Ak A VR R 0 e 45
F A 0.4 )

, 4k
N

HK$38,651,000) has been proposed by the directors of the
Company and is subject to the approval by the owners of

I %) 5548,314,000% T (—F T4 ¢
38,651,000k 75) - I I35 2 i HE J& A% TR
WERE DEARNT A ANEEE -

the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

17. ER &R

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year as follows:

HRARAS 2% ) J R 57 A N A i A1) B 4F
A B AT 3 2 AR HE T 3 TS 2
WREAANZ A RENT

Earnings 2
2021 2020
—ERECD-F | A CFF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT T#C
Earnings for the purpose of basic and FR R R A K 4
diluted earnings per share B Z B A
Profit for the year attributable to equity AN E R RE R A N REA
shareholders of the Company AN A 189,640 118,295
Number of shares IR#% 8B
2021 2020
:g: - ﬂE — ? — AEF‘
’000 ’000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares, Jf it &1 5 5 i H A
for the purpose of basic and diluted B A vy 5 R 2 A%
earnings per share TIHE SF- 23 1% B 9,662,706 9,662,706
HK cents HK cents
il Al
Earnings per share: B BLELR] -
Basic A 1.96 1.22
Dilutive (note (a)) B (Pt 5E (2) 1.96 1.22
Note: b

(a) For the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, diluted
earnings per share was the same as basic earnings per share
as the potential new ordinary shares to be issued on exercise
of the outstanding share options during the year under the
Company’s share option scheme have an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic earnings per share. The share options were
cancelled on 20 November 2020 and the effect of potential
new ordinary shares to be issued for the year ended 31 March
2021 was proportion up to the date of cancellation.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

0 BEF-_—FR_F_LIF=H
= — H IR B 2 A R ) B A
JRe B A 2 R AR ] - T R 25 A S s ] i
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x & BT 8 3R B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 18. MERRE
Prepaid lease
payments Property and equipment
ERERANE DERRE
Right-of-use Right-of- Motor
Leasehold ~~ assets - Office wse assets - Leasehold ~ vehicles and Officc ~ Furniture and
and premises  Leaseholdlnd ~ Buildings  improvements yacht equipment fixtures Total
kREEE  [REEE B&

BRtH  -BORR  -BEiw #7  O3KB  REREE  MOERE  BARKE &
HKSow  HKS00 HKSOWO  HKSO0  HKS000 HKS 000 HKSOO  HKS0W  HKSO00
T T T Tt TR T T Tér  Fx

Cost or Valuation AAAfE

Al Apil 2019 RZZ- DA A 103,780 - - 3798 1407 7867 310 150 1430
Impact on initial applcation HREREENTGE

of HKERS 16 BRI B E (103,780) - 103,780 . - - - - -
Additions KE - - - - 08 007 150 - 815
Adjustment on revaluation EAEES - - - (230) - - - - (30)
Disposal HE - - - - - (500) - - (500)
At31 March 2000 WoBZBEZA=-H - - 103780 37,754 1475 7974 3077 157 17440
Comprising: i
Avcos UL - - 103,780 - 1475 1797 3077 152 136658
At valuaton fifhE - - - 37,754 - - - -3
At31 March 2020 BoECRE=A=1-1 - - 103,780 37,754 1475 17974 3077 151 17441
AL April 2020 REEZREMA-T - - 103,780 37754 1475 7974 3 152 17441
Addicions K - 264 - 1399 - 69 79 (YK )
Additons - acquisiton of I E- LRI E AR

subsidiaries (note 43) (Hzk43) - - 370,025 54,975 105 - Bl %))
Adiusment on revaluarion B {#E - - - (5,40) - - - - (5,40)
Transfer from investment ERAGENE (o)

properties (note 19) - - 98,783 1207 - - - - 101,000
At31 March 2021 i Y - 2264 LS8 95 1,580 863 4304 ug 700388
Comprising af:
Avcost U - 2264 572,988 - 1380 2863 4,304 609,58
Atvauation flhfE - - - 91,305 - - - - 930
At31 March 2021 R-2--%ZR=1-A - 2064 LS8 91305 1,580 8,63 4304 b 700888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT -

continued

18. MERZRE &

Prepaid lease
payments Property and equipment
BfRERE VESEL
Right-of-use Right-of- Motor
Leaschold ~ assets - Office wse assets - Leasehold vehicles and Office ~ Furniture and
land premises  Leaseholdlnd ~ Buildings  improvements yacht equipment fixtures Torl
[fREEE  GRREE iy
figth  -BORF  -EEiw BF  NEEE  RERBE  WOERE  BEREE it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000  HKS000
T T T T T T T T Téx
Acoumulated amortisation]  2577E /B E
depreciation
Al Apil 2019 REZ-ERA-A 3500 - - - 864 2461 203 @69
Impact on nita applcation K RE A M
of HKERS 16 s (34,500) - 34,300 . B, . _ ) }
Charges il - - 161 1,344 ) 303 033 7 7959
Fliminated on revaluation % fE A B - - - (1,344) - - - - (1,344)
Disposal i - - - - - (500) - - (500)
At31 March 2020 S < - ey e - - 36951 - 1,136 7,19 2,656 8 68005
Charges i - 75 13,679 2977 70 in 474 3 18,658
Fliminated on revaluation & ff B4 B - - - (2977 - - - - 297
At31 March 2021 H-BZ-EZf=1-H - 755 50,630 - 1406 7,665 3,130 8706
Net carrying values i
At31 March 2021 H-BZ-EZf=1-H - 1509 521958 91,305 174 968 117 9% G718
Ac31 March 2020 RoE-FE=ZA=4-0 - - 46829 37,7% 39 781 61 6 106387

At 1 November 2020, one of the properties with carrying
value of approximately HK$101,000,000 were transferred
from investment properties to property and equipment
upon change of its use as the Group’s own office. In the
opinion of the directors, the estimated fair value of the
properties at date of transfer amounted to approximately
HK$101,000,000 which is estimated by directors making
reference to the valuation from Prudential Surveyors (Hong
Kong) Limited (“PSL”), an independent professional

qualified valuer.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT -

continued

At 31 March 2021, the property interests in leasehold land
and the buildings thereon (including the whole or part of
undivided share in the underlying land) in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$613,263,000 (2020: HK$104,583,000)
are held by the Group as the registered owner. Those
property interests were acquired from the previous
registered owners by making lump sum payments at the
upfront. Except for the variable amounts to be charged by
the government subsequently that are reviewed regularly
with reference to the rateable values, for example, there are
no ongoing payments to be made under the terms of the
land lease. At the end of the reporting period, the remaining

lease term is about 26 years (2020: 27 years).

The buildings of the Group were valued at 31 March 2021
by PSL (2020: RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”)) on market
value basis. PSL is not connected with the Group, and
has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the

valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the buildings, the highest and

best use of buildings is the current use.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s buildings, the
management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s buildings. At the end of each reporting period, the
management of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurement. The management of the Group would first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management of
the Group would adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

x & BT 8 3R B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

18. MERZHE &

AR A=A H o #613,263,000

Wt (ZF F 4 1 104,583,000%5 70)
A s A b R b T R SE
i (F 45 AR B b 14 2235 B 40 A AT 4y
EEE) A EE SR E TR o
%) SN R T AR — WM A RO
210 A7 5 w0 T o BR BUM H AR &
2 BE A 2 i AR (8 2 B3 A 55T BT M B
B SN Bl REE T AR B
Ao N AR A A K o A R I OR > iR
TSR 260 (T A 27
) o

AEEZET R WEST (CF F
A R FIAT BT (R B A R R (K R
TR —F =A==+ %
(B HE R AEAT A (E o AR AT B A 4R 31
B 2 LA 2 AR K o B
A Bl b B LD ) 2 2 Al (B A B o

AR T 2N R > BT 2 R
Fe di 3 & 2y A A& -

74 1 9 A BT R D Ja S i 35 T B
IR ARG AL EETHA R
{E o 55 1 i A SR A3 R > AR
P (¥ A L A R WA =07 A B AR A
{6 il 206 3 Ak A% 58 PO FF) A 50 o R 2% i
BAR - 7 Y 4 PR G B AN 5 A
il B i 524 A A > FEIR] AT L OB E &
B Rl T B 3 R o S A R R A
A - AEEEIE G E L% R
T DR 26 2 i N\ B4 - e A RO 2
A i T S AT B I A PR AE o
TR HEAT 20 2 i A\ O Y - AR AR Y
B 6 BR T 6955 5 3 0 i A\ R 1Y
FEfE T HEEN A REHBEER
SEB)IF > 5 B) 19 R g AN E
ME #
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o & B T SR SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT -

continued

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
buildings is the unit sale rate ranging from approximately
HKS$6,000 per square foot to HK$32,000 per square foot
(2020: HK$6,000 per square foot to HK$30,000 per
square foot), taking into account age, location and other
individual factors such as size and levels of building. A
decrease in the unit sale rate would result in decrease in fair
value measurement of the buildings by the same percentage

decrease and vice versa.

Buildings are classified as Level 3 under fair value hierarchy
at 31 March 2021 and 2020. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$72,960,000 (2020: HK$16,363,000).

The Group had pledged certain leasehold land and
buildings to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
during the year. Details of the pledges are set out in note 41

to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_T_—F=A=T—HILFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWE
2021 2020
—E--F | “EF°FHF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
[ TERT T U
Fair Value ARE
At the beginning of the reporting period T 4 1 4] 874,074 881,896
Addition — Capital expenditure WHE—EARMZ 9,573 20,752
Addition — Acquisition of subsidiaries N B — R A 43 75,000 70,000
Transfer to property and equipment [ ER/ E Y &L 18 (101,000) -
Net change in fair value recognised N E f R 2 A U
in profit or loss 4 ) V5 A (30,093) (86,558)
Exchange differences [ b, 75 %8 24,295 (12,016)
At the end of the reporting period A i B R 851,849 874,074
2021 2020
—EBZ | “EZOFHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
i & FET THIT
Located in: LY
Hong Kong s (a) 615,829 671,350
The United Kingdom /LA (b) 236,020 202,724
851,849 874,074
2021 2020
=B | “EZTFEHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT THs T
Unrealised loss on investment properties 7 A H AU #5 K 55 2
included in other gain and losses a-L/E SN oFi (30,093) (86,558)
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
Leasing arrangement — as lessee

(a) Investment properties located in Hong Kong

At the end of the reporting period, the investment
properties of approximately HK$615,829,000 (2020:
HK$671,350,000) are held under head leases with the
remaining lease term of 26 to 840 years (2020: 27 to
841 years).

The property interests in investment properties thereon
(including the whole or part of undivided share in
the underlying land) in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$615,829,000 (2020: HK$671,350,000) are held by the
Group as the registered owner. Those property interests were
acquired from the previous registered owners by making
lump sum payments at the upfront. Except for the variable
amounts to be charged by the government subsequently that
are reviewed regularly with reference to the rateable values,
for example, there are no ongoing payments to be made

under the terms of the land lease.

Investment properties located in Hong Kong with
fair value of approximately HK$563,499,000 (2020:
HK$611,750,000) at 31 March 2021 were valued
by PSL (2020: RHL). PSL is not connected with the
Group and has appropriate qualification and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant location. The valuation was arrived at by
adopting the direct comparison method based on price
information of comparable properties and adjusted
to reflect the condition and locations of the subject

properties.

The valuation of other investment properties situated
in Hong Kong with fair value of approximately
HK$52,330,000 (2020: HK$59,600,000) was
performed by the directors of the Company with
reference to recent market prices of similar properties
at similar locations at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

19. REYME &
BEZH-FEREEA
(@0) WREBEZREWE

IS $&¢ WK > £9615,829, 000%%771
(=& A 1 671,350,0004570) 2
WEYERMWIFRHAFFAMER T
A ?2@840@ TR TR

27 E 8414F)

#1615,829,000i5 7T ( & —F4F ¢
671,350,000% 70) [0 H B EY) ¥
(90 SE0E 2 (B35 A B b 1y 2 350
SRS AN ] 43 F AR H AL R
BT TR - S EMET)
PARTHA — R MEAS o7 R e se
T o BREUN HAR & 2 IR ERR =
ﬁﬂfﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁdﬁﬁ%dﬂxﬁﬁﬁéi@%
Hh o ldn > KR O S >
?ﬂﬁ%»ﬁﬁ»ﬁ\ °

B EWER—F = —
FZHA=+—HZARMBEHE
563,499,000 JC (& AR ¢
611,750,000 JC) > T B #I & 47
(AR RRAT) Al sT o B
A7 B 2 [ NI S R A 5 Sl B 5
B B A T R L 3
ZAGERR S - A BGRB8 ] B
Lidy/E P3¢ SNITELS MR AR 1
00 B VE H PR LS e 2 22 R
Je i B o

WEE E T AER R TR
ZA=+—HIEWMEE > ANF
HHOZ LA ME 2 Y ¥
AT EA - AR E
HoAth 1% & W AT E - A A E
%ﬁ%52,330,000p§m I e 2
59,600,000 JG) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

Leasing arrangement — as lessee — continued

(a)

(%)

Investment properties located in Hong Kong —

continued

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing
the investment properties located in Hong Kong is the
unit sale rate of approximately HK$5,800 per square
foot (2020: HK$4,300 per square foot) for industrial
buildings, ranging from HK$18,000 to HK$27,000
per square foot (2020: ranging from HK$19,000 to
HK$28,000 per square foot) for residential buildings
and ranging from HK$11,000 to HK$47,000 per square
foot (2020: ranging from HK$10,000 to HK$47,000 per
square foot) for commercial building, taking into account
age, location and other individual factors such as size and
levels of building. An increase / decrease in the unit sale
rate would result in an increase / decrease in fair value

measurement of an investment property and vice versa.

Investment properties located in the United Kingdom

Investment properties in the United Kingdom with
fair value of approximately HK$236,020,000 (2020:
HK$202,724,000) at 31 March 2021, were valued by
PSL (2020: Savills (UK) Limited). PSL has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
commercial units were valued by an income approach

of valuation with reference to market rental value.

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
investment properties located in the United Kingdom
are the market rent at a weighted average of £57.54
(equivalent to approximately HK$617) per square
foot (2020: £55.56 (equivalent to approximately
HK$536) per square foot) and equivalent yield at
4.30% per annum (2020: 4.12% per annum). An
increase / decrease in the market rent and in turn an
increase / decrease in the equivalent yield would result
in an increase / decrease in fair value of an investment

property and vice versa.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

19. REYME - &
HERHF-FRRBA-E

(a)

(b)

WREEBZREYH &

WEWHEMERT AW E S —HE
oA L A PR R TR
2 AV B B A A BT T 5,800
TG (ZERAE - P U7 R4,3000%
Jt) ~ FEERE 2 A EEAN T
B 7 75 18,0005 7T 527,000 45 T
(B A1 77R19,000
W 0 £28,000%5 70) K EKRIE 2
B 81 A T IR 11,0000
JC 47,0008 00 (T FAE Ay
& F- 75 WL10,00095 JC 47,0001
T o HE T RS - b R
AR A R R (an B /NS ) -
HASHEE BN I E
W2 A REF R LT R X
ZIRER o

WHREEZREY%E
el 2 EWHER —F ——
EZA=Z+—HZARMELHA
236,020,000 7T (= F ZFA4F ¢
202,724,000 J6) > J4 1 I #E AT
(T2 ZF4F ¢ Savills (UK) Limited)
it o IERAT BLAS B2 3 37 406 B 22 -
HEMH A8 2 B K 847 B
BB 2 A E B - HRIv ¥
BT T E8 228 T E AL 4 AR 45 R HE
FTAGE

B A PER Z BOE ) SEEATAE T
FH AR A B o A R A
T35 T (ELAR 4 2 47 5 R 57.54
TEE CF & R A617# ) (ZF
T B 7 WS5.5698 85 (A E
R #I536W T0) ) I 55 (B IR 5 R R 4R
4.30% (ZF T FHF4.12%) °
MBS BT R4 I 45 (i 22
RS T EERREE A
RME LT T RZINA »
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued 19. REWE-&

Leasing arrangement — as lessee — continued

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties located in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom,
the management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. At the end of each reporting
period, the management of the Group works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair
value measurement. The management of the Group will
first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management
of the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

Investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom are classified as Level 3 under fair value
hierarchy at 31 March 2021 and 2020. There were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 during years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020 except for the land portion of
properties transferred to property and equipment during
the year amounted to HK$98,783,000 which will be
subsequently measured at cost. No investment properties
were pledged at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Leasing arrangement — as lessor

All of the Group’s investment properties located in Hong
Kong and the United Kingdom interests held under leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and

accounted for as investment properties.

Certain investment properties are leased to independent
third parties for a term of 2 to 10 years (2020: 2 to 10
years), which had an initial non-cancellable lease term of
1 to 3 years (2020: 1 to 3 years). Some leases provide the
lessees with options to renew the leases upon expiry at
new terms. The tenant also bears the management fees and
amounts charged by the government such as the rates levied

on the Group.

The details of the lease income from operating leases are set

out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

HEZHE-FREBA-E

A [ ) 7 L R ) 20 P S T 3 T LA
O SR A il A 8 I A e s 2 S Y 45
EWEM A RME o RS HAE AR - A4E
V0 A L BEL SN 5 A A (BRI R
P > SLIRTRT Sz B PR 5 98 I RF A5 7 1%
B3N AE R R AT A B o A EE
9 A BT 1 25 T L PR T 2R 2 g A
B - Sl AR I B 3 BT T
EEIA o DR A o B R S S5 20 i A
YRy > AR Y A PR (6 & B T B A
553 i A\ R B REAG T i o EE E Y
NAME B E RSBy > B AR
[) A% 2 ) 2 T o

WoEFE R FE ERE A
=F—H > URAEFEBREHZKEY
ERABIT N ARG - B E
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A BE IR - R A AR TN 8 2 ) 3 Rk
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BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 19. REV X -8
Leasing arrangement — as lessor — continued HEZH-FRAEBEA-E
The investment properties are subject to residual value G W) 3K 7 T B AE (B R - R U
risk. The lease contracts, as a result, include a provision on & & 4 63 — TH 7 5 15 (6 95 IR Ik
residual value guarantee based on which the Group has the 3o UG > AS AR A RE R AR &5 R R
right to charge the tenant for any damage to the investment WACE W) 2 AT R IR AL R A -
properties at the end of the lease. Besides, the Group has AN - A AR R OR B o R B AT T
purchased insurance to protect certain investment properties CINEEREC Y E Pat & kit AR
against any loss that may arise from accidents or physical THREWEGEAYIF L

damages of the properties.

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments DU B A5 1 B & W i R B
to be received from the leasing of investment properties. T B AT R 2 A 4 4 o

2021 2020

—eo-F| —xoak

HK$°000 HK$’000

FERT T#C

Year 1 54 13,348 12,291

Year 2 AR 12,492 11,548

Year 3 5= AR 11,444 10,165

Year 4 o5 0 4R 11,100 9,439

Year 5 5 LA 11,132 9,628

After year 5 5 H AR AR 14,208 22,354

73,724 75,425
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HE-_ZT-—F=A=1+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 March 2021
20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BILEE
Trading
rights in
Stock Club
Exchange  memberships Total
B 3T P
2R k-t &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T TC
Cost Jo N
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 \4;3 JLEMA—H -
and 1 April 2020 CECEFE=A=FHK
—HFEENA—H 2,172 6,712 8,884
Addition — acquisition of S B — WO R B S m (B E43)
subsidiaries (note 43) 550 - 550
At 31 March 2021 R-—EB-Z—-%=ZHF=+—H 2,722 6,712 9,434
Accumulated impairment losses ZFtREEE
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, m:%#mﬁmﬂ~ﬂ
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021  —EFE “ERFE=F=+—H -
SR CEFENA—H K
—E--F=ZA=+—H 71 400 471
Carrying value FREE
At 31 March 2021 R-EB-—-F=H=+—H 2,651 6,312 8,963
At 31 March 2020 TR RIEZH =+ —H 2,101 6,312 8,413

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to approximately HK$500,000
(2020: HK$500,000) were no longer utilised to generate
profits to the Group. For the purpose of impairment testing
on these trading rights, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on secondary market prices less cost
of disposal and no impairment was made at 31 March
2021 and 2020. The recoverable amounts of other trading
rights with carrying value of approximately HK$2,151,000
(2020: HK$1,601,000) held by the Group have been
determined with reference to the recoverable amounts based
on a value-in-use calculation. Details of the impairment
test on other trading rights are set out in note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

A H g R B #1500,00045 76
(% F4E 1 500,000% 7T) 2 385 HiE
TN AE F DA 2y A B2 ] R v P o 7E 3
W55 28 T WE B AT I A 0 IR > EC AT i
[ 4 A O MR 45— T 77 40 1 e S AR
AKMEE - A F—FRFF
EZH =1 — B - AN R
A BRI {E £ £92,151,0009 70 ( —F %
4F 11,601,000 70) 22iiﬁﬁ5c§%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ‘]
W e 4 B - B2 25 T e R o AR 4B
i I w98 025 1 7 o meﬁﬁ
2 W3 A T G RO B G S R R
FE22 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued

21.

Intangible assets amounting to approximately HK$6,312,000
(2020: HK$6,312,000) represent club memberships. For
the purpose of impairment testing on club memberships,
the recoverable amount has been determined based on the
second-hand market price less cost of disposal. No impairment
loss was recognised in years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020 with reference to the recoverable amount of the club
memberships.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading
rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

20 B EE—1E

B #16,312,0000 JC (& TUEAE
@mmm%m.zﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁé
Eo st e e s WEAN NS > H
A ] 4 B TG AR R T T AR A R
ERATEE - 25 G0 &8 2 ik
] & %1% » WRE _F - —4 K _F
TEREZH = H kAR I S R
ok A e 4

AAFERD L > LK HMEL G &R
FL A 48 PR (8 ) 473

GOODWILL 21. &
Broking
HKS$°000
T T
Cost B
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and RZFE—IFENH —H -~ X R4
1 April 2020 =A=1+— H&Q;#?EMH—H 15,441
Addition — acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43) ¥ ¥ — Wl B )& 2 =] (Bt 5843) 2,000
At 31 March 2021 R-E-_—=HA=+—H 17,441
Impairment VRN
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, R E— ﬂEMH*H “ECEEZNA
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 =t—H =% EEIH*B&
—E-—-H=8= + =i -
Carrying values BRME{E
At 31 March 2021 R-ZEBE-_—-%=H=+—H 17,441
At 31 March 2020 AR CEF A=+ —H 15,441

On 31 August 2020, the Group acquired 100% interests in
Red Eagle Securities Limited (“Red Eagle”) at an aggregate
consideration of HK$66,660,000. Red Eagle is engaged in
the securities brokerage business which is under the relevant
separate broking cash generating unit. The excess of the
consideration transferred over the acquisition-date fair
values of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of HK$2,000,000 was recognised as goodwill.
The detail of the acquisition is set out in note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Detail of the impairment test on goodwill are set out in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

W oECEEANA =+ —H $%§I
PA66,660,00035 70 2 A CAE g ik 12 o
FA M ([EF]) 2 100%HE 4 o ?%
B B S AC AL RS o JE AR B Y 8 L
R 508 B B o Y A R A T Rk
Al T Wi B R i RS AR I I i H
AN FRAE 1355 43-2,000,000% 7T J7 e 58
2 TR o GZ TE LS 1) REAE R & A a‘
5 3 B k43 o

B e el (B AR 2 W R AR A
B R M k22 -
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

22. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 22.
AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill set out in notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements have been allocated to the relevant
separate broking cash generating units ("CGUs"). The
carrying amounts of goodwill, net of accumulated
impairment losses and certain trading rights, net of
accumulated impairment losses, at 31 March 2021 and
2020 allocated to the CGUs are as follows:

BEREMXZEZRERR

O AR A B R M RE20 212 T
PR (5 4 00 5 B M R 0 TS
22 R Bl ) B 7. 8 50 A1 B A7 ([ B
fr]) e RFE R FFES
H=+—Hnr =88R 802 fE (4
bR 2 HEEE1R) B T 52 5 1 (Fu bR
LAFHEE R H) ZIREE T

Goodwill Trading rights

Gk X5
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#IT T# 7T
Carrying value at 1 April 2019, 2 #7?‘ JUEWH —H -
31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 —E fﬁ H=+—H
I ZFEZFENA—H
2 W THE 15,441 1,601
Addition — acquisition of a subsidiary T B — W R R 2 A
(note 43) (Fff5E43) 2,000 550
Carrying value at 31 March 2021 W—EBEZ—-F=H=+—H
Z R A 17,441 2,151

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs containing goodwill
and certain trading rights have been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 12% (2020: 12%) and at zero (2020: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value-in-use calculation is
the zero growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGUs to fall
below the aggregate carrying amount of the CGUs and no
impairment was made at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

EEHER LA TS RIS 2
AT I A O AR R A (T
fEE o W AT AR g e 2 T
TE AT DA 129% (& B4R u%
BRI R (R R )
W R R AT B A U = T o ?%5%
BAE B AR A EEE &
WRERTIRIE UL KRB KE G
BT R W 2 o T A
5 > AT R 2 AT o] A 3 7T 8 5 B A
B A A BB AL 2 A R AT i 4 AE
%ﬁ%ﬁ“ﬁzA%%ﬁﬁ M i =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.

24.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits
with various exchanges and clearing houses and are

non-interest bearing.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

23. HWEE

Hofth & 2 T BACKRN T A 22 5 B )
AT 2058 S AR B o A B A
jﬁ*%‘ﬁ °©

LOANS AND ADVANCES 24, ERR BN
2021 2020
—E-—F TR LA
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET Fisoc
Fixed-rate loan receivables [i] 58 1) 2% i U B R 529,293 700,057
Less: Loss allowances W c R R B (21,944) (10,844)
507,349 689,213
Secured A 234,531 248,241
Unsecured e FE 272,818 440,972
507,349 689,213

Analysed as: Gy B

Current ] 416,906 656,645
Non-current FE ) 90,443 32,568
507,349 689,213

At 31 March 2021, loans and advances with carrying
amount of approximately HK$234,531,000 are secured
by first mortgage of properties in Hong Kong with an
aggregate market value of approximately HK$556,460,000.

At 31 March 2020, loans and advances with carrying
amount of approximately HK$208,241,000 are secured
by first mortgage of properties in Hong Kong with an
aggregate market value of approximately HK$475,280,000;
carrying amount of approximately HK$40,000,000 are
secured by pledged securities with an aggregate fair value of
approximately HK$411,992,000.

The fixed rate loan receivables carry interest ranging
from 8% to 24% (2020: ranging from 6% to 24%) per
annum. The net outstanding balances are repayable on the

respective maturity dates from 2021 to 2025.

AR —FEZA=ZT—H s BlE
%4 #1234,531,000% 0 2 B3 M EGK
8T E B £9556,460,0009 T 2 BB Y
EZE BRI o

MREFZRF=H=1—H RHEHE
£ #1208,241,000%5 JT 2 B 3K ) K B
HaTH A £ %9475,280,000 0 2 W 1
AR S  HRIE(E 5 4
40,000,000 7T 2 B 5K S B i HA A
(B £ #1411,992,000% JC 2 E & # 3% 75
1B B HE47 -

[t 7E Al 2R HE i B 3K A T8 FE 24 )H
(B B4 ) F6JE £ 24H) 2 4FF|

HER o RIEEFAHBRAR F _—
T AR KA AR BB H (R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

24. LOANS AND ADVANCES - continued

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and

loss allowance for ECL of loans and advances is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

24, ERRBR—E

A B A B2 1 TS 2 £ LB DA BB R
Je G 2 R S 1R 2 IR 2
BORE > O B S R B A6 o

25. B BRIE

2021 2020
—g=—fF | —zoEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 FExT T
Accounts receivable arising from the WA EEERYEE
business of dealing in securities: 2 EUBRIA -
— Cash clients —HEeERF (a) 8,735 8,240
— Margin clients: —REEEF (b)
— Directors and their close family —EH LW HFEZ
members BERIEME 290,077 313,578
— Other margin clients —HAtRE R 3,521,227 3,378,716
— HKSCC —HBLE 22,462 369
— Broker — 54 350 -
Accounts receivable from futures clearing i & B & & #) £
house arising from the business of FEAER H I E
dealing in futures contracts 45T 22 i IR TE 16,252 12,282
3,859,103 3,713,185
Less: Loss allowances WK TR A (204,021) (148,318)
3,655,082 3,564,867

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
cash clients and securities clearing house are two days
after trade date while for accounts receivable from futures
clearing house are one day after trade date. All the accounts
receivable (net of loss allowance) are expected to be

recovered within one year.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and
loss allowance for ECL of accounts receivable is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

JE W B 2 B 5 I o O P 2 MR TN
EHEEEM B AW H T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes:

(a)

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients
are debtors with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$161,000 (2020: HK$546,000) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period but which the directors of the
Company consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which are

past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period,

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

25. BN BRIE — &
3k -

(a)

JEN L4 % 5 2 MRIE R AL A
HR T A T HR T (E 2% 49 161,000 7T
(ZFERAE 0 546,0004570) 2 MEULK
TH > M AR 2 A 3 58 5 A B A 4
R - R A BREE 2 M B R
o R B B I R o B T L R AR

& -

3 IR (0 e (E 2
W B 4B 7% 5 BRI & AH B R 6 AT

the ageing analysis (from settlement date) is as follows: (Pl &5 58 ARED W F -
2021 2020
R
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHERT T
0-30 days 0%F30K 145 438
31- 60 days 31 860K 13 1
Over 60 days 60K 3 107
161 546

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$8,574,000 (2020: HK$7,694,000) are neither
past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period and the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the amounts are

recoverable.

AR IR o B TE (B 45 £98,574,000%5
TG (" F TERAE 7,694,000 70) 2 HE
W B 4 5 2 R T ST 0 1 R 4
1B > AN ) 2 58 5 AT B A E S ol LA
W fml e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE_Z-_—FZA=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes: — continued

(b)

Accounts receivable from margin clients are secured by
clients’ pledged securities with fair value of approximately
HK$34,659,941,000 (2020: HK$11,060,046,000).
Significant portion of the pledged securities are listed equity
securities in Hong Kong. The loans are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date and carry interest typically at a
range from 7.236% to 9.500% per annum (2020: range from
7.236% to 9.252% per annum) at 31 March 2021. Securities
are assigned with specific margin ratios for calculating their
margin values. Additional funds or collateral are required if
the outstanding amount exceeds the eligible margin value
of securities deposited. The collateral held can be pledged
and can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle any

outstanding amount owed by margin clients.

Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due
from directors and their close family members. The details

are as follows:

25. EWERIE — &

Bif s — A

(b)

JEWARE SR FIRHAYUEF 24K
RS FAEH - GBS HZ A REL
£534,659,941,000%5 76 (& E A4 ¢
11,060,046,0005 7C) ° 7 # I Tl A
A ELHE A R S ) E A o A
CECHEZAZH S FRERK
TE &% H AR ZE AR 3 I R
P4 I Ay F-7.236)8 529,500 (&
TR AR R E A F7.236)H $£9.252
JE) FHE o AWK TS 2 RE S
R UG R S EE - R EE
HHEHBE A BRI S GRS
SEAE - A e EOR & PRI AN G 4
SR A o BT REA 2 JE A RT AT
> T A 4 [ 7T 16 A 2 4 DAAS T
PR3 4 % PR 2 AT ] o (B 38 308 o

e R L RS TR Tt s
BETFL A - 4 1 2 3 R A
S FERAE

GET

Maximum amount Market value of
Balance outstanding pledged securities
&h BEARELE ERg5ntE
At At At Duringthe  During the At At
1 April 31 March 31 March yarended  year ended 31 March 31 March
Name 2019 2020 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 2020 2021
#z gz
“hIRE ZBI-
REZ-NF RCZ-ZF Wo82-F ZA=t-H ZRZt-B ROZCZE R-B--F
4 WA-A ZA=t- ZB=t-H L5 L5 ZA=t-F ZA=t-H
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS'000 HK$000
T T TiEn T TiEn Tix Tin
Mr. Hung Hon Man, WECRE (RATES) -
director of the Company, KEEREMAUR
his close family members and —HEH gk
a controlling enity 167,018 313,55 290,060 316,559 323,277 1,414,158 9,056,720
Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Chuek (note &[54 (H3E14)())
14(a)(1)), director of (AATES)
the Company, his close family HRERK
members and a controlling encley AR —FEHIEE 30 Ji) 17 40 442 = 153

The above balances are repayable on demand and bear

interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates

offered to other margin clients.

NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #5 #1225 R A &

DA 455 2 MBS 8 LA
R 42 % 0 4 022 A 250 7 2
RIEE -
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BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

26. INVESTMENTS 26. BE
2021 2020
—E=-—F R CEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Fh 51 FET Tt
Mandatorily measured at FVPL: BE LR D RERA
BazhAsE:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong T F A w5 55 117,184 107,465
Unlisted convertible notes IE b7 AT e B (a) 13,815 19,785
Unlisted debt securities I ETHEESR (b) 116,558 85,740
Unlisted investment funds W ERS (c) 46,316 40,225
Payment for life insurance policy N TR Z A K (d) 2,061 -
295,934 253,215
Mandatory FVOCI: BERAARETA
Ht2mEs :
Debt securities B (e)
— Quoted in Hong Kong — R 155,224 153,620
— Quoted overseas — JRgA B 102,349 95,207
— Unlisted overseas — REANIE BT - 6,203
257,573 255,030
553,507 508,245
Analysed as: D
Current T 375,986 247,740
Non-current i H) 177,521 260,505
553,507 508,245
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

26. INVESTMENTS - continued

Notes:

(a)

The Group held unlisted convertible note with principal
amount of HK$18,462,000 (2020: HK$19,500,000) at
31 March 2021 which was issued by a Hong Kong listed
company, bears fixed interest of 16% (2020: 12%) per
annum and was due in May 2020. The fair value of the
unlisted convertible notes amounted to approximately
HK$13,815,000 at 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$19,785,000).

Upon the expiry of convertible note in May 2020, the Group
is no longer entitled to convert the whole or any part(s)
of the principal amount into ordinary shares of relevant
issuers at a price determined with reference to the terms and
conditions of the unlisted convertible notes.

The fair values of the unlisted convertible notes at 31 March
2021 was estimated with reference to the receivables amount
of the investments adjusted by the liquidity (2020: estimated
by RHL, an independent firm of professional valuers not
connected with the Group).

At 31 March 2021, the Group held two (2020: one)
redeemable bonds with principal amounts of HK$15,000,000
and HK$100,000,000 respectively (2020: HK$85,800,000)
which was issued by a listed company and a private company
(2020: a listed company) respectively. The redeemable bonds
bear fixed interest at 10% and 8% with due date in August
2021 and June 2021 respectively.

The redeemable bonds with principal amounts of
HK$100,000,000 which due in June 2021 has extended on
26 June 2021 for one year to June 2022.

The fair value of the redeemable bonds at 31 March 2021
and 2020 were estimated by RHL, an independent firm of
professional valuers not connected with the Group.

At 31 March 2021, the Group invested USD5,125,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$40,225,000) and
USDI00,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,091,000)
to hold 13.23% and 10% equity interests in Blue Elixir
LLC (“Blue Elixir”) and Vantage Absolute Return Fund
SP1 (“VARF SP17) respectively (2020: USD5,125,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$40,225,000) to hold
13.23% equity interests in Blue Elixir). Blue Elixir is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and engaged in unlisted equity investment. VARF
SP1 is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and engaged in unlisted equity investment.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

26. RE— &

(a)

(b)

(c)

A AL B A R L\ BTN
ﬁA#?#*$4H4+*HZ$i
B 1518,462,000% 70 (& 4 ¢
19,500,000%% JG) ZiFLFﬁT?ﬁ%Him
5 - ﬁl%%ﬂﬁ&mﬂ%?’lﬁlzﬁiﬂﬁm
E #7 —_ EF‘ 12r Fl+4l.&‘ 2 ﬂtaﬁ/\
e = ﬁﬂﬂ FH o JF b AT
LR YN gi‘gﬁgﬁl =tz
I8 S £ £913,815,0008 00 (& &
4 119,785,000% 9C) ©

] B SR R AR A E
% > AEBARF A 25 IR Lol Al
e B 2 A AR B AP T AT R AR A
SN T B B A A TS AT e S AR B
TR AR S RH B B8 AT N 2 d B

BT AT R A=A
=t EIZ/\ﬁ:ﬁTJ@%B%%TZTH&
Ie] 2= E S0 A 9 8 P R A (%
e 2% EEE@ZF%IEII%E% Z W5
SOEARE AT K FIAT A7)

WoE D AEZHZ=+H o AEH
FAEH—-MLmae &—HAAL
F)BE AT AN 4 FH 2 Bl £515,000,00095
Jt 5% 100,000,000% JC ( g;g FAE
85,800,000 J0) 2 Wi H (& &
AR —TH) A M AE SR o TE%?IEI%#&?
A B 105 K 8 B 2 [ 7 A T RN K
SrREIR N R R
av:E:E: i

T T AN H B AR A A
100000000#%75273/*‘!&#5#*

—HENH T NHIERE AR E
:Tjji/\ﬂ

RS A R R R
FEZH=ET—HZARME) il EALE
VB SO B [ 2 g S S A (LR AT K A
it

ATERTAEZA =1 —H > A%
[ 43 7 1F H5,125,0003% ¢ (FH & iR £
40,225,000%5 JC) 5900,0003 7T (FH &
i #16,091,0009 50) 2 % & LIAF A Blue
Elixir LLC ([ Blue Elixir]) 2 13.23%/%
# 2 Vantage Absolute Return Fund SPI
([ VARF SP1]) Z10%M%fi (=% —
FAE - AE H15,125,00035 7T (A & A 4
40,225,000 J6) 2 % & LA FF A Blue
ElixirZ 13.23%% %) © Blue Elixir/& it
PSR B M AL 2 ARA R > R
I LT EHESL A o VARF SP1J2 it B &
RESaE M oL 2 AR AT - HFIE L
R RER A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. INVESTMENTS - continued

Notes: — continued

(c) — continued

The fair value of the investment in Blue Elixir and VARF
SP1 at 31 March 2021 (2020: Blue Elixir) was estimated
with reference to the net assets value of the investment.

The amount represents a life insurance policy with an
insurance company to insure a staff of Red Eagle under which
Red Eagle is the beneficiary and policy holder and the total
insured sum is HK$2,000,000. The subsidiary is required
to pay an upfront payment at inception. The Group can,
at any time, withdraw cash based on the value of the policy
at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the gross
premium paid plus accumulated guaranteed interest earned
and minus any charges made in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the policy. If withdrawal is made between
the first to tenth policy year, as appropriate, a pre-determined
specified surrender charge would be imposed.

As represented by the directors of the subsidiary, the Group
will not terminate the policy nor withdraw cash prior to
the tenth year for the policy and the expected life of the
policy remained unchanged from the initial recognition.
The balance of the payments for life insurance policy is
denominated in HK$, being the functional currency of the

relevant subsidiary.

The guaranteed interest of the policy is at 3.75% per annum
for the first policy year, 3% per annum for the second policy
year and 2% per annum for third policy year to tenth policy
year onward and no guarantee interest for eleventh policy

year onward during the effective period of the policy.

The Group held quoted debt securities with principal
amount of HK$253,706,000 (2020: HK$251,438,000) at
31 March 2021 which bear interest of 4.70% to 12.38%
(2020: 4.55% to 11.50%) per annum and will be due in
2021 to 2026 (2020: due in 2020 to 2026). The Group
also held quoted perpetual debts with principal amount of
approximately HK$15,550,000 (2020: HK$21,005,000)
at 31 March 2021 which bear interest of 5.9% to 7% per
annum (2020: 5.9% to 7% per annum). The fair value of
these quoted debt securities amounted to HK$257,573,000
(2020: HK$248,827,000).

The fair values of the debt securities at 31 March 2021 and
2020 were estimated with reference to the price quoted by
independent brokers.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

26. BRE— &

BfaE - — A

(c)—#4

(d)

o E T~ =ZH=+—H > JABlue
Elixir X VARF SP1 (& " Z4 : Blue
Elixir) 2 EZ A ARME 2 HREZ
& R AL E

A AR — R B A A
Z—Z B THMBR NERE R
FhZ s NAMRERRE N BREL
2,000,000%5 7 © % M B 2 =) 2H AE BH 4R
W S0 A — T A 3K o A 4 I8 ] A5 AT A
IR [ FR 9 12 B H 300 2 £ B8 (4 B B
& REE(E O A N B R
2 B R B B0 25 AR R B K
FGE AR 2 AT o] i 22 T 7 7 o it
TE 55— F 5 1 R B AR B 2 [ R R
RRAE LI A ) - S ol 18 e 1 8 2 4
ERRA -

AR 2 ERER > AEEARE
HALRE S IR EAEREZHHFEZ
i PR BB 4 T LR B 2 T 055 A B
R R R AR AT AN B o A FEAR B AT
AN R R DAE T (BT B M8 2 =) 2 2h
fie & W) FHE o

PR BE 2 DR )R AE {1 PR B4 B 4
43,75 > B AW PR B AR BE O 45 4R 3
JEE > B =l PR AL A T A 5 {1 R B AR
JEHE Sy AR A2 > B — flE R B AR B
TE PR B2 A7 250 30 0 R R S o

AERMIFAR _FE 4= = —
H 2 A 4 % 55253,706,000% 7 (%
TR AE 1 251,438,000% T) =z b fE
Wi J o A B SR AR R R4, 70JE &
12,388 (% AR 455 A11.50
JE) FFE R T — R O F
TONARSI (DR T R R
R T TONESIN]) o AR IR
AR R ==+ —H2 A%
A 515,550,000 70 (& UEAE
21,005,000 7C) 2 Lk EES > H
FRAEF|Rs 9 FE 7 (—F ~FF 159
JEZE7E) 58 o W% EHEBE R
48 S {E £5257,573,000% 76 (=& — %
4F : 248,827,000% 7C) ©

BHEHFR T FR T T

EA=EF—HZARERSFEB LK
A0 2 MR T AG R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

28.

29.

27. AR - REREMWEUWR

RECEIVABLES 15
2021 2020
—go—f | —xous
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T T
Prepayments Y8 £ 5k TH 1,488 1,189
Other deposits HoAth 3% 4 8,938 30,188
Other receivables At kg 3 TE 37,904 25,565
Deposits paid for acquisition of property Wi i P 2 w2
and equipment EEREVES 25,136 -
73,466 56,942
Analysed as: i
Non-current JE A B 25,136 -
Current i B 48,330 56,942
73,466 56,942

All current balances are expected to be recovered within one

year except for deposits of approximately HK$2,740,000

(2020: HK$1,361,000).

BANK BALANCES - CLIENT ACCOUNTS

The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients

and other institutions in the course of the conduct of the

regulated activities of its ordinary business. These clients’

monies are maintained in one or more segregated bank

accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding

accounts payable to respective clients and other institutions

(note 30).

BANK BALANCES - GENERAL

ACCOUNTS AND CASH

29.

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and

short-term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging
from 0% to 0.25% (2020: 0% to 1.5%) per annum.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

28.

JIT A5 3 B &6 i 2 TE R — A A i ]
M #)2,740,000% 70 (& A4
1,361,000% JC) Z & & BRI ©

IRITESR-—FFERF

A A g B H R TS N AT Z B
Y B I WO R BT S A
PRt He g o IWEE R P KIE JIAE i —
s 2 (8 7 L ERATHRF o A O
RO A B R P R H A R S A 2 K
TH (B 5E30) ©

RITEH - —REFRRE

FE R EEEALHEA 2B & U
JF T 35 2R (4F ) Z A F-0JE £20.25
JE) (T AR ) EELSE) 5EEZ
FHASRATAE K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

30. FE{TBRIE

2021 2020
—ERC-F | DA DEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
i 1 FERT T T
Accounts payable arising from the WAREEEBPEEZ
business of dealing in securities: JRE A R IH
— Cash clients —HERF (a) 374,297 105,081
— Margin clients —REEEF (b) 295,300 351,749
- HKSCC —HBLR (a) 2,043 7,673
Accounts payable to clients arising from & & 4 H & EH +
the business of dealing in futures 7E A 2 A % AR I
contracts (c) 24,159 13,972
695,799 478,475

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of

directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give

additional value in view of the nature of business.

(a)

(b)

©

The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to
cash clients and securities clearing houses are two days

after trade date.

Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable
on demand and carry interest at 0.025% (2020: 0.025%)
per annum. Included in accounts payable to margin
clients arising from the business of dealing in securities
are amounts due to directors of the Company, their close
family members and a controlling entity of approximately
HK$553,000 (2020: HK$280,000).

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits received
from clients for their trading of futures contracts on the
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “HKFE”). The
excesses of the outstanding amounts over the required initial
margin deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to

clients on demand.

BIREB ZMH > AN R EHB IR
i 73 A7 Sl S AN o PR L S B A R
MRt T o

() BEABE®EF &b 5480 T 2k
AR IEW IR S AR H -

(b) KB F R 4% T 3 E N Bk
I 18 32 517 L $920.025)8 (=& =&
A0 0.02508) 2 AEFIREHE o iESR
HEEGELZEMRBLEEZS
RIS > EIGEM AN A ES
5 2 B9 R0 B I T
(1) 2K JH #553,000% 70 (& &
4E 1 280,000 7T) ©

(o) W& B 3EH b 2 EAT
HFHRIA - AR & P R LR
MBS A RA R (TR
prl) HEMAEGH 2 RE S %
G o I W ST B BLE B ) Z W0
PR 1% & 2 i R IR 12 BB > ZH
A% EOR R AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

31. AMOUNTS DUE TO 31. REZEBRBRERARIE

NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand. o7 7
32. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 2. BT ERARHEMENSRIE
PAYABLES
2021 2020
—EBC-—F TR
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T T
Accruals MEHT 2 5,330 4,636
Other payables HC At 8 A5 T 3,308 3,098
Receipt in advance T U 3 TH 149 -
8,787 7,734
33. LEASES 33.HE

Lease liabilities

At 31 March 2021, the weighted average discount rate
applied was 2.28% per annum.

Commitments and present value of lease liabilities:

HERE
BoEDFE=ZA=Z+—H TER
(9 Jon B SF- 347 s B 4 1 4 47 2.28%

RYE AR E A AR BLE
Present value

Minimum of minimum

lease payments lease payments

BREAEMNR
REHAENSRK ZHE
2021 2021
—E-——5F —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Amounts payable: JRE A 4
Within one year —4E AN 1,183 1,163
In the second to fifth years inclusive B OEREHENR
(L3 B Wi 4F) 378 377
1,561 1,540
Less: future finance charges W R AR (21) -
Total lease liabilities HEEEAE 1,540 1,540

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

33. LEASES - continued 33. HE— &
Lease liabilities — continued HEEE-&
The Group leases office premises, berth and staff quarters ALEEFE R AL A E TIE
for its daily operations. Lease terms are ranging from 1 & M HEEE o L | A 224
month to 2 years. Certain leases provide the Group with an RNEE o T & A E v DU
option to terminate the leases after expiration of the first T AE 0 A% B T W AR A AE R0 A&k AR
year with 2 months’ notice. The interest expenses on lease B - EAMNFE B SR 4R G
liabilities are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial B EM 12 -
statements.
The Group has recognised the following amounts for the A 5 1B AF A R LA R 4
year:
2021 2020
=
HK$’°000 HK$’000
THERT THs T
Lease payments: FHE AR
Short-term leases KT 899 1,160
Leases of low value assets REEEEME 280 282
Expenses recognised in profit or loss i i T R 2 B S 1,179 1,442
Lease payments on lease liabilities HEAEZHEMNK 752 -
Total cash outflow for leases THE 2 B4 0tk AR 1,931 1,442
Commitments under leases HEARE
At 31 March 2021, the Group was committed to approximately NE A= —H AEE
HK$74,000 (2020: HK$74,000) and HK$233,000 (2020: T J 199 R B R A5 {1 o R B O T Y
HK$513,000) for short-term leases and leases of low value assets FRYE 4y Al %) Fy74,0008 o0 (—F &
respectively. A1 74,0008 70) 233,000 00 (. F

TEAE 513,000 0T) o
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34. JE AE B IH
The following are the deferred tax (assets) liabilities DN E#RE X —F K - F T
recognised and the movements thereon during the years “HZ TP —HILFEE W EER
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020. H(EE) AED L)

Collective
Revaluation ~ Revaluation  impairment

Decelerated tax ~ Revaluation of  of Mandatory  of Designated  on loans and

depreciation properties FVOCI FVOCI advances Total
EffBH  EffiRR
k3 BAAEHA ROAEIA  ERRER

HENE  EfNR Rt2ENE ARRE4E  2RENHE /it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000

Tk T T T T T

Ac 1 April 2019 A E-HENA-H (271) 7,290 (770) (1,004) (5) 5,040
Disposal of subsidiaries B A - - - 686 - 686
Charge to profit or loss for the year MBRAEERE (H3E15)

(note 15) 95 - - - - 95
Charge (Credit) to other comprehensive 1153 (5P A ) A4 FL

income for the year ESie - 184 (3,153) 318 - (2,651)
At 31 March 2020 WoEBEZA= R (176 7474 (3.923) - 5 3370
Charge to profit or loss for the year MBRAEERE (H3E15)

(note 15) 95 - - - - 95
(Credit) Charge to other comprehensive (5 A) R A H Al

income for the year e - (373) 3,401 - - 3,028
At31 March 2021 R-8--£=f=1-H (81) 7,101 (522) - 6) 6,493
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated T St R - A SR A #9143,096,000
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$143,096,000 T (& ZFA4F 1 105,746,00045 C)
(2020: HK$105,746,000) available to offset against future Z A EE A B R B JE i 48 w] ) DA R B R
profits. The tax losses have not been recognised due to A& i F] o F T R BE 1A I A 14 L M AR
uncertainty of future profit streams and may be carried P TR Gl i e RE B TE S 4R - A B U
forward indefinitely. JH AT 0 R0 4 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34, DEFERRED TAXATION - continued

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

34, EERIE &

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets)

liabilities for financial reporting purposes:

IR SE B TH (287 ) £ B B 5 i
AT

IJH

Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2021 2020 2021 2020
e A S o ik o e S
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T#IT FHET T#IT
Decelerated tax depreciation A% 2k B JE P 8 (522) (522) 441 346
Revaluation H Al (1,165) (3,923) 7,744 7,474
Collective impairment on loans £ 3K X ¥R 2
and advances Sy BTN (5) (5) - -
Deferred tax (assets) liabilities PEIEFITE (&)
A (1,692) (4,450) 8,185 7,820
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. B 7k
Number of shares Amount
KRB A T8
2021 2020 2021 2020
:g:—qﬁ #?# ﬂi :g:_qi #?# ﬂi
’000 ’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR T It FET T#IT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each £ IR {H0.107 5T
2
Authorised: B
At the beginning and the end of i ¥t 5 1 4]
the reporting period KR E B R 30,000,000 | 30,000,000 | 3,000,000 | 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: E AT MBI
At the beginning and the end of 7 ¥t 5 1 4]
the reporting period K E R 9,662,706 9,662,706 966,270 966,270
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 16
May 2002 has expired on 5 June 2012. The Company has

adopted a new share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”)

pursuant to a resolution passed on 24 August 2012. The

major terms of the Option Scheme are summarised as

follows:

(a)

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
an incentive for eligible participant to work with
commitment towards enhancing the value of the
Company and the shares for the benefit of the
shareholders of the Company and to retain and attract
persons whose contribution are or may be beneficial to

the growth and development of the Group.

(b) The eligible participants of the Option Scheme

(c)

include: (a) any executive director, or employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or any
entity in which the Group holding an equity interest
(“Invested Entity”); (b) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and (c) any such
other persons (including but not limited to supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser, contractor, business
partner or service provider of the Group or any
Invested Entity) who in the absolute discretion of the

Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of
securities of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time.

(d) The total number of shares which may be issued upon

exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed the number
of shares as shall represent 10% of the total number of

shares in issue.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

(i)

()

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each participant in any
twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being.

There is no minimum period required for the holding

of a share option before it can be exercised.

A share option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined by the directors, the period
may commence on a day after the date upon which the
offer for the grant of share options is made but shall
not be later than ten years from the date of grant of the

share option.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, must be
made within 5 business days from the date of the offer

of grant of the share option.

The exercise price of a share option must be the higher

of:

(i) the closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations on the date of the offer of

the grant;

(ii) the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer
of the grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the share of the

Company.

The Option Scheme will expire on 23 August 2022.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021
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®
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B

ECE-—F=ZA=t+—HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2021

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

On 16 January 2019, options to subscribe 289,800,000
ordinary shares were granted to 3 eligible participants other
than employees under the Option Scheme at an exercise
price HK$0.26 per share. The validity period of the share
options is two years from the date of grant (i.e. from 16
January 2019 to 15 January 2021). The share options vest
immediately as the eligible participants are not required
to complete a specified period of service before becoming
unconditionally entitled to those equity instruments. The
Company recognised the services provided in full at the date

of grant.

On 21 August 2019, the refreshment of scheme mandate
limit under the Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
by way of an ordinary resolution. The Company is thus
entitled to issue a maximum of 966,270,593 shares upon
exercise of the share options to be granted under the
refreshed scheme mandate limit, representing 10% of the
issued shares as at the date of the annual general meeting
held on 21 August 2019.

No share options were exercised during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 36. ﬁ%ﬂﬁifgf—r%ﬂ —
On 20 November 2020, outstanding options to subscribe REFECEFEL A RERE
289,800,000 ordinary shares under the Option Scheme JIEHE 5T 1) FT 52 289,800,000 A% % 78 ik
were cancelled and share option reserve of HK$8,776,000 ) A AT 1 8 I HE 9l 5 8 108,776,000
has been transferred to retained earnings accordingly. 5 0 2 B R R A A A R B
Details of the movements of share options granted to FI o 52t R R 003 110 Wl FSC R 5 o) N
subscribe for the shares are as follows: L/(1 N

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE-ZE--F=ZA=+—-HLHFE

Number of shares issuable under the Option Scheme

REERETRTNRAHE
Granted Exercised Cancelled  Outstanding
At1April  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  at 31 March
Category 2020 year year year 2021
R
R “Eo-%
. i ZR=t-H
g5l BA-B  FARE  FRTE  FREE  MEOE
Non-employe eligible participants FEEZAERSHY 289,800,000 - - (289,800,000) -
Weighted average exercise price per share (HKS) BRIET T 0E (&) 0.26 - - NATER -

Year ended 31 March 2020

WE_F FE=ZH=F+—HILFEZ

Number of shares issuable under the Option Scheme

RERBE T R0 R 8

Granted Exercised Cancelled  Ourstanding at

t1 April during the during the during the 31 March

Category 2019 year year year 2020
i

i “3-36

-k ==t

Bl MH—H FERE FERfrE L W AR ATf
Non-employee eligible participants FREZAERSHEE 289,800,000 = - - 289,800,000
Weighted average exercise price per share (HK$) IR 7 {8 (T) 0.26 = = 4 0.26
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

36.

37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

The fair value of share options on the date of the grant is
estimated by using the Binomial Model with the following
parameters:

Grant date 16 January 2019

Weighted average stock HK$0.255
price on grant date

Exercise price HKS$0.26

Risk-free rate 1.693%

Expected option period 16 January 2019 to

15 January 2021

33.89%
7.84%

Expected volatility*
Expected dividend yield

* The expected volatility is based on statistical analysis of daily

share prices annualised for one year immediately preceding

the grant date.

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from

financing activities are as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2021

36. BREFTE &

37.

HEA G LA I SRR G 2 A R
S RO HE T 42 Hh H AR B 2 Fu .

B H —F—JUE
—H+75H

P HZ 0.255%5 70

TINHE - 34 i 1

T 0.263 7T
e J Bz 1) 2 1.693%
TE T I HE B R —E LA
—H+AH=E

N ST

—H+HH

T HA I 33.89%
TH I E % 7.84%

< T E) AL B BT 4R
AL AR H OB ) SR T

HitBERESR
A% 35 1 ) O O R B

G

BE-E-—F=A=+—HILEE

Non-cash changes

FRERE

At At

1 April Net cash Interest Dividend  Additions of 31 March

2020 flows expense declared lease 2021

R R

t- S 3.3 —8Z-f

BA-B REREE MEMx CERKRE  FERE ZA=t+-H

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

T TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

Bank borrowings RITHE - (3,098) 3,098 - - -

Dividend payable TEft 5L - (86,964) : 86,964 = -
Dividend payable to non-controlling — JEATT— 3 2 B

interest of a non-wholly owned INTp& 2 g i

subsidiary a3} - (33,765) - 33,765 - -

Lease liabilities fEARE - (752) 28 = 2,264 1,540

Net cash used in financing activities % 15 B0 7 F 514 15 4 - (124,579) 3,126 120,729 2,264 1,540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION -

38.

39.

continued
Year ended 31 March 2020

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

f&iﬁﬁﬂlb *SI-—,%

WE_F FE=H =+ —HILFE

Non-cash changes

FHEED
At At
1 April Net cash Interest Interest 31 March
2019 flows expense accrued 2020
ey K2 & REFZFE
MA—H i B % ZHAE ZAZ1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Bank borrowings RiTfEE 50,000 (50,923) 923 - -
Convertible bonds issued by —M LT EA R
a listed subsidiary B2 kR Es 233,524 (265,139) 31,178 437 -
Net cash used in financing activities BEEHREN4 R 283,524 (316,062) 32,101 437 -
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 38. R IKE FI 5T &

The Group has joined a pension scheme under the

rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund

Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying

employees in Hong Kong.

The assets of the MPF Scheme

are held separately in an independently managed fund. The

Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution

requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate

income. The contributions, amounting approximately
HK$999,000 (2020: HK$899,000), are charged to the

profit or loss as incurred.

BANK FACILITIES
At 31 March 2021, the

Group had banking facilities

totaling HK$918,000,000 (2020: HK$1,083,000,000)

granted by financial insti

tutions in Hong Kong. These

banking facilities are secured by charges over clients’

pledged securities and certain of the Group’s properties and

by corporate guarantees issued by the Company. Details of

the Group’s pledged assets

are disclosed in note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2021, the

Group had undrawn amounts

under these banking facilities of HK$918,000,000 (2020:

HK$1,083,000,000).

39.

% A [ AR B o M S B B R R Ak
Z LRI B LG 2y s A A B R B
ZBURIR G FEE ([ A& E D)
etz EEd —MB L EMEs
FRFE A o A 42 1 AR 95 B 05 2 I 3K
e  WEGEREESHARBEALR
Z5% MK o £ ##1999,000% T (= F
TURAR £ 899,00045 UG ) AR A EE A
IRF 76 48 45 1R o

IRITHE
AR =T —H o AEE
T S 4 B A AR LD 5 $£918,000,000
W0 (& & 4F 1 1,083,000,00035 70)
ZERATAE B - LS RAT (S R U
BFEZ OGS AAEEETYE
ZHED o DA R AR ) 2 o A R
TERIER - REBC I 2 EEFEHE
ER SR MR R M G4 198 8 -

MR_-F_—F=H=+—H &%
B A B 4 SR AT (5 SR P Y R 4R UK

%8 /4918,000,000%5 7T (& A4 ¢
1,083,000,000%% JG) °
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

39.

40.

41.

BANKING FACILITIES - continued

During the reporting period, bank borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$8,086,789,000 (2020: HK$320,000,000)
were advanced from banks and repaid in full during the year.
The borrowings were secured by charges over clients” pledged

securities, interest bearing with a range from 0.48% to 7.28%

39.

RITEE &

R HERAT %@S’iﬂ’]%ﬁﬁ SRSy
%7 148,086,789,000% G (—F — E
320,000,000%5 JG) M B 7 4 1R 7% B
o WHEMBEEF N EHHSR LK
5 7 AE R R 550488 £7.28F (&

(2020: 1.93% to 3.91%) per annum and repayable within 10 TR 1,938 2£3.918) FHEIE A AE
days from drawdown date. PRECH AR 10K A % -
COMMITMENTS 40. &4
Capital commitments BEAREE
2021 2020
—EC--F | ZFFF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT T#C
Capital expenditure contracted but not AU THBEZETH
provided for in the consolidated financial B 48 & I R R
statements in respect of: R 2 EAB S
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wz e — [T B Jag 2 - 56,638
Addition to investment properties NEREYE 921 8,327
Addition to property and equipment IR/ ES & &) 556 -
1,477 64,965
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41. EEE A

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group:

DAF R 2 B O AR > R AR
5 F M SR AT 5 BB 2 KA

2021 2020
:g: - E'E — ? — EF‘
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT T#T
Hong Kong g

Leasehold land & 1 64,142 66,583
Buildings S 36,600 36,190
100,742 102,773

In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also secured oh s R EFE—FE=H=+—H >
by charges over clients’ pledged securities of fair value of AEMEZ WATHFEEFHIIHARMBED

approximately HK$276,093,000 (2020: HK$554,854,000)
at 31 March 2021 and corporate guarantees issued by the
Company.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions / information disclosed

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

2.BEALRS
I 5 o 5 4 L A 0 T 4 2 52

elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during 5y GRS > AR YR AT LR
the year, the Group had the following transactions with B N 355
related parties:
(a) Transactions ) X3
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2021 2020
BEALHSE BB REME —E-—-F R R
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT T
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Cham Wai Ho Anthony, Brokerage commission 2,364 915
Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk (note 14(a)(i)), income (note i)
Hung Sui Kwan, Shum Kin Wai Frankie,
Cheng Wai Ho, Ng Hon Sau Larry, their close
family members and controlling entities
HEEE SR - HEEE SR - HRSEE REACA U (B 3ED)
(B E14() () ~ HbEmdfdesd ~ AR s
R ek - R EE S
B RN A DA R R R
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Kam, Eddie Shing Interest income (note ii) 17,430 15,827
Cheuk (note 14(a)(i)), Hung Sui Kwan, Shum
Kin Wai Frankie, Ng Hon Sau Larry, their close
family members and controlling entities
HEEESCHEE RSB (R 14 () FE A (B s
Wh SRR AL REREL
1 5 2 B9 K LB DA B
Mr. Hung Hon Man’s associate Rental income (note iii)
BEVE SO 2 TN+ A A (B aEiii) 600 650
License fee income
(note iv)
SRR LN
(B Eiv) 140 -

Notes: e

(i) Commission was charged at 0.1% to 0.25% (2020: i) MEHLELHBMEZ0.1%E
0.1% to 0.25%) on the total value of transactions. 0.25% (& “F4HF 0. 1% %

0.25%) YLHL

(i)  Interest was charged at 7.236% to 9.500% per annum (i) A B ¥ A H7.236)H £9.500/H
(2020: 7.236% to0 9.252% per annum) on the outstanding (ZF K47 236J% £9.252
balances of margin loans. J) 2 R 2 KRR A B R ME

2 45 BRSO -

(iii) Monthly rental fee was charged ac HK$50,000 (2020: (i) BE_ZE_—F=H=1+—H1
range from HK$42,000 to HK$65,000) during the year AF T A 7 OB 2 1 42 450,000
ended 31 March 2021. WIT (TR B £pF 42,000

JC 2£65,000% 76) ©

(iv) Monthly license fee income was charged at HK$20,000 (R = == — 4= — HEnEs F ok

during the year ended 31 March 2021. AEE W%HWHXLZ%E 18 ) 22 Wi
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -
continued
(b) Remuneration to key management personnel

The remuneration of members of key management,
other than directors as disclosed in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements, was as follows:

22.BEALRSE &

b) TEEBAESZHTFM
W 5 5 B 5 ik 2% B Rk 1407 B R 2
HHEI KW FEEEHABZH
M

2021 2020

Sl

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Salaries and other benefits 4 N HoAh AR A 5,938 4,584
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  #E R 48 | it #1 1L 2k 118 118
6,056 4,702

The remuneration of directors and other key management
personnel is determined by the performance of individuals

and market trends.

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Acquisition of Tao Yun Company Limited (“Tao Yun”)
On 19 May 2020, the Group entered into a sale and

purchase agreement to acquire 100% equity interest
of Tao Yun, at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$488,525,000 from an independent third party (the
“Vendor”). Under the deed of assignment, the Vendor
has also assigned and transferred a loan due from Tao
Yun amounting to approximately HK$161,451,000 to
the Group. The principal activity of Tao Yun is property
holding. The acquisition was completed on 24 June 2020.
Upon completion of the transaction, Tao Yun had become a

wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

The transaction costs of HK$1,010,000 have been excluded
from the consideration transferred and included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

In the opinion of the directors, these acquisitions did not
constitute business combination as defined in HKFRS
3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”. Therefore, the
acquisitions have been accounted for as acquisition of assets
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A
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43. WM B 2 A

WEEEERAR(HED

o ERERH LA REHE
D) %7488,525,000 7 2 Bl 4 AR AE 7] —
L = ([E ) ik i E
100%B HE o I IR MR 3240 » & I8
E 1) A< 4 5] 0 RS SRR E i R 4D
161,451,000% 7T & 3K » A py) £ 2 ¥
B R R - i HE N 2
FHENHA T MHE TR 5%
1% - Ve T AN 2R H Y A B R A
e

1,010,000 JC [ 38 5 W{ A B2 4 8 38 (1)
FRAE BB > 36 7E 45 8 o b HiAth &
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43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES—

continued

Acquisition of Tao Yun Company Limited (“Tao Yun”)-
continued

The subsidiary made no significant contribution to the
revenue and results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021 after acquisition. The revenue and results
of the subsidiaries were also insignificant if the above
acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the
reporting period.

Acquisition of Red Eagle

On 13 January 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire 100% equity interest
of Red Eagle, at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$66,660,000 from Mr. Hung Hon Shing, the elder
brother of Mr. Hung Hon Man, an executive director of the
Company. The principal activity of Red Eagle is securities
brokerage business, provision of margin financing services
and placing services. It is a licensed corporation to carry
out Type 1 regulated activity (dealing in securities) under
the SFO and is a participant of the Stock Exchange. The
acquisition was completed on 31 August 2020.

The transaction costs of HK$40,000 have been excluded
from the consideration transferred and included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to
the synergies and economies of scale expected to arise from
the business combinations. None of the goodwill recognised
is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

In respect of the acquisition, the fair value of accounts
receivable acquired is approximately HK$42,598,000.
The gross contractual amount of the accounts receivables
is approximately HK$42,598,000, of which no balance is
expected to be uncollectible.

Since acquisition, the acquired business has contributed
approximately HK$6,695,000 and HK$1,620,000 to the
revenue and results of the Group respectively.

If the business combinations effected during the year had
been taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue
and profit for the Group would have been increased
by approximately HK$13,183,000 and HK$4,648,000
respectively.

x & BT 8 3R B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

43. WIRM B~ 8 — &

WERSEARAR(RE])-&

WelEAR - B A R B AL E —F
TAE= A =t BB E i K
ES S T Oy R LRI
TEAE i 0 L RCHEST > BB R Y
ETRIE )/

Uy B E

AR FAE—H+=H > REMEFT
S H ik DL 4766,660,0009 7T 2 B4
AR 1) P ST AR (B AR N A AT
EPLE A 2 ) W TE DL 2 100%
B o B FEIRE) AR L %
W~ PR BB A & IR B i R
Moo Ho Ay Al A R R K B AR T Y
WIS GEARLS) 2k
BN A W A fir 2 S B3 o IR SR TH E
W oEEZFENAZT—HEM -

40,0007 IT 14 38 5 lAS 2 78 T age i A48
oI BR > Sl FE 45 A 4R £ M H At 2 T
%52 P B AATHBE S o

WA S = D A ) T R R R S TR A 3
B & U 7 2 0 b ] 2 2 B WA AL 3 o
TE MR e R R % AT R 0 BR BT
B -

WU T S AT O 2 IR TH
2N S AR R F542,598,0009 00 o FE IR
TH 2 45 %) &4 £542,598,000% T
T 09 310 4 AH BE 4% i 2 R i ] o

H Wi B =5 T DA SR > T i B S T S A 4R
9 i 4 % 3 45 oy Al BRK 496,695,000 5
JC }1,620,000%: JG °

it 5 47 N HEAT 1Y SE B & BF 2 A6 4 0 3

17 > A48 [E 1 Wi o5 M v A 5# 0 Al 43
#)13,183,000%5 JC M 4,648,000 G °
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HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES -
continued

The following summarises the consideration paid and the
amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the

date of acquisition:

43. WIRM B~ 8 — &

OB B A AR A B T i

e 7R A AR W H ) 2

Tao Yun Red Eagle Total
RE ER et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T 0 T T
Consideration RE
Cash & 488,525 60,460 548,985
Deposits paid for acquisition of a A A TR AR o — [ R e
subsidiary in previous year NEZ B AR 4 - 6,200 6,200
Total consideration transferred CEERBEASE 488,525 66,660 555,185
Recognised amounts of identifiable AR TRBEER
assets acquired and liabilities FiEEREZ
assumed: EEASHE
Property and equipment (note 18) W) 2 TR (Rt sk18) 425,000 335 425,335
Investment properties (note 19) WEYE (HEE19) 75,000 - 75,000
Intangible assets (note 20) MY & E (Fff5E20) - 550 550
Other assets HoAh & A - 180 180
Investments HE — 2,001 2,001
Accounts receivable JE i R TR - 42,598 42,598
Prepayment, deposit and other FEAT I ~ Hed K
receivables Al i R TE 957 493 1,450
Bank balances — client accounts BIT&ESR—KFPER - 11,402 11,402
Bank balances — general accounts SRATHE R — — IR P
and cash B4 215 23,328 23,543
Accounts payable AT IR TE - (15,085) (15,085)
Accrued charges and other payables — JfE 51 2% F S Ho Al e A5 3 IR (299) (318) (617)
Tax payable JRE A B IH (12,348) (824) (13,172)
Total identifiable net assets EBEEFEEARE 488,525 64,660 553,185
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEELEZHE
(note 21) (Bff£21) - 2,000 2,000
488,525 66,660 555,185
Net cash flow on acquisition of L 10y N pd
subsidiaries: REREFHE
Net cash acquired from the A7E B Jog 2 ) A B 2 B 4
subsidiaries e i} 215 23,328 23,543
Consideration paid during the year B A E (488,525) (60,460) (548,985)
(488,310) (37,132) (525,442)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A



44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

x & BT 8 3R B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

44, "D B 2 B R R R &

2021 2020
—es-F| “xoxk
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 FExT AP
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property and equipment EN & ] 24 37
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries B A R Z E FTHHRE  44(a) 1,844,473 1,844,473
1,844,497 1,844,510
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments 2 B B SRR 586 738
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wiz B JB8 2 ) 2k JE 2,721,519 2,441,490
Bank balances — general accounts SRATHE G — — IR
and cash & 160,900 433,333
2,883,005 2,875,561
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued charges and other payables 7|2 I J HAth fE 45 3k I8 585 1,451
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A B} g > ) XA 616,162 611,912
616,747 613,363
Net current assets REBEEFEE 2,266,258 2,262,198
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 4,110,755 4,106,708
Capital and reserves EXKf#E
Share capital JBA 35 966,270 966,270
Reserves Tt i 44(b) 3,144,485 3,140,438
TOTAL EQUITY HERE R 4,110,755 4,106,708
(a) Included in unlisted investments in subsidiaries (a) M Al 2 JE b A S
are deemed capital contribution amounting to 60,840,000 JC (—F — F 4 -

HK$60,840,000 (2020: HK$60,840,000). The capital

contribution represents the imputed interest on

interest free amounts due from subsidiaries which are

not expected to be recovered within 12 months from

the end of the reporting period.

60,840,000 JC) Z HLMEH & o H
AR B 2 BB A R R K (TR
i i A X (=

[B]) 2 #f 55 A S o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E-B--F=ASt-ALEE

B

= —=

Year ended 31 March 2021

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY - continued

(b)

44, KDNTB 2 BERRK—E

Movement of the reserves (b) FEEEE
Share
Share Special option  Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
ROEE HBARE BRERE REBF ok
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000
i T T Tk T T
(note i)
(W3ED)
At 1 April 2019 HZFE—JENA—H 2,933,438 194,549 8,776 (13,066) 3,123,697
Profit for the year REERA - - - 185,838 185,838
Transactions with owners: HEBAZRS
Contributions and distributions O Rk
- Dividends paid to owners — A NREZBE 16 - - - (169,097)  (169,097)
- - - 16,741 16,741
At 31 March 2020 M_F T4
=H=+—H 2,933,438 194,549 8,776 3,675 3,140,438
Profit for the year REERA - - - 91,011 91,011
Transactions with owners: HBEBAZRS
Contributions and distributions 1 KAk
~ Cancellation of share options — T B 36 - - (8,776) 8,776 -
- Dividends paid to owners — A NREEZIE 16 - - - (86,964) (86,964)
- - (8,776) 12,823 4,047
At 31 March 2021 R-B=-%
=B=+-8H 2,933,438 194,549 - 16,498 3,144,485
Notes: FifEE -
() HRFFAARLN F O - B A

(i)  As included in the share premium of the Company,

the transaction costs of the placing were paid to its
subsidiary, Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”) and

would be eliminated in the consolidated financial

statements.

(i) At 31 March 2021, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to sharcholders were approximately
HK$3,144,485,000 (2020: HK$3,131,662,000) which

comprised the share premium, special reserve and retained

earnings.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

(ii)

NG PAIE R i er AN
Ui S5 1) L LB 22 5y A HE IR A
A B R op e

R_E-—F=A=+—H &
NCIPAEI Kb e S el A )
143,144,485,000 o0 (& %
4 13,131,662,000%50) > 45
3-3a A8 ~ 1 Tl At 5 T % 7 2R o



45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Get Nice Financial Group
Limited
EHEMERHRAA
King Joy Asia Limited
Ao A R A

Red Eagle (note b)

3 (3ED)

Get Nice Incorporated

GNS
g

Get Nice Currency
Exchange Limited

B HIA R

Place of
incorporation

B ARIE

Cayman Islands

HERE

British Virgin Islands
(‘BVI")

ERELHE

Hong Kong

Eik

BVI
&L BB

Hong Kong
&k

Hong Kong

i

Class of
shares held

i s B 42

Ordinary
Tk
Ordinary
Tk

Ordinary

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
Wik

Non-voting
deferred shares
(note a)

FEE (B 5Ea)
Ordinary

Lk

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

BERARMR
RE/EREs

HK$25,000,000
25,000,000 7T
US$1
1£T

HK$60,000,000

60,000,000 7T

US$10,000
10,0005 ¢

HK$1,660,000,000
1,660,000,0007 7T

HK$40,000,000

40,000,000 1C

HK$1

15t

b SRR SRR M S
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T-_—F=A=+—RHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

45. TEMB L AFHE

A w2 EEMHE A ARSI

Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/registered capital
held by the Company
ARABEZERIRE/
HMEFEEEDL

2021
—E--&
Directly Indirectly

ER HE

72.99 -

- 7299

- 7299

- 7299

- 7299

- 7299

2020
2k
Directly Indirectly

HE W

72.99 -

- 72.99

- N/A

A

- 72.99

- 72.99

= 72.99

Principal

activities

IREH

Investment holding
g tid
Investment holding

BERER

Securities dealing
and broking and
securities margin
financing

e S e
ES T o
(it 4 il

Investment holding

BERER

Securities dealing
and broking and
securities margin
financing

wHE LA
E3 VT
ikt 4 i

[nactive

LB £

m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of subsidiary

WEAREM

Get Nice Capital Limited

HHAEARAA

Get Nice Futures Company

Limited

EHHMEARAR

Get Nice Silk Road
Investment Limited

B EERAA

Get Nice Asset Management

Limited

SRR R

Billion Wealth Investment
Management Limited

REREERARAA

Steppington Holdings
Limited

NobleNet Limited

Grace Field Limited
R FRA A

Pacific Challenge Futures
Hong Kong Limited
RFHEEMEARA A

Get Nice [nvestment
Limited

HHBEARAH

Place of
incorporation

BRI

Hong Kong
Hong Kong

BVI
SBIE LR
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
BVI

SR LR

BV
Eyy#eils

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
&k
Hong Kong

&k

Class of
shares held

Fir s B 40 2

Ordinary

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
L

Ordinary
Lk
Ordinary

Lk

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

ERATRMR
Rx/GREx

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 1T
HK$20,000,000

20,000,000% 7

US$10,000
10,0003 7C
HK$35,000,000
5,000,000 TG
HKS1

17
US$10,000
10,0003 7C

Uss1
BT

HKS$2
2T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 7
HKS$1

17T

45. T EMB A BHFE &

Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/registered capital
held by the Company
ARABEZERIRE/
AMEXEEED L
2021 2020
es-F | xonn
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER BB | HE W
- 729 - 7299
- 729 - 7299
- 729 - 7299
- 729 - 7299
- 729 - N/A
A
- 729 - 7299
- 729 - 7299
- 729 - 7299
- 7299 - 7299
- 7299 - 7299

Principal

activities

IREH

Corporate finance
services

Futures and
options broking

HERAREEL
eS|

Investment holding
BERER

Assets management
services

B

Investment
management

REEn
Investment holding
TR R

Investment holding

TR

Property holding
IESEL
Inactive
LREX

Holding of yacht

AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Bravo Nice Limited

Dixten Limited

AR

Treasure Advantage Limited

Prime Pacific Investments
Limited

Dragon Rainbow Limited

Group Success International
Limited

Better Dynamic Limited

Get Nice Finance Company
Limited

i MBHRAR

Allex International Limited

LXABAHRAA

Gain Peak Asia Limited

Gainventure Holdings
Limited

Place of
incorporation

B AR:E

BV
B3 Aeils

Hong Kong
Fib

BV
B3 aeils

BV
B3 aeils

BV
B3 aeils

BV
B3 Aeils

BV
ES v Aeils

Hong Kong
Fib
Hong Kong
Bk

BVI
ES v Aeils

BVI

ERELHE

Class of
shares held

Fir s B 40

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

ERATRMR
Rx/GREx

Uss1
B

HKS$1
1t

Uss1
B

Uss1
B

Uss1
B

Uss1
B

Uss1
B

HK$2
2T
HK$10,000
10,0003 7C

Uss1
£

US$1

£

¢ ([N
i g
) . )
AN = =
REMIFHREME
HE_Z_—F-A=1+—RHLEE
Year ended 31 March 2021
45. TEMBLARIFE &
Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal
held by the Company activities
RRABEZERTRE/
SCMEFEERAL TEER
2021 2020
es-f | xonn
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B B Hi iz
- 72,99 - 72.99 Investment holding
BT
- 72,99 - 72.99  Inactive
UiEs
100 - 100 - Investment holding
BT
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
BT
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
BT
- 100 - 100 Inactive
UiEt
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
BT
- 100 - 100 Money lending
T
- 100 - 100 Holding of motor
vehicles
FARE
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
BB
100 - 100 ~ Investment holding
BT
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o & B T SR SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. T EMB A BHFE &
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
Place of Class of paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
ERATRMR ARABEZERIRE/
HELAAH ARAIESE  FRSROEN RE/EREX AMEXEEED L IREH
2021 2020
:g: - E — ? —R q‘:
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER BB | HE W
Get Nice Entertainment BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
EHBREARAA EEELHE  HER B BERER
Get Nice International Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,000 - 100 - 80 Inactive
Limited (‘GN
International”)*
ERRARA &b L 1,000 ¢ e £
(T B )~
Clever Switch Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
EEELHE  HER ES B3 £
Genius Wise Holdings BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
EEELHE  HER ES BERER
More Profit International ~ BVI Ordinary US$$10,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
AEELARE  TER 10,0007 78 e
Great China Company Macau Quota capital  MOP100,000 - 65 - 65 Inactive
Limited
NG YN T RHEA 100,000% 1 8 LEd £
Get Nice Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
B RRARAA #ib Hiak 1,000,000 7¢ 78 e
Great Right Holdings BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
RGBT R EEELHE  HER ES BB
Rise Fortune Group Limited BVI Ordinary US$$50,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
AEEMERAA EREAHE  EEk 50,0003 ¢ LEd £
Joyful Villa Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE Ak ESH B

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A



45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Quality Champion Limited

A R

Venturecorp Investment
Limited

Rich Mount Limited

BEARA A

Peak Prospect Limited

Vast Cheer Limited
BEARAR

Billion Times Limited

Get Nice Real Estate
Limited

G EEARA
Profit Union Holdings

Corporation

Infinite Treasure Group
Limited

Bowell Limited
BEARAH

Ace Way Business Limited

Place of
incorporation

B AR:E

Hong Kong
Fib

BV
B3 aeils

Hong Kong
Fib

BV
B3 aeils

Hong Kong
Fib

BV
B3 aeils

Hong Kong
Fib
BVI

ERELTE

(&

BESHE

b

Hong Kong
&b

BVI
B3 Aeils

Class of
shares held

Fir s B 40

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

ERATRMR
Rx/GREx

HK$9,000
9,000i ¢

Uss1
B

HKS$1
1t

Uss1
B

HK$2
2T

Uss1
B

HK$4,000,000
4,000,000 7t
Us$1
IESH
Us$1
IESH

HKS$1
117t

US$1
£

b SRR SRR M S
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T-_—F=A=+—RHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

45. TEMBLARIFEE —&

Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/registered capital
held by the Company
ARARAZERARE/
AMEXEEED L

2021
—EBC--F
Directly Indirectly
Ef HE
- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

2020
2ok
Directly  Indirectly

HE WK

- 100

Principal

activities

IREH

Property holding
WRLER

Investment holding

Property holding
UESEs

Investment holding

Property holding
UESEs

Investment holding

Property agency
UESIS
Investment holding
Investment holding

Property holding

Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. T EMB A BHFE &
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
Place of Class of paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRTRAR ADAREZERORE/
HELAAH ARAIESE  FRSROEN RE/EREX AMEXEEED L IREH
2021 2020
es-F | xonn

Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
R BB HR MH

Ger Nice Property Hong Kong Ordinary HKS!1 - 100 - 100 Property
Management Company management
Limited

EHMEEHARAA  Fi gl i B $E!

Macro Music Company Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$10,000 - 100 - 100 Music school
Limited

ShRE AR A &k gl 10,000 7T HRER

Legend Soccer Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$10,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive

BRIEHRARL A &b L 10,0007 ¢ e £

Get Balanced Company Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - N/A  Inactive
Limited

Fik gl BT AER BEEE

Hong Kong Get Nice Table  Hong Kong Ordinary HK§$2 - 100 - 100 Inactive

Tennis Sports Club

Limited (formerly known
as Pacific Challenge
Management Services
Limited)

Bibsir Rk RN B Tk 2 LEd £
Fi AR (B Pacific
Challenge Management
Services Limited)
Jumbo Excel Corporation ~ BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
EEELHE  BER Eo R
Access Mission Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
EEELHE  HER ES ESE
Jumbo Excel Group Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
EREGHE AR S BB
Apex Magic Asia Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
EREAHE  LEk it B3 £

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A



45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Power Success Holdings
Incorporated

Fairy Gather Limited
B A R

Power Success Group
Incorporated

Bright Rarity Limited

FAARAHA

Mega Trillion Group
Limited

Pearl King Holdings Limited

Smart Best Asia Corporation

Super Times Overseas
Limited

Ultimate Billion Limited

Tao Yun (note b)
VHE (B stb)

Place of
incorporation

B AR:E

BV
B3 aeils

Hong Kong
Fib

BV
B3 aeils

Hong Kong
Fib

BV
B3 aeils

BV
B3 Aeils

BV
ES v Aeils

BV
ES v Aeils

BV
B3 aeils

Hong Kong
&k

Class of
shares held

Fir s B 40

Ordinary

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
gl

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

ERATRMR
Rx/GREx

Uss1
B

HKS$1
1t

Uss1
B

HKS$1
1t

Uss1
B

US$100
100% T

Uss1
B

US$100
100% T

Uss1
BT

HK$20
20467

b SRR SRR M S
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T-_—F=A=+—RHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

45. TEMBLARIFEE —&

Proportion of nominal value of

issued share capital/registered capital

held by the Company
ARAREZERIRE/
AMEXEEED L
2021 2020
es-f | xonn
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER BB HEK 0 MH
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 k- N/A
A

Principal

activities

IREH

Investment holding

Property holding
WRLER

Investment holding

Property holding
UESEs

Investment holding

Property holding
WRLER

Investment holding

Property holding
WRLER

Investment holding

Property holding
IE S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE_Z-_—FZA=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Notes:

(a)

The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by a director
of the Company and a director of GNS, carry practically no
rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or
vote at any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the
assets of GNS available for distribution among the holders of
ordinary shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares
shall be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary
shares the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary
share and secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting
deferred shares the nominal amount paid up or credited
as paid up on such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s
assets shall belong to and be distributed among the holders
of ordinary shares in proportion to the amount paid up or

credited as paid up on such ordinary shares respectively.

Details of changes in ownership interests of subsidiaries are

set out in notes 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Except for Great China Company Limited established and
operated in Macau and Access Mission Limited operated
in United Kingdom, all subsidiaries are operating in Hong

Kong.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERER A A

45. T EMB A BHFE &

b 5k

(a)

(©)

MARNE —ZER LA TER 4
R 2 AR SR A I A R
SERENCI I B, > R SR IR A o R
AT B RO 3 4 B R B SR &
B o A TE AR AT RS R T it
UR T 48 1 A N T e 45 T IR S
R N 2 8 M 5E DA SAS A TS
11,000,000,000,000% I 2 #K H T 3
MR A N > T DUE A B0y
2 BB B RS o SO T (E T A A
ERERRIEA N > M EEZE
JEE 5% 5 R Jag A I RN > I 43 A
0% 55 A B 2 I 2 R B IR B
By e B3k 2 L4 UR e

B JE 2 W) A R 4 2 B W RE R R
e B R M 543 o

9 7% WP R o7 K KR 2 K P EE A IR
I8 ) LA S iR B [ 8 45 2 Access Mission
Limited#b » BT A7 B85 22 W) 14774 5 s 48

ke
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Financial information of subsidiary with individually

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

The following table shows the information relating to
GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material
NCI. The summarised financial information represents

amounts before inter-company eliminations.

BE-_T-_—F=fF=+—HIL&EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

45. T EMB LA BHE &

AEEBEREAFERES ([FERE
#w)2—HHEBARZHMBEER
RS A ORI A 2 JF 4
A B 2 W e B ERE o A B B
B BRI 2 AR R A R R 2 &
e

At 31 March At 31 March

2021 2020

RDZBZ—F | R EFFF

=RA=+—RA | =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T T

Proportion of NCI’s ownership interests FFiZERER 2B EEELLHI 27.01% 27.01%
Non-current assets JE I B E 28,201 124,695
Current assets i 4,749,143 4,294,585
Current liabilities i) B (755,383) (483,849)
Non-current liabilities I it B £ 1 (915) (3,958)
Net assets O 4,021,046 3,931,473
Carrying amount of NCI JE P2 B HE 35 2 W T (E 1,086,460 1,062,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE - ZT-—F#=ZfA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2021

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Financial information of subsidiary with individually

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) — continued

45. T EMB A BHFE &

AEREREAFERES ([FERE
#w)2—HNEBARZHMBEER -

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
éﬁg—g:g:—ﬂi E&Zﬁ;‘?#?qi
=A=+—H =H=+—H
IEFEE JIsKiey: s
HK$’000 HK$000
FERT T T
Revenue g 385,154 370,372
Expenses B 3¢ (171,945) (230,590)
Profit for the year A i ] 213,209 139,782
Other comprehensive income FHoAth 2 T Wk %5 1,364 930
Total other comprehensive income for the A FE A 4 T i 25 A AE
year 214,573 140,712
Profit attributable to NCI I ¥ TR HE 25 B A1 Ja ) 57,592 37,741
Other comprehensive income attributable 2 B HE 1 A
to NCI Ho At 22 1 i 25 368 251
Total comprehensive income attributable IE FE % B 4 ME A
to NCI 4 THI IR i A8 AH 57,960 37,992
Dividends paid to NCI 1] I 42 R HE 4 R B 2 i S (33,765) (47,273)
Net cash flows from (used in): PARIHHE g (rf)
ZH A
Operating activities KA IE B 205,338 286,518
Investing activities & I #) (3,475) (6,274)
Financing activities Bl & 5 B (129,557) (442,276)
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Year ended 31 March 2021

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

45. T EMB LA BHE &

R LA 1 B A 2 A A I E

subsidiaries of the Group that have NCI: G E AR 2R
Proportion of ownership
Place of Principal place  interests and voting rights held Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary incorporation  of business by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERBEREACEARER
HWELTER AMALBE TEEXREH RERELA PEFHERES 2B ZitFERER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
SRC-F | CRCRF | DRS-F | CR0RF | DBS-F | DRCRR
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERL Tix TER Ti#x
GNFG Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong 27.01% 27.01% 57,592 37,741 1,086,460 1,062,265
HiER HERL it
Great China Company Limited Macau Macau 35% 35% 754 743 20,234 19,480
KA R M r

Immaterial non-controlling interest
of GN International* - (3)
SR BINE C JR B R A bl

1,106,694 1,081,742

* On 16 April 2020, the Group acquired the remaining 20% * W EZFAEM A N H - AREE U

equity interests of GN International at a cash consideration
of HK$20. GN International is incorporated in Hong
Kong and it was inactive during the year. The acquisition
was completed on the same date. Upon completion of the
acquisition, GN International became an indirectly wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company.

The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests
in the GN International at the date of acquisition was
approximately HK$3,000, which represented proportionate
share of carrying amount of net assets of the GN
International. The Group derecognised the non-controlling
interest of approximately HK$3,000 and recognised directly
in retained earnings attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$3,000 for the difference between
(1) the amount by which the non-controlling interests are

adjusted and (2) the fair value of the consideration.

209 70 A B 4 QAR i S A5 0 L R
20%JBCHE o 45 T I B 2 9 A o S R
SE 4 2 T A R o R O
TE[R] H 58 B o WSOH 58 AR - 45 1 1B R
T AR YR TR 4% A R B ]

TS H R > &k g R Y I D RE £
B BR T (E 49 53,0008 T > AR
101 93 Ak % 4y 180 I O VM 2 R T -
S T R (1) JUT 8 2 P A 25 4 A
T (2) 1A 2 28 o A8 A 25 1T U3 i
IEFE A 25 493,000 35 TT A 7 AR 43 7]
A NEAG R B8 2 A b B 3 RR 493,000
T o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 March
HE-A=t-HLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“E-LE CE-ANE CER-RE DR CRE | ZBZ-F
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T Tk THER
RESULTS £ |
Revenue g 513,600 584,840 561,905 524,524 502,616
Profit before taxation B A 488,577 453,364 311,172 204,280 306,542
Taxation i (73,291) (80,364) (79,076) (47,552) (58,556)
Profit for the year AR i A 415,286 373,000 232,096 156,728 247,986
As at 31 March
R=B=t-H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“E-bE ZF-NE O ZZNE ZZO%E | ZBZ-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T Tk TER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 6,843,343 7,837,144 8,318,165 7,212,350 7,611,049
Total liabilities BEfE (954,968)  (1,155,603)  (1,685,283) (663,489) (895,290)
Total equity FLb & 5888375 6681541 6,632,882 6,548,861 | 6,715,759
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